
DOCKET NO. 
--- -- - -- 

t :%In theMatterof IN THE MATTER OF THE 
F3 APPLICATION OF COVISTA, INC. FOR 

A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO 
PROVIDE LOCAL EXCHANGE 
SERVICES IN SOUTH DAKOTA 

Public Utilities Corpmission of the State of South Dakota 
DATE I MEMORANDA 

STATE PUBL18HING CO.. PIERRE. SOUTH DAKOTA-SMEAO 104 5P14130 



Lance J.M. Steinhart, P.C. 
Attorney At Law 

1720 Windward Concourse 
Suite 250 

Alpharetta, Georgia 30005 MAY 1 2 2003 

Also Admitted in New Y ork 
and Maryland 

T 
Facsimile: (770) 232-9208 

Email: Isted~art@,telecomcounsel.com 

May 9,2003 

Mr. William Bullard 
Executive Director 
South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 
500 East Capitol Avenue 
Pierre, SD 57501-5070 
(605) 773-3201 

Re: Covista, Inc. 

Dear Mr. Bullard: 

Enclosed please find one original and ten (10) copies of Covista, Inc.'s Application for 
Registration of a Telecommunications Company to Provide Local Exchange Service. The 
company currently has authority to provide Interexchange Service. 

I have also enclosed an extra copy of this cover letter to be date stamped and returned to me 
in the enclosed self-addressed prepaid envelope. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Lance JP. Steinhart 
Attorney for Covista, Inc. 

Enclosures 
cc: Thomas P. Gunning (wlenc) 



APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION 
OF COVISTA, INC. 

FILED WITH THE SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
APPLICATION OF 
COVISTA, INC . 

) 
FOR AN ORDER ) Docket No. 
AUTHORIZING THE REGISTRATION ) 

b@iY 1 2 2003 

OF APPLICANT AS A ) UTH 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY 1 U T l  
TO PROVIDE LOCAL EXCHANGE ) 
SERVICE 1 

APPLICATION 

Application is hereby made to the South Dakota Public 

Utilities Commission for an Order authorizing Covista, Inc. 

(I1Covistal1 or "ApplicantI1) to register as a telecommunications 

company to provide resold and facilities-based/UNE-P local 

exchangeservice within the State of South Dakota. The following 

information is furnished in support thereof: 



1. Name, Address, Telephone Number, and e-mail of Applicant 

Covista, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
(423) 648-9500 (Phone) 
(423) 648-9502 (Fax) 
tgunning@covista.com(e-mail) 

Applicant has no local office in South Dakota at this time. 

All inquiries regarding customer complaints and other 
regulatory matters should be addressed to: 

Tony Barrett, VP of Operations 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
Telephone: (423) 648-9600 
Facsimile: 423) 648-9602 
tbarrett@covista.com 

2. Resistered Asent 

The name and address of the Applicant's registered agent 
are : 

TCS Corporate Services, Inc. 
c/o Marilyn Person 
819 West Third 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501 

3: Description of the Applicant 

Applicant is incorporated in the State of New Jersey and is 

in good standing under the laws of that state. A copy of the 

Company's Articles of Incorporation, as amended, is attached to 

this Application as Exhibit A. In addition, the Company is 

authorized to do business as a foreign corporation in the State 

of South Dakota. Attached as Exhibit B to this Application is a 

copy of the Companyls certificate of qualification to transact 

business issued by the South Dakota Secretary of State. The 

Applicant was formerly known as TotalTel, Inc. Applicant is a 



wholly owned operating subsidiary of Covista Communications, Inc., 

a publicly traded SEC reporting company. 

Applicant is authorized to, and is providing long distance 

services throughout the United States. For South Dakota, See 

Docket No. TC97-187. Applicant is authorized to provide local 

exchange services in California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, 

Florida, Illinois, Minnesota, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, 

Pennsylvania, Texas, Virginia, Washington D.C. and Washington. 

Applicant is in the process of applying for authorization to 

provide competitive local exchange services in the 48 contiguous 

states and Hawaii. Applicant has not been denied authority for 

any of the services for which it seeks authority in this 

Application. Applicant is not currently providing service, 

however, it intends to initiate such service in selected markets 

in the next 90 days. 



The senior management of Covista has great depth in the 

telecommunications industry and offers extensive 

telecommunications business technical and managerial expertise to 

Covista. Since Covista will be providing resold and facilities- 

based/UN~-P local service, Covista will also rely upon the 

managerial and technical expertise of the incumbent facilities- 

based/UN~-P local exchange carriers that have been certified and 

deemed technically and managerially able to provide exchange 

service by the Commission. The relevant operational experience of 

Applicant's key management employees is set forth in Exhibit C 

which is attached hereto. Detailed information about the company 

can be found in Exhibit D. 

The Applicant's customers will primarily be small and medium- 

sized businesses that need local exchange, access, private line, 

long distance, data, and other telecommunication services. 

4. Facilities 

If Covista installs facilities in South Dakota, it will 

probably use the following or a similar configuration of 

equipment: Applicant will provide voice and high speed data 

services through a combination of the latest technology switching 

and transport media comprised of the Lucent Technology 5 ESS 

Generic 13 switch module, ADSL/SDSL transport and Internet 

service equipment and the latest Optical multiplexer DAC's 

configurations. The switching system consists of a central 

processing and control complex capable of interconnection as a 



peer to the incumbent as well as competitive local exchange 

companies. The hub portion of the switch will interconnect with 

the public switched network on Signaling System 7 (I1SS7") or 

Feature Group D ("FGD1') facilities. The system's remote module 

capability will allow properties to be served in a manner that 

provides the exchange of appropriate signaling, control and 

calling/caller information to the network in accordance with 

network standards and specifications. Additionally, these 

services will be delivered over a combination of delivery 

mechanisms through incumbent local carriers1 unbundled loop 

network, both copper and fiber and transport networks, as well as 

via Covista constructed facilities. All of Applicant's 

equipment is capable of providing local number portability, and 

is compliant and compatible with existing 911 systems. At the 

time of the filing of this application, none of this equipment 

has been installed in the State of South Dakota. 

5. Stockholders 

The names and address of the each stockholder of Applicant 

owning 20% or more of the interest in the business are as 

follows : 

Name and Address Shares Owned Percentage of all Shares 
Issued and Outstanding 
and Voting Control 

Covista Communications, Inc. 420 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 



Officers and Directors 

The names and addresses of the officers and directors of 

Covista, Inc. are: 

Officers : 

A. John Leach President & CEO 
Thomas P. Gunning CFO, Treasurer & Secretary 
Kevin Alward Chief Operating Officer 

Directors: 

A. John Leach 
Kevin Alward 
Henry G. Luken 
Leon Genet 
Jay J. Miller 
Donald Jones 
W. Thorpe McKenzie 
Nicholas Merrick 

All of the above-named individuals can be reached at: 

Covista, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 



7. Corporate Ownership 

The name and address of any corporation, association or 

similar organization holding a five percent (5%) or greater 

ownership in the Applicant is as follows: 

Covista Communications, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

8. Subsidiaries owned or controlled bv Applicant 

None 

9. Description of Services 

When Applicant provides services in this state, Applicant 

will provide services through facilities of incumbent local 

exchange carriers ("LECs"), as well as unbundled network 

elements. Covista will rely upon the incumbent local exchange 

companies (LEC) and other carriers for the provision and access to 

emergency services (911 or E911), operator services, directory 

assistance, and telecommunications relay services. Covista seeks 

authority to resell and provide facilities-based/U~E-P local 

exchange services throughout the State of South Dakota in the 

areas served by any LECs in South Dakota that are not eligible 

for a small or rural carrier exemption pursuant to Section 

251(f)(l) of the Federal Act. Upon initiation of service in 

Alabama, Covista, Inc., (Covista) proposes initially to offer 



resold local exchange services and local services utilizing the 

UNE-P platform. Such services will be provided by utilizing the 

facilities of incumbent local exchange carriers (llLECsll), as well 

as unbundled network elements. Covista intends to provide all 

forms of local exchange telecommunications services including: 

Local Exchange: 
A. Local Exchange Services for business and residence 

customers that will enable customers to originate and 
terminate local calls in the local calling area served 
by other LECs. 

B. Switched local exchange services, including basic 
service, trunks, carrier access, and any other switched 
local services that currently exist or will exist in 
the future. 

C. Non-switched local services (e.g., private line) that 
currently exist or will exist in the future. 

D. Centrex and/or Centrex-like services that currently 
exist or will exist in the future. 

E. Digital subscriber line, ISDN, and other high capacity 
line services. 



10. Financial Oualifications 

Applicant is financially qualified to provide intrastate 

local exchange telecommunications services within South Dakota. 

In particular, Applicant has adequate access to the capital 

necessary to fulfill any obligations it may undertake with 

respect to the provision of intrastate local exchange 

telecommunications services in the State of South Dakota. See 

Covista Communications, 1nc.I~ Form 10-K for the year ended 

January 31, 2002 and Form 10-Q for the period ended October 31, 

2002, Exhibit D. 

The company will not require prepayments, advance payments 

or deposits. 

11. Service Area Map 

Covista will concur in the exchange area boundaries 

established by the incumbent LECs. 



12. Tariff 

Attached hereto as Exhibit E is a copy of local exchange 

tariff, which is being filed for informational purposes only 

since Applicant intends to serve less than 50,000 local exchange 

subscribers in South Dakota. 

13. Billinq 

Applicant will direct bill local exchange customers utilizing 

completed call detail information from its underlying carriers, 

and from its own switching equipment. 

14. Solicitation of Customers 

Covista will not submit a change order for local exchange 

service until Covista has obtained the customer's written 

authorization to submit the order which includes the following 

information from the customer:(l) The customer billing name, 

billing telephone number and billing address and each telephone 

number to be covered by the change order; 2) The decision to 

change; and (3) The customer's understanding of the change fee, 

if any. 



15. Description of Marketinq 

Applicant intends to market its services to primarily small 

to mid-sized businesses and residential customers. Applicant 

will market through direct sales by employees and agents. 

Applicant does not intend to engage in multilevel marketing. 

Applicant's marketing materials for South Dakota have not yet 

been developed and are not available at this time. 

16. Cost Support: 

Applicant intends to provide services at a price above its 

cost. Applicant intends to serve less than 50,000 local exchange 

subscribers in South Dakota, therefore, is not required to file 

cost support information. 

17. Federal Tax Identification Number: 

22-1658949 

18. The Number and Nature of Complaints filed asainst the 
Applicant with anv state or federal resulatorv commission 
resardins the unauthorized switchins of a customer's local 
telecommunications provider and the act of charsins customers for 
services that have not been ordered: 

None 



19. Customer Service 

Applicant's customer service department may be contacted 

nationwide via a toll-free number, (800) 805-1000. The Company 

will maintain a Customer Service Department in Tennessee 

exclusively for Customersr questions, requests for service, 

complaints and trouble handling. The Company's Customer Service 

address and local or toll free number(s) will be printed on the 

Customer's bill. The Customer Service Department will be located 

at 721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402. 

The Company also intends to have a locally staffed office at one 

or more hub site locations in each state and will provide its 

customers with a local Customer Service number that will be 

available 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. 

Office Hours- Excluding holidays, Customer Service 

Representatives will be available 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM standard 

time Monday through Friday. After hours, Sundays and on 

holidays, Customers will automatically be forwarded to an 

answering service or operations center. 

Complaint Procedures- The Customer shall pose any inquiries 

or disputes directly to the Company for resolution. Written 

communications should be directed to the Company's Customer 

Service department. All undisputed portions of any outstanding 

balance due are to be paid while resolution of the inquiry or 

dispute is pending. The Company will investigate a Customer 

inquiry or dispute and report the findings to the Customer. If 



the Company finds its actions to be consistent with its Tariff, 

the Company will inform the Customer of its no fault finding and 

require full payment of any outstanding balance due. If the 

Customer is not satisfied with the Company's resolution of an 

inquiry or dispute, the Customer may refer the matter to the 

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission for final determination. 

If Applicant installs facilities in the State of South 

Dakota, facility and equipment maintenance will be performed by 

the company, either directly or through contract, in order to 

ensure compliance with any commission quality of service 

requirements. 

20. Interconnection 

Applicant initially intends to interconnect with Qwest. 

Negotiations for interconnection will start at an as yet 

determined time following certification. Interconnection service 

is likely to be initiated within 180 days of completion of 

interconnection negotiations. Applicant has not requested 

interconnection with any local exchange carrier in South Dakota 

at this time. 



WHEREFORE, the undersigned Applicant requests that the South 

Dakota Public Utilities Commission enter an order granting this 

application for a Certificate of Authority authorizing Applicant 

to provide resold and facilities-based/m~-~ local exchange 

services. 

/ 



State of Tennessee 

County of Hamilton 

A. John Leach, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that 
he/she is the President of Covista, Inc., the Applicant in the 
proceeding entitled above, that he/she has read the foregoing 
application and knows the contents thereof; that the same are 
true of his/her knowledge, except as to matters which are 
therein stated on information or belief, and to those matters 
he/she believes them to be true. 

President 

Subscribed and sworn to before this m d a y  of 
, 2 0 0 3 .  

My Commission expires: L I ~  d@w 101 zm7h - 
f I 

SD CLEC App 



LIST OF EXHIBITS 

A - CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

B - ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED 

C - BIOGRAPHIES OF THE MANAGEMENT TEAM 

D - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

E - PROPOSED TARIFFS 



EXHIBIT A - CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 



OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Amended Certificate of Authority 

I, JOYCE HAZELTINE, Secretary of State of the State of South Dakota, 
hereby certify that duplicate of the Application for an Amended Certificate of 
Authority of TOTALTEL INC. (NJ) changing its name to 
COVISTA, INC. to transact business in this state duly signed and verified 
pursuant to the provisions of the South Dakota Corporation Acts, have been 
received in this office and are found to conform to law. 

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law, I hereby 
issue this Amended Certificate of Authority and attach hereto a duplicate of the 
application to transact business in this state. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I 
have hereunto set mv hand and 



EXHIBIT B - ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED 
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EXHIBIT C - BIOGRAPHIES OF THE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
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Henry G. Luken, Ill was elected 'a Director of Covista in February, 1999, and Chairman of the Board In 
February, 2001. Currently, he Is President of Mont Lake PropertfeS, Inc., a real estate development flrm;a director 
of Equity Broadcasting Gorp., a N network; a dlrector of ACNTV, .a home shopping kmpany selling through N; . 
Managing Agent of Henry IV LLC, an aircraft salescompany. A co-founder of Telco Communications Group Inc., 
he senred as Chief Executive Officer and.Treasurer from JW, 1993.to April, 1996, and Chairman from July, 1993 
to October, 1997. Mr. Luken has also served as Chairman of TeCLabs, Inc., a telecommunications billing firm . 
(TebLabs")since t991, and as Chairman of Telm Development Group, Inc., a computer systems flnn owned by 
Mr. Luken, since 1987, both of which entities he founded. . 

. . 
Walt Anderson was elected a Director of Covlsta in Februaty, 1999, and as Chairman of the Board In . 

November, 1999..Me stepped down as Ctiairman in February, 2001. He has been Manager of Revislon L C  from 
June 1998 to the present; President and Chairman ot Entree lntemational Ud. (Finrincial Consulting Services) fmm 
July, 1997 to the present; Chairman of Capsule Communicatlons, Inc, as of April 2001, Chairman of Teleport UK 
Ltd. (Satellite Communications) from May; 1996 to the present; Chairmawof Esplrlt Telecom Group pic. (Telecom 
Ssrvices) from October, 1992 to November, 1998 and Presldent and Chairman, Mld Atianttc Telecom (Telecom 
Services), from May, 1984 to December, 1993. Mr. Anderson'ls also a dlrectqr of American Technology. Labs 
(Network Equipment) and Aquarius Holdings Ltd. (Water Transport Systems), . . 

Leon Genet has served as a ~lrector shce ddober, 1998. For more than thepast five years; he has been a 
partner in Genet Realty, a commerdaland industrial real estate brokerage firm. He serves as a member of the National 
Commerce and Industry Board forthe State of 1srael.Bonds Organization and Is a shareholder, diretitar and officer of 
LPJ Communications, I&., which has earned commissions from Covista on the sama basis as other independent sales 
representatives. See "Certain Relatlonshlps and Related Transactions", 

A. John Le~ch, Jr. was appointed President and Chlef ExewUve Officer and a Director of covista on May 
182000. He had been Senlor VIce President of Sales at BTI Tslecoinm, Ina, from December, 1999 to May, 2000; 

.Senior Vice President of Teleglobe, Inc. from June, 1996 to Dscamber, 1999, where he assumed responsibility for US 
and Canadian commercial sales markets. He was promoted to this positldrt from Senior Vlce President of Wholesale 
and Agent Markets, Telco Comrnunicablons (a subsidiary of Teleglobe, Inc.) June, 1996 b February, 1999. Prior to 

.that, Mr. kach was Vice President of Agent ~en/ice; at 811 Telecomm, from December, 1989 to June, 1996: Regional 
Sales Manager of Mobiiecomm (a Bell South Company) c here he started in Sdes and rqse tQ a.Regional Sales 
Manager position May, 1985 to December, 1989. 

Jay J. ?kiler, E&. hss sew& as a Diredor since 1983. He has been a practicing attorney for mom than 36 
years in New York. He is Chairman of the Board of AmTrust P d c  Ud., a New Zealand real estate company. He is 
also a director of Technology Insurance Company, Inc., a provider of various insurance products to the technology 
Industry, and certain of its affiliates. Mr. Miller has performed legal setvices on behalf of Covista. See "Certain 
Relationships and Related Transdons." 

Thomas P. Gunning was appointed Vice President, Secretary / Treasurer of Covista fir May 1999. HB was " 
appointed Chief Financial Officer in September, 1994 and served in that capacity until May Of 1999. He was again 
appointed Chief Flnancial OMcer in May of.2000. He was appointed Secretary of Covista in January of 1995, He 
has served as Controller of Covista since September, 1992. He is a CeMed Public A c c o u n ~ t  licensed by the 
States of New York and New Jersey. From 1989 until joining COVIS~~, Mr. Gunning was the Senior Audit Manager 
at Rosenberg Selsman & Company, a certified public accounting firm. From 1976 to 1989, he was Chief Flnancial 
Officer of Flyfaire, Indorporated, a travel wholesale operator. Prior to such time, Mr. Gunning held various positions 
in both public and private accounting firins.. 

' Donald Jones recentty retired from his position as Senior Vice President for Chapter Services of the ' . 
American Red Cross, for which he worked since 1991. Prior to joining the Red Cross, Mr. Jones was Deputy 
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Military Manpower and Personnel Policy. Mr. Jones sewed in the United States 
Army for over35 years and retired in 1991 with the permanent rank of Lieutenant General. 

r.. 

Nicholas Menick currently serves as President of 'Mt Vernon Investments, L C ,  an investment company; 
which he has served as President since January 2002. Mr. Memck served as Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Telef~y, Inc., a high-speed fiber optic communications network company, frorn May, 2000 to 
July, 2001. Telergy filed for.reorganizatlon undevthe bankruptcy laws in October 2001 and is currently in the 
process of liquidation. Prior to joining Telergy, Mr. Menick was Chlef Executive Officer of Up2 Technologies; inc. 

. 

and Executive.Vice President of Excel Communicatlons, each of which is a subsidiary of Teleglobe, inc. (global 
communications. e-business services), from 1998 until 2000. From 1996 to 1997, he'was Vlce President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Telco Communications Group, Inc., and from 1985 to 1996, he was Vice Presldent of Corporate 
Finance at the Robinson-Humphrey Company; Inc. and Managing Director of R-H CapiWl Partners. 

' 

Kevin A. Alward was appointed Chlef Operating Officer of Covista on March 29,2001 and was elected a 
director of Covista on July 17,2001. He had previously served Totarre1 USA as President and Chief Operating 
Officer frorn 1994 to 1998. when he left the company to become President of North America for Destia 
Communications. Inc. (formerly known as ~cono~hone, Inc.) and its successor bymerger, Viatel, Inc. In April 2000, 
h a  m-fmtndnrl Rlink nits ~ n &  ZI tnlmnnmrn~rninniinns and data services arovider headouarterad in nnrtharn New 
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. . 
PART I - 

certairmamr~ d k e d ' h  this Annual Report m Fonn 104 a r e . b ~ - ~ a o I d n ~  statemsn$' knded't,, 
quaMy for the safe harbor from llabllity provlded by the Prhrate fkt~urfftes LiWifIon Refomi Act af 1995. These fa- 
looking statements can generally be IdenUffed as such because the W M  of the statement win lndude wards such as 
Covlsta "bdeves", "antldpatesp, 'expW, or-words of stmila?. lmpah SlmiIariy, statements .which describe 

' :future plans, ab1ectlvea or gads are also faNvard-laoking statements. Such fonktd-looklng statements are subject to 
certain risks and uncertainties which. are describedin dose pr0Xhity.b Such SUements and which could cause actual 
results to differ materially fmm those anticipated as.of the date of this Report. Shaieholden, potential investah and . 
other readers are urged to consider these fact1113 in Wd~athg the fOrWard-lgIking statements and are cautioned not to 
place undue reliance on such fonnmrdlooking statements. The fonnranCl~king statements iridudki herein are anll/ . 
made as of the date of this Report and Covista undertake9 ,m obligation to pubkly update such fonnrard-looking 
statements b reflect subseiquent events or drcurnstance5. . . 

C 

. ITEM 1. , . Business 
i . ., 

. Generql d . . 
Covista'was incorporated In 1969 as Faradyne Elechanica Corp. In November 1991, Covlsla &&ed its 

name from Faradyne Electronics Carp. to Total-Tel USA Communications, Inc. In September, 2000, Covista 
adopted its present name, Co"1sta Communlcatlons, lnc! . . 

Covista Is a long dlstance telecommunications, Internet and data services provider. Covista operates two 
distinct business segments: retall and wholesale. The retail segment provides long dlstance, data and internet 
services to small and medlum sized businesses, pHncipally in the Northeast region of the Uriited States. The 
wholesale segment sells long distance telecommunlcatfon services to other carriers for resale. Covista utlllzes itij 
own switching equipment and leased fiber optic transmission cable. Covista's products and services Include a 
broad range of voice, data and Internet solu\lons, including long distance and toll-free services, calling cards, data; ' 
Internet access, virtual private network, directory assistance and teleconferencin se~ices. The wholesale divlslon 
provides doinestlc and lnternatfonal termination services to carriers woridwi ! e at competitive rates. Covlsta 
currently owns and operates three switches, one In New York Clty , one In Newark, New Jersey, and one in 
Philadelphia Pennsylvania and announced plans to expand to additional switch sites in Mlnneapolls, Dailas and 
Chamooga In July 2001, Covista announced that it had acquired long-term access to nationwide network 
facilities comprising 2,822,400,000 channel miles of telecommunications capacity measured by length of volce- 
grade circuits. In addition, Covista cumntly offers Internet services using two routers-that it owns and operates 
located In New York City and Norlhem New Jersey. Covlsta pmcesses approximately 85 percent of all its caU 
volume thmugh its own facilities. Covista also operates a network operations center in Northern New Jersey to 
monitor and controk b New Jersey network and to coordinate its various selvlces. In October, 2001; Covista 
announced the opening of a new call center facility In Chattanooga, Tennessee, and that it Is planning to relocate 
its corporate headquarters to Chattanooga from Uttle Falls, New Jersey. Covista previously was known as Total- 
Tel USA Communications, Inc. 

' In the retail market, ~ h s t a  has segmented potantid customers d d  hllored its selvloe offerings, sales, 
marketing approach and network development to provide service In a cost-effectfve manner. Covlsta beIleves.tts 
customer service to be one of Its principal cornpetithre advantages. Covlsta applles a dedicated team approach to 
soliciting and servicing itq clients, with aubstantlal Involvement of sales, ~stamer'service and technical persannel 
In ail aspects of customer relations. Covista intends to continue to focus Its efforts on small to medium-sired 
businesses with .sales of $1 mllllon lb $60 milllon and monthly communicatfons~ bills that range fram $56500 to 
$30,000. Covista's focus an customer service has also enabled it to a-ttract larger customera Durlng the fourth , 

quarter 2002, Covista continued expanding services into the residentlal @trail market with a new pmduct offering. 

For F k d  2002, Cwista had g ~ s s  revenuk of apgroxlmate&$95 milbn, derhred appmdmately 50% 
from wholesale and 50% from retail services. For Fl.scal2001 ,'Covistds gross revenues were appmxhnately $134 
million. Covista's ietail sales actMties have been concentrated'in Northem New Jersey and New York CHy, where, 
Covista believes, approximately half of all United States muitlnatlonal corporations have headquarters. Based on 
Industry sources, this area is belleved to represent 40% of the total United States telecommunications market For 
the ne&tenn, atleast,  vista intends to' continue Its efforts on further penetrating commerdal users of its seIvTc8s 
In the Northeast, from the Washington, D.C. market thmugh B d n ,  Massachusetts, 'and to augment llie.aenrfces , 
offered to its customers. 

Covista's principal executive offices are located at 4803 Highway 58 North, Chattanooga, TN, 3741 6, and 
. .. q its telephone number is (423) 648-9700. . .. % . - . . _ . . .. ._ ._ .. . .. 



'INDUSIRY OVERVIEW 
' 

Prior to 1984, AT&T dominated b& the local exhsnle and long d&l~e I~&QI~CBS by w i n g  the . 
.operating erititlh that provided both local exchange and long distance servlces to most of the United S- 
population. Atthough lang dlstanca competftlon began to emerge in ara late 19709, the critfcal event Mggerlng the ' 
gmwth of long distance cornpetitton was the breakup of ATaT and the sepamtfon of its local and long aslance . 
businesses as mandated by the ModMed Final Judgment (we WFJ'? relating to the breakup of AT&T. To foster 
competition in the long dlstance mar&&, the MFJ pmhibited-AT&TS divested local exchange busines9es, the 
Regional Bell Operating Companies ("RBOCB*), acting shle-source pmvlden of telecommunications 
services. 

Although the MFJ establlshed ihe preconditions for ~0mp'etlUon In the market for long distance seMces in 
1984, the market for local exchange servlces has, until recently, virt~al(y been closed to wmpetltfon and has 
largely been dbminated by regulated monopolies. Efforts to Open the exhange m@et began In the late. 
19808 on a stateby-state basis. 

& . .  
(. 

The Telecommunications Act ot 1996, (the Y998 Act'), Is considered to be the most comprehensive 
L 

reformof the.natit)n1s teiecomrnunications laws, affect the developmsnt of wmpetitfon for local tsiecommunications . 
services. The 1996 Act pmvldes for the removal of legal barriers to entry into the local telecommunications e 

services market, the lnterconnectlan of the Incumbent Low1 Mange.Carder (the 7LEC") network with 
competitors' networks and the rehxation of the regulation of certain telecommunlcations services provided by LO& 
'Exchange Cadets (11ECs") and others. Procedures and requirements were estabushed to be followed by the - 
RBOCa,'lncludlng the requirement that RBOCs offer I O C ~  S ~ ~ C E ~ S  for resale as a precondition to their entering ithe 
long dlstance and telecornmunlcations equipment manufacturing markets. ' , 

. The cont!nui"g deregulation of the telecom~unlsatlons industry 'and technological change has resulted in 
an lnckasingly Information-intensive business environment. Regulatory, technological, marlcetlng and competitive 
trends have subs,tanffaily expanded. Covista's 0pportuniaeS In the converging voice and data communications 
services markets. For example, technological advances, Including tapid growth of the .Internet, the Increased use . 
of packet switching technology far valce conimunicatlons, and the growth of multirnedla appllcatlona, are expected 
to result h substantial growth In the high-speed data senrices market 

Thts niw market opportunity should perrnii competitive Local Ghange Carriers (.cLEc~") with opqratlng 
and marketjng expertise to offer a full range of telecommunications sedceg, includlng local and long dlstance 
calling, toll-free calling, custom calling features, data servlces, and Internet access ahd services. 
Teiecommunlcatfons companies with an established base of long dlstance customers may have an opportunity to . 

sell additlonal services to such customers. 

Covista h& observed that RBOC+ and the Tler I carriers (&en with annual re&nu& In mess of $5 
bllllon), primarily concentrate their sales and marketing efforts an resldential and large business customen. Thus. 
Covista belleves .there Is a signincant market opportunity with resped to small and medlumsized businesses to 
which customer service may he a signiflwntpart of their buying declsian. Covlsta has also entered the resldential 
long dlstance business which Covista had not previously concentrated Its marketing efforts. 

. . 

, 

.. . 



i . I Network 
: 
t 

I 

CovistaJS strategy has' been to develop a geographic concentration d revenue-producing mstonie& 
I through the sale of telecommunications servlces In areas where it has installed switching platforms. 
' ! 

I 
I . . 

Current Network I 
I 

1 

+r' l , . .. ~wftches. Currently, covista operates an advanced telecommunications nehori  Uiat indudes 
Alcatel switches, located in New York City, Newark, New Jenw and Philaddphia; Pennylvania The Philadelphia 
.switch was acquired4rom a merger with Capsule Communications (See Subsequant Events). Covista has installed 
Alcatel D M  600 switches in .Newark.andPhiladeiphia and-a Megahub DEXGOOE switch in New York, which 

!' .provfdes :interekhange switching dpabilitles and Is currently being Used as Coviata's lntemdonal gateway 
switching platlorm. Covista Is installing three AIcatel DEX 600 switches, one in YnneapoUs, one in Dallas and one . 
In Chattanooga which ani, scheduled to be operational In FY 2003. 

In July.2001, Covista &nounced that it had aqulred long-term access to natlonwie network f i c i ~ ~ e s  , , 

comprising 2,822,400,000 channel miles of teie~~rntTI~nl~aU'~nS ~ a ~ a c i b  measured by length of voicegrade :. 
circuits. . , !. 

During Fiscal 2002, Covlsta billed. Gproxlmately 1.08 billion minutes,'with appmdmateiy 85% of its : 
'..I+ minutesoverifs own &itches. Covlsta belleves that Increasing the traffic canled on Its own network would irhprove 

operating margin& ' 

. J  . . . 
lnte&ffond. Covista is interconnected wiih a .number .of united Slates and fokign wholesale 

lntemational carriers through its New York switch. Tha purpose of connecting to a variety of caniers is to provide 
state-of-the-art, lowest-cost routing and,network reliability. Thege interconnected internatlonal carriers are also a 
source of wholesale Intematfonal~trafflc and revenue, .. . 

. . I .. 

Internet Currently, ~ o v i s k  owns and herates an IP (Intqrnet ~rotocbl) ~etwork that includes two Clsx 
7500 routers, located In New York City. Covlsta also owns and operates.an Ascend TNT remote access sewer 
(RAS) located in New York. The RAS provides dial-up lnternet access services. Through associaffons with 
providers.of wholesale bigitat Subscriber Unes (QSL"), Covlsta offers DSL Internet service in the Philadelphia, 
New York, New Jersey and ConnecUcut markets. Covista also offers internet services over dedicated DSO, DS1 
and DS3 digital tmnsmission circuits. 

' 

Other Fealuies. Covista Is Interconnected by SS7 out-of-band dlgital.signallng thmlighout its network. 
The SS7 signaling system reduces connect tlme delays, thereby enhancing overall network efficiencies; 
AddMonalIy, the SS7 technology Is designed to permit the anticipated expansion of CovistaBs Advanced Intelligent 
Network ("AIN") capabillffes throughout its network. Covista19 advanced switching platform would enable it to (1) 
deploy features and functions quiddy throughout its entire network, (It) expand switch capacity in .a cost-effective 
manner, and (m) lower maintenance costs through reducec! tralning and spare parts requirements. . ' . 

Security and ~sliabillty~ Covlsta has a Network Operating Center (NOC) In Northern New Jersey, whiCh 
moliitors and controls Covista's network and coordinates its various sewices from a central location, lncreaslng the . 
security, reilability and efficiency of Covjsta's operations. Centtalked electronic monitoring and contml of Covista's 
network allows Coviata to avoid dupilcatlon of this funeon in each switch site. The NOC also helps reduce 
Covjsta's pelrcristorher pmnitaring and customer servIce:cbsts: In additfop; Coviste network employs an 
"authorized access" arqhitecture. ,Unlike many. telecommunications companies, which allow unhrersat access to 
thelr netwarit, Covlsta utillzes an automatic number identification security screening archiiecture whlch ensures 
only the Autarnattc Number Identltlcatlon (ANls) of those users who have subscribed to CovistaBs selvices and 
have sawed C O W S  credit and provisioning criteria have access tp the network. Covista belleves that this 
architecture provides Covlsta the abilRy to better wntrol bad debt and fraud. In a manner which Is lnvlsible and 
nonlntrusive to the customer. This architecture also allovh Covlsta4o bet!ec,.manage network capacity, as 
unauthorized and unplanned users cannot access the network: Covlsta plans to relocate the NOC to the Corporate 
Headquarters In Chattanooga TN In Fiscal Year 2003. 

Product and Senrice Offerings 
' 

Covista offers retall teiecommunfcatlons servlces prlmariG to small and medium-sked businesses and 
msidsntlal long distance users. Covista's retail service offerings wmntiy hclude, long dlstan,ce. and $11-free 

. services (both with and without an AIN), multlple access.optiona, - - .  calling card, - - .  data, . Internet 'meas, DSL, e-mail, - - . . . _.,- --A 



. -  Current Servlces , 

. L . I Long DI&tance: Covista offers a b~ raige of ~ ~ M h e d  and dedicated domestlo and l~emational brig - 
astance. services, Including Y+" outbound setvice In all 50 states along with global terminatfan to over 
:200 countriii. Long dlstance services lnclude Intra-LATA (Local Access Terminating Area), inter-LATA, 
and worlcjwide international setvices. Long dlstance features Include both verified and non-verffied 
accounting codes, statlon-tolstatlon calling, thirdparty calling, directory assistance and operator-assisted. 
calling. 

Toll-free Services: Covisti offers a full range of switched and dedlcated domestrc toll-free services, 
including toll-free origination in all 50 states, international toll-free ortglnatlan from over 30 countries, and 
toll-free directory assistance. AIN enhanced toll-free servlces Indude the followinq features: Command 
Routing, Dialed Number ldentiflcatlan Setvice Area Codhhange Routing, Real Time ~utomatic 
Number Identification Delivery, Day-of-Year RouUng, Day-of-Week Routlng, Rmeof-Day Routing, 
Percentage Allocation Routing, PIN protected 800 se~ices, integrated voice response servlces and store 
locator services. 

Access Options: Covista offers its long dlstance and toll-free customers multlple access options, 
includlng dedicated access at DSO, DS1, and DS3 speed(s) and switched access. . . - - 
Calllng Card and Services: Covista offers nationwide switched access, customized calling card 
services. Customers have the option of calling cards, whlch are personallzed, branded or generic. 

Internet Covlata curkntly offers highqual'i, dedicated DSL and dial-up lntemet access, em& IP 
addressing and Domain Name Senrices. - 
Data Sarvlces: bovlsta offen advanced data transmission services, lndudlng private ' h e  and. F m e  . 
Relay se~lces., Data services have multiple access options, Including dedicatd access at DSO, DS1, 
and DS3 speed@) and switched access. 

a' 'Customer Management Cqntml Features: AU of Covista's &tomen have.the option of customized 
management rep'orting feqtures, lncludlng Interstatellntrastate area code summaries, lntematlonal 
destination matrbq daily usage summarleq state summades, time of day summaries, duration dlstributlon 
matrix, exception reportlng of long duratlon calls, and 1ncomplete:and blocked call reportlng. 

Wholesale. Senrlces. Covl&a offers the following wholesale services: domestic and international knlnation, switch 
ports, wlocatlon faclllties and transport senrices to a broad spectrum of domestic and IntematIonal carriers. Covista 
offers International wholesale termination and transport s$vices primarily to domestic and International 
telecommunlcatldns carriers. Once Covlsta Intemnnects with a carrier customer, the carrier hay d l z e  Covlsta on 
an as-needed hasls, dependlng upon the prlcfng offered 'by Covista and Its competitors aswell as capacity. 
Covlsta has been tested and appmvd ka an authorized canler for, and included in the mutlng tables of all of Its 
long dlstance and international carrier customen. Covistals wholesale results were severely affected by the 
September 11 terrorist attack The Company suffered the temporary loss of its New York Clty switch, whlch Is 
situated In the lmmedlate vicinity of the Wodd Trade Center. As a result, Covista incurred a significant reduction In 
wholesale mvenues. The impact of the revenue Icss, combined with addltlonal expenses, was in excess of 
approximately $5,000,000. Covista has filed an Insurance clalm for losses and qenaes assodated with the 

.. -- events of September 11, and received an Inikld $?,OOPPfln In Be Fv 3002 Tha tn@l claim and flnal aett!emsnt - 
cannot be determined at this time. Wholasale revenues were appreximately $47,E89,000 and $79,743,000 during - .____ _ _ _  . _ _ _ . .  .. . . - _  -_-*--- -)&_.-I -. .--.,- ,Ll \A,b-,n-r,- -..--..-- -- 



CUSTOM& BASF 
. -  

Telecommunications Services Market 

. &e&w of the United States Market The United States market for te~ecommunlcatlons seivlcee can be 
. divided lnto four basic service sectors: long dlstance, local ekhange, lnternet access and international. 

. . 
Long Distance Servlms. A long dlstance'telephone call can be envisioned as conslstlng of three 

. segments. Startlng with the originating customer, the call travels ahXl a l ~ a l  exchange network to a long dl-ca 
can'ierk-paint-of presence ("POP"). At the POP, the call 1s combined with other calls and sent along a long 
.distance network to a POP on the long distance carrier's network near where the call will terminate. The call 1s 
then sent from this POP along a local network to the terminating customer. Lang distance carriers provide only the 

.: connection between the two local networks; and, unless the long distance-canler Is a local service provider, pay 
.::: access charges to LECe for originating and terminating calls. 

Lacel Evchange Semicar. .A I d  dl Is one that does not require the services of a long distance carrier. I 
In general, q e  local exhange carrier connects end-user customen within a locally defined area known as a Lccal , 

. . Access and Transport Area or U T A "  and also provides $8 local access (Ingress and egress) of most long 
distance calls.. 

. #' 

Internet Sarvlce. Internet senrice3 are gened~y provided In at least two distinct segments. A I& ' .-' 
network connection Is required from the lnternet Service Provider (%P)cwtomer to the ISP's focal facillttes. For 
large,. communication-intensive users 'and for content providers, the connections are typically unswitched, 
dedlcated connectlons provided by LECs, Intelligent Call Processing ("ICP"), or other providers, either as 

. independent senrice praviders or, in some cases, by a carrler that is both a Competitive Local Exchange Canler . 
(CLEC ) and 'an Internet Service Provider ( ISP). For residentlal and small and medium-sized business users, 
these connectfans are generally Publlc Swiched Telephone Network ("PSTM connectlons obtalned on a dlal-up 
access basis as a local exchange telephone call. Once a local connection Is made to the ISP's local facilitles, 
information can be transmitted and obtalned over a packet-switched IP data network, which may consist of ' 

segments provided by *many interconnected networks operated by a number of ISPs. The collectfan of 
interconnected networks makes up the lnternet A key feature of Internet architecture and packet switching Is that 
a single dedlcated channel between comrnunlcatlon points Is never established whlch distinguishes Internet-based 
services from the PSTN. 

International Service. A typical International long distance call originates on a local exchange network or 
private llne and Is carried to the international gateway switch of a long distance carder. The call is then transported 
along a fiber optic cable or a satellite connectton to an international gateway switch In the terminating country and, 
finally, to another. local exchange network or private llne where the call Is terminated. Generally, only a small 
number of carrlera are llcensed by a foreign country for International long distance and, in many countries, only the 
Fostal Telephone & Telegraph administratlon ("Prr) Is licensed or authorized to provide intematlonal long 
dlstance service. Any carder whlch desires to transport switched calls to or from a particular country, in addition to 
obtalnlng a license or other permission (if required), must enter lnto operating agreements or ather arrangements 
with the PV or another jntematlonal carrier in that countty or lease capacity from a carrier which already has such 
arrangements.. . . 

. . 
Market Oppohnitles . . . , . , 

As a result of the 1996 Act and other Federal, state, 'and' International Initiatives, 'numerous 
telecommunlcatidns markets have been opened to cornpetillon. In ad$tlon, the Increasing globallzatton of the 
world economy, along with. Increased rellance upon data transmlgslon and Internet access, has expanded 
tradlUonal telecammunlcations markets. Covista has targeted h services principally to small and medlum-sized 
businesses based upon its belief that such customers are not aggressively targeW:by Tler I providers and are 
'undersenred with respect to customer sewice and support' Also, Covista, through a recently introduced product 
offering, is targeting residential long distance users with coni~etitive rates for domtisKc and International long 
dlstance usage. 



- :: . . . : .Comp@on for'covlsta's products and set&& IS baa& upon price, quality, the abllity to bundo seMceq , 

" ride recogljitlon, n w o r k  rellabilii detVic0 features, billing s e M ~ ,  Pe-hred quality and responsiveness to. 
L, 

customers' needs. While Covista belleves that It cmwthf has certain advantages mlatlng to price,-q~db, * $. 

, 
:' customer s e & e  and rekponsivenesa b.w*mer p€J&i there 1s no 899Uranee hat Cwtstl will be able to .& 

1 .  
: inalntain these advantages or obtain additional advantages. , A  ~WanuhJ trend toward business combihaffons and 

+ 

. . alllances in the telecommunications industry may create significant new comPeWors to C'dvlsta Miny of CovistaJs 
! .  . . ' 0 ' .  existingmd.potential competitors have flnancial, technical, and other  sources slgniffcantty greater than those of . 

. 'Covista. in addition, In .December, 1997, the FCC Issued rule3 to implement the provisions of tfie Worid Trade * 
Organization Agreement on Badc Teiecommunlcahns, which was drafted to llbemllze restrictions on foreign 

. . ownership of .domestic telecommunications ~~mpanles and to allow foreign telecommunicatlans companies to . . enter domestic market& The new FCC rules went into ieffect in February, 1998 and 'are expected to .make it 
substantially easier for many non-United States t e t e c o ~ ~ ~ n l ~ a t i 0 ~  COmpanies to enter the United States market, 

1 thus further increasing the number of competitors. The new rules will also give non-United.States individuals and .. 
I .  'corporations greater ability to invest In United States tel~c~mrnunlcatlons companies, thus increasing the financial . 
I and technical resources potentially available to existlng and potefltlal competitors as well .as Covista. . 

. Long DlstanceMarket . . . .  
The long distance telecommunlcaUons industry Is hlghb competitive and affected by the lntroductlon of 

new services by, and the market activities of, major industry partidpants. Covista competes 'against various. 
natlonal and' regional long distance carrien, including both facilltles-based providers and switchless resellers 
offering essentially the same seivices as Covista. In addltlon, significant competition Is expected to be pmvlded by 
ILECa lncludlng RBOCs. Rwentfy, Verizon, the RBOC for Covlsta's region, has been authorized to pmvlde long 
distance senn'ces In certain states. Covlsta's success will depend upon Its ability to provide high-quality services at 
prices competitive with, or lower than, those charged by Its competitors. In addltlon, a high level of customer 
attrition or "chum" has characterized the long distance Industry. Such attrftlon Is attributable to a variety of fiictors, 
including lnitiatlves of cornpetiton as they engage In advertising campaigns, marketing programs, and provide cash 
payments or other Incentives. End users are often not obligated to purchase any minlmum usage amaunt and can 
discontinue service without penalty at any time. Covista's revenue has been, and la expected to continue to be, 
affected by chum. 

Tier I pmhders iind other carders have Implemented new price plans alrned at residential customera with 
.sign&mtly simpUfled rate sttuctures, whlch may have the impact of lowering overall long dlstance pri&. p e r e  
can also be no assurance that long distance camen will riot make sirnilat offerings available to the small to 
medlum-sized buslnesses,. which Covista primarily se~es. While Coviata belleves that small and medlurn-sized 

. business customers are not aggressively targeted by large long' distande providers, such as the Tier I providers, 
' there can be no assurance that Covista's customers and potential customers will not be targeted by these or other 

providers in the future, Addlffonal priclng pressure may come from IP-transport, whlch Is a developing use of 
padtet-switched technology which can transmit wlce communlcatlons at a cast which may be below that of 
traditional drcuit-switched long dlstance selulce. Whne IP W p o r f  Is not yet available In all areas, its use requires 
the dlallng of additional digits. While the service has genetall9 produced sound quallly inferior to traditfonal long 
distance service, it could eventually be perceived as a substitute for traditional long dktance service. This, in turn, 
could put further pricing pressure on long dlstance rates. Any reduction In long distance prices may have a 
material adverse effect on Covlsta'a buslneas, flnandal condition and resuits of operations. 

Some of Covista's principal competitors are also major suppliers of services to Gavlata. Covista'both links 
Its switching equipment with transrnlsslon facllltles and services purchased or leased from these suppllers, and also 
resells services obtained from these suppliers. 'There can be no assurance that these suppllers will continue to 
offer sewices to Covista at competitive rates or on atkiciive terms, if at all, and any failure to do so. could have a 

- material adverse e , M  ac . C ~ ~ h t a .  . : .. .- .. -. : ... .. . . . - ... . -. . .--.. . -- . .. ..... _ _ .  _ . .  . . - -  
. .. . . . -- .. .. . .. . .$ ... . 



Seasonal Nature oi ~ u s i n w  . 
I 

1 Company's tiusiness is'not sea9o'nal. 
.I - 
I I .  Patents, Trademarks, Ucenseis,xdc. . 

I 

i 
: d Company does not hold any material iatents, fran~hise~~imncessions. . 
6, . 

I . . .  
, ..' GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS . . ! 1 % .  

1 -- . .  ' 
:.~OveFllew I. 

' I  - 
!, . covistals service3 are subj&.toreguiatlon by federaS alate and lacal~gcvernmen~ agencies. ma FCC 

S t  exercises jurisdiction over all facilities and services of telecommunicatlona. common carriers to 'the extqnt those ::.I: . ' facilities are used to provide, originate or terminate interstate or internatbnal ~mtnunl~atlons. State regulatory 
1 . .  ' agencies reMn jurisdiction overcanierd facilities and services to the extent they are used to odginate or terminate ,& 

t a! . . I . intrastate communications. Municlpalitfss. and other local $0~emment agendes may' require carriers.to obtain . 
1 : . ..I! '. licenses or franchises regulating use ,of pubilc rightssf-waymcessary to install and operate their networks. The , 

'. J 
1 . . . networks are also subject ,to numerow lacal r~uiatlons such as building codes, franchises, and rights of way 
I 

i t a  . .. . ~'llcensing.;requlrements. Many of th? iegulatlons issued by these regulatory bodies may be subject to judida! 
:. .i  review, the resuitsot which Covista la unable to p n d l 4  . 
. !. 

Federal Regulations - The 1996 , . . ' : 
. S~~MCJ& ~ e ~ ~ i r e m e n f s .  *The 1996 Act requires dl ~ C S  (l&ludhg lLE& and CLECS. (I) not to brohibi 

or unduly restrict resale of their services; (livto provide local number portability; (iii) to piwide dialing parity and' 
nondiscriminatory access to telephone numbers, operator services, dlrs'dory assistance, and directory Rstings; (Iv) ' 

to afford access to poles,.ducts, conduits, arid righhf-wa'y; and .(v) to establish. reciprocal compensation 
arrangements for the transport and termination of local telecommunications traffic. it also requires' ILECs to 
negotiate local interconnection agreements in good faith and to provide interconnection.(a) for .the transmission and 
routing of telephone exchange sewice and exchange access, @) at any technically teagible point within the ILEC's 
network, (c) which is at least equal in quality to that provided by the ilEC to itself; its affiliates, or q ~ y  other party to 
which the iLEC pro\iides intercorinection, and (d) at ktes and terms and~conditions which are just, reasonable and 
nondiscriminatory. lECs  also are required under the 1996 Act to provide nondiscriminatory access to network- 
elements on an unbundled basis at any technically feasible point, to offer their local telephone servlces for resale at 
.wholesale rates, and to facilitate cblocation of equipment necessary for competitors to interconnect with or.access 
Unbundled Network Elements ("UNEs"). . 

. : j  .: 
. .I . The 1998 Act dso eliminates the exfstlng AT&T antitrust consent d&rpe, which b a d  the provision of 
. I 

I 
i ' .  

. long distance services and manufacturing by the RBOCs. 'In addition, the 1996 Act requires RBOCs to comply with 
. certain safeguards and offer interconnectfon which satisfies a prescrfbed 14rpoint competitive checklist before. 

.. RBOCs are permitted to provide in-region Inter-LATA services. These safeg.uatda .tire designed to ensure' that.the 
RBOCs competitors liave acc& to lo@ .exchange and exchqge access services. on ruindiscri~inatory terns and 
that the subscribers of regulated non~mpetitlve RBOC senrice do not subsldlze their provision af competitive 

* 

services. The safeguards also are Intended to promote competfifon by preventing ,RBO.Cs .hm using their market. 
"I .. I -power in local exchange servlces in order to obtaln an anticompetitive advantage h the provision of other services. 

:$?:l 
yY,.. 

RBOCa have the ability to pmvideputsf-region long-dlstance services and, it they ebtah authorization and under 
.I . 
:',.i. . ppscribed circumstances, mayprplde addiUonal In-region' longdistance services. ' in- December 1999, the FCC 
.- . granted Bell Atlantic's (now Verizon) appkatfon to offer In-region long $stance sewices in New York, marking the ' 
s:~.:c a, -: ..first time since the breakup of AT&T that an'FlBOC has been able to prgvide its customers with both local and long 

. distance senrtce. . +:;..g 

The 1996 Act also granted important re&latory relld to lndGby segments whiih compete with C W .  
. .. .ILECs were givenqbstantial new pricing flexibility. .RBOCs Also were granted new 'rights to provide certain cable ' 

N servlces. Inter Exchange Carriers ("IXCd') were periniyed to construct.their own local laclllties andlor resell 
.. . local services. State laws may no longer requim, CATV3 to obtain a franchise before offering tele~rnmunicatlo~is~' 

services nor permit CATVsl franchise fees to be based on thefr telewmmuntcatlons revenue.' In addMon,'under the 
1996 Communications Act, all utility holdlng qompaniss . 

. 
are permitted to .diversity into telecommunicatlans services 

Yhtaugh separate subsldlarles. ' ' 

' 

FCC RUI& !mplemenfing the Local CompeifKon Provisions d ihe t9G6. Act In August 1996, the FCC 
released a First Report and Order, a Second Report and Order and a Memorandum Opinion and Order (combined, 

'. . I .  -.-. . .-. . . . . . ..the !'lnteert;orm~b~nOrd~m") wh!ch.est&llsh a fmrnewerk of minimum, national rules. enabling state PublIc.UlilitSI. .- 
.: I Commissions ("PUCs"). and Public Senrice Commlssicns (TSCs"),. and the FCC to begin implementing many of -- - .- - .  .- A . .. --a .L - -* --a.,:m 



m e  U.S. Supreme Coud a k e d  the authoW of the FCC to establki rules gqverning lntermnnwan. &gta. 
. believes that addlonal dlsputes regarding interconneldon kaues and other related FCC acffons are mely. In 

particular, the Supreme Court remanded to the FCC fssue9 Warding what UNEs the FCC will require ILEC~ to 
. make availsble to competitors. In November,l999, the FCC rekmed a deckion modylhg the llst of UNES which 
all ILECa must offer to other canfen. The Eklhfi Circuit ~~cislons and their reversal by the Supreme &brt 
continue to cause uncertainty about the rules govemlng the ~dcing, k m s  and condftlons of interconnedon 
agreements. The Supreme Court's ruling and further ~maedlngs O n  remand (either at the Elghth Circuit or the 
FCC) mhy affecttlfe scope of the PUCs'.and PSC8' authority to  ond duct arbitration proceedings or to implement or 
enforce Interconnection agreements. The ruling could a h  result in new Or addltfonal rules being pmnulgated by 
the FCC. Glven the ongoing uncertainty surrounding the effect of the Eighth C h i t  decisions and the decision of 
the Supreme Coud reversing them, Covista may not be able to obtain or enforce interconnection terms acceptable 
toeit or that qre consistent with its business plans. 

$ 

Other Federal RegulaUons . . 
In'generd, the FCC has pollcy of efl~outaging the entry af n0W competitors in the telscommunlcatlons 

: Industry. and. pdenling antl-cornpetitive practices. Therefore, the FCC has established different levels of 
regulation for dominant carriers and non-daminant canlem. For purposes of domestlc common cafler 
telecommunications regulation, large ILECs are curm@Y ~ K M E J ~ ~  dominant carders, while CLECs are 
considered non-dominant carriers. . 

Tan'*. As a nondominant carrier, Covlsta may Install and operate faciiltles for the transmission of 
dome& Interstate communicatlons without pdor FCC auth~dzation. Services of nondominant 
carriers have been subject to relathrely limited reguiath by the FCC, primarily consisting of the filing 
of tariffs and ~eriodic reports. However, no~-dominant ~tXr'ier8 like Covista must offer interstate 

' 

.services on a'nondlscrlminatofy basis, at just and reasonable rates, and remain subject to FCC . 
complaint procedures. With the exception of inforrnatlonal tariffs for operator-assisted services and 
tariffs for interexchange casual calling services, Ihe FCC has ruled that lXCs must cancel their tariffs 
for domestic interstate interexchange services. Tariffs continue to be required for International 
services. Pursuant to these FCC requirements, Covista has filed and maintains tariffs for its 
interstate services with the FCC. All of the Interstate access and retail "basis" services (as deflned by 
the FCC) provided by Covista are described therein. "Enhanced" services (as deflned by the FCC) . 
need not be tadffed. Covista believes that Its proposed enhanced voice and Internet servlces are 

': "enhanced" seflces which need not be tariffed. However, the FCC Is reexamining the "enhanced" 
definition as it relates to IP transport and Covista cannot predict whe.ther the FCC will change the 
classification of such services. 

t .  IntematlonaI' Services. Nondominant carriers such as Covista are required to obtain FCC 
authotization pursuant to Section 214 of the CommunicaUons Act and flle tariffs before providing 
international cornmunlcatlan services. Covista has obtained author@ from the FCC to engaga in . 

' business as a resale and facilnies-based International. carrier to provide voice and data 
communicatlons services between United Stafes and all foreign points. 

. ILEC Prfca 'Cap . ~ a ~ h l f w t  Refon. In 1991, the FCC replaced'traditla~al rate of return regulation . 
for large ILECs with price cap regulation. Under prfce caps, ILECs can raise prfces for certain 
services by only a small percentage each year. In addition, there are constdnts on the pricing of 
llEC setvtces which are wmpetltlve with those of CLECs; In September 1995, the FCC proposed a 
threestage plan whlch would substaritially reduce ILEC prl? cap ~mgulatlon as local markets.become 
Increasingly cdrnpetftive and, ultimately, would resuR'ln granting !LE@ nondomhant stab. Adoptlon 
of the FCC's proposal to reduce significantly its regulation of ILEC. pireing would~significantly enhance 
the ability of IECs to compete against Covista and could have a materlal adverse effect an Codst+ 
The FCC released an order In becernber 1998 that adopted certain of these proposals, Including the 
ellmination of the lower s e & e  band index llmits on price~~ductlons. within the access service 
category. The FCC's December 1996 order also eased the requirements necessary for the 
Introduction of new'sswices by ILECs. In May 1997, the FCC took futther action updatlng and ' 
reforming its prlce cap plan for the ILECs., Among other things, the changes require price cap ILECs . 

to reduce their price cap Indices by 6.5 percent annually, less an adjustment for inflation. The FCC 
also eliminated rules that require I l S s  earning more than certain specified rates of return to "share" 

... . pprUans af.tha.e~esqy@!! their acp? c.i!st,yeR during ,the year In the form of lower access 
- ' ~ e s .  -In Augus!, 1999, the FCC aggn took action designed to g~t'ghater71exibiIfrtyrtY'to ptice.&p--: . .. ..- -- .- -.-. u--- -*--* -h-nnl.4 fmrilitdn tha rarnmwal nf fmm ,arfca 



deaveraglng d rates for setvices in the trunking basket; and rbmoval, upon implementatlorr of toil . 
dialing parity, of cartain Interstate interexchange smkes from prlce cap regulation. These actions 
could have a slgniflcant impact on the Interstate access prices charged by the ILECa with which 
Covista expects to compete. 

A&& cb&ei. Over the past several'years, the FCC ha. granted ILECs slgnlflcant flerilny b 
their pricing of interstate special and switched access aewlces. Under this ptfdng scheme, ILEC~ 
may establish piiclng zones based on access mfffc dens@/ and charge different prices for each zone. 
Covista antlclpates that thk pricing flexibility should result In ILECs lowering thelr prfcea In high traffic 
density areas, the probable area of competfflon with Covista. C O V ~ S ~ ~  also anticipates that the FCC 
will grant ILECs increasing pricing flexibility the number of Interconnecttons and competitors 
Increasea. h May, 1997, the FCC took actlon to reform the Cutrent interstate access charge system. 
The' FCC adopted an order whlch makes various reforms to existing rate structures for Interstate 
access designed to move access charges, over time, to more economically eftlcient rate levels and 
structures. m e  FCC recently granted LECa additional prldng Rexibllyl. A8 such, the caden may 
offer volume discounts whlch may benefit larger long distance caniers. 

. . 
. . The FCC has also lmplemented'changes In Interstate access rules that result in 'restructuring of the 
' 'access charge system and changes In access charge rate levels. As of January 1998, access 

charges incurred by Covista are belng passed on to end users In May 1999, the U.S: Caurt of d hppeals (D.C. circuit) sent the access rate formula back to the F C for further explanation ragardlng 
how certain factors wem calculated. Thsse and related actions. may change access rates. If the 
formula Is upheld, and access rates are reduced, the result will be a lower cost of pravldlng long 
dlstance service, espedauy to business customers. . The Impact of these new changes will not be 
known until they are fully implemented over the nexl several years. In a related pmeedlng, the FCC 
has adopted changes to the methodology by which access has been used In part to subsidize 
universal telephone service and other public pollcy goals. Telecommunlcatlons providers like Covista 
pay fees wlculated as a percentage of revenue to support these goals. The full implicatlons of these 
changes .rernalns uncertain and subject to change. 

PICC. As part of Access Reform mandated in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, beginning In 
1998, local phone companies were permitted to assess the Presubscribed Interexchange Carrier 
Charge, also known as "PICC.' The 'PICC: Is a monthly per line cost charged by the local telephone 
company to every long dlstance qarrfer for each customer phone llne that is pre-subscribed to that 
carrier. PICC charges are billed to the end users. 

Universal Service Refom. In May, 1997, the FCC released an order which reforms the current. 
system of interstate unlversal service support and implements the unlversal service provisions of the 
1998 Act  The FCC established a set of pollcles and rules designed to ensure that lowlncome 
consumers and consumers who live in rural, insular and high-cost areas receive a defined set of local 
telecomrnunicatlons services at affordable rates. This was to be accomplished In pait through 
expansion of dlrect qonsumer subsidy programs and In part by ensuring that rural, small and high-. 
cost LECS contlnue to receive universal service subsldy support The FCC also creed new 
programs to subsldke connection of telecornmunlcatlons networks to ellgible schools, llbrades and 

. rural health care providers. These programs were to be funded by assessment of ellgible revenue of . 
nearlydl providers of interstate telecornmunlcatlons carriers, Includlng Ccvista. 

Covlsta, Ilks other telecommunlcatfons canfers providing .Interstate telemrnunfcations se~ices, Is 
required to contribute a portion of Its end-user telecommuplcations revenue to fund universal servica 
programs. These contributions became due beginning In 1998 for all providers of Interstate 
telecornrnunlcations services. Such contributions were to be assessed based on Intrastate, lntefstate 
and International end user telecommunlcations~ reivenue: Contrfbutlon factors. vary quarterly and 
carriers, indudlng Covista; are billed each monq.. In addltlon, many state regulatory ageqcles have 
Instituted proceedings. to ievlse state universal fund contribution requirements which will vary.frorn - 
state tp state. Recently, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fa Clrcuit rejected we FCCs effort to 
base contrjbutlons in part on Intrastate revenues. The FCC's unlversal senrica program may be 
altered a a result of appeals, agency reconslde~tlon ot its actlons, or future Cangressknal 
legislatfon. . 

Pursuant to the Universal Servhe Order, all carriers are required to submit a universal Service Fund 
worksheet. 'Covista has filed its Universal Service Fund worksheet. The amounts remitted to the 
Universal Service Fund are billed to Covista's customers. Covista Is ellgible to qualify as a redpient 

. - ..-. .-- - -  . ...... . . ..... . iiP ~ i ; l i i ~ s ; j S . ~  support E - it ~ l w k  .to provide -:aciljfies-based s6nrice to amis - cissignat~d fa--- 
.. . unhiarsak service~suaaort and if it cornrjlles wlth federal and state regulatory requirements to )re an -, 



~ n e , . ~ h a h g .  In November, 1999, the FCC adopted a new order requiring ILECs to provlde . 
sharing, whlch will dlow CLECs to offerdata services over the same line the consumer uses far mice " 

. . senrlces, without the CLECs being required to offer the voice services. State comrnisslons have been. 
authorized to establish the prices to the CLECs for such S0nriCes. The declsion has been appealed. 

State ~eau la t lo~  - 
Some states In which Covista operates are considering legislation whlch could impede efforts by . 

new entrants In the local services market to compete effectively with ILECs. However, Covlsta does'not have any 
- . . Intention to pursue the local servlces market. 

Cornpilance with Environmental Provfslons 
Company believes that it complles in all material respects with current pertinent federal, state, and local ' 

provlslons relating to the pratedon of the environment and does not belleve that continued compliance would 
require any material capital expenditure. 

Subsequent Events 

A joint proxy statementtpmspectus dated Januaty 9,2002 and mailed to stockholders on or about January 
11, 2002 detailed a merger agreement between Covista and Capsule Comrnunicatlons, Inc. which had been 

.approved by the Covista and Capsule boards of directors. Capsule Is a telecommunications carrier pmvidlng local 
and long-distance telephone communications senrlces primarily to small- and medium-size business customers as 
well as residential customers utilizing its own equipment. Capsule pmvides inbound Iongdlstance services and 
local resale setvlces as well as other telecommunications aenn'ces including calling cards, cellular, paging, Internet 
senrice, dedfcated.access, data services, and carrier termination senrlces. Capsule uses its own switch located in - Philhdelphia to originate, transport and terminate calls for customers generally located in the Mld-yantlc region 

. and In' Califomla. For calls orlglnatlng or terminating outside Its own netwark, Capsule resells setvlces provided by 
'other Iongdlstance companies; Capsule is'the successor corporation .to US Wats, Inc. During the scheduled 
annual meeting of .stockholders on February 8, 2002, the merger was approved by the requisite vote of 
stockholders of Covista and Capsule. The merger was consummated on-February 8,2002. . . 

On February 12, 2002, Covista announced a reductfon In force of 26% of its New YorkMew Jersey 
warMorce related to a reduction In revenue due to the decilne In, the wholesale iiiarket and the World Trade Center 

. attack of September 11,2001' and the move of operations to Tennessee. ' 

PERSONNEI, : 

As of the Apnl 15, 2002, Covista and Its subsldlaries employed.243 full-time and part-time employees in . . 
its long distance telecommunication business, of whom 20 were engaged In sales activities, 82 In customer setvice ' . 

and support, 52 in technical and field services,' 22 in data pro~essing, and 67 In general and administrative 
activities. Covista also utilizes the services of approximately 950 Independent sales agents. Covlsta considers its 

. . . . wlBt!Ows ~\(tf,.ii;. be sa#&,&qf ...- . . -. - --.. . ... . .... . .i -..*. *--.. --... ...-... . .----- . .  . . . .  . h . -- .. . , . . .  





On October 11,1999, Covista .entered Into a three year lease, ~0mmencfng October 1 1,1999 leasing 1,926 square 
. feet of space at 1810 Chapel Avenue West, Chew Hill, New Jersey. Rental payments are $38,520 per annum 

from October 11,i1999 to October 31,2002. There Is atraption to renew for three years, upon nine monthsB pdor . , 
i 5. written notice; The lease requires the payment of the t e n d 3  pmportlonate share d increased apemtlng expenses . 

.. and real estate taxes overthe base year. Covista has sublet this space to another tenant. . . 

Cbvista had entered .Into a'lease agreement for €IppI'oximatelY 28,000 ,square feet of office space In ' 
... . Chattanooga, Tennessee, with Henry Q. Luken Ill Chalrman of the Board and a pdncipal shareholder ot Cavista. 

term ~f the lease Is for flve years beginning September 1,2001. The lease provides for annual rent of $86,400 from 
September 1, 2001 to Auguat 30, 2002; $115,200 from September 1, 2002 to August 30, 2003; $144,000 from . 

September 1,2003 to August 30, 2004, with the last two years to be $I,M,000 annually adjusted for the Consuiner ' 

P b  Index. Covista believes that such premises are leased On terms not less favorable than an arm's ,length 
transaction. , 

. - . - 
. . 

. . 
ITEM 3. Pendina G a l  ~mcdedinas 

There are no pending legal proceedings that could be expected to have a material adveme effect on 
Covista. 

lTEM4. . Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securihr Holders 

A joint proxy staterneni/pmspectus dated January 9,2P02 and mailed to stockholders on or about January 
11, 2002 detailed a merger agreement between Coviataand Capsule Cornmunicatlons, Inc. which had been 

. . approved by the Covista and Capsule boqds of dlrectots, During the scheduled annual meeting of stockholders 
an Feb~ary 8,2002, the merger was approved by the requisite vote of stockholden of Covista and Capsule. The 
merger was consummated on Febmary 8,2002. Other matters presented to stackholders 'Included electlon of 
eight directors of Cwista , adoption of the 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and to ratify the selection of Deloitte & . 
Touche UP as Independent audltors of Covista for the ffscal year ending January 31,2002. 



PART I1 - 

ITEM 5. Market for Comoanv's Common Stock and Related SeeurHv Helder Matters 
I 

Common Stock 

m D 8  a ~ o &  capi&I stmk cons& solely of SO,OOO,OW sham of W m m n  SmdL Holden pt . 
Cwista's Common Stack are entitled to receive such dividends, if any, as may bedeclad from time to time by the 
Board of Directors In its dlscretlon from fun& legally available-therefor. Each holder of Common Stack la entitled to 

.onevjtefor each share held. There Is no rlght to ~Umul&e VOth'lg. Upon Ilquldatlon, dlssolullon, or winding up of 
Covlsta, the holden of Camman Stack are entitled to receive a pm rats share of all assets available for dlstributfon to 
stockholden. The Common Stock has no pre-empthre or other subscn'pUon dghts, and there are no canversion or 
redemption rights with respect to such shares. 

Ek-e an ~ u t y  15, 1998, Covista distributed 4207,887 shares of Common Stack In connection with a 2- 
for-1 stock split of all butstanding shares as of June 30,1998. As of the date of this report, there mre  12,636,949'- : 

' . . shares of Common Stick Issued and outstanding, held by 840 persons, as reported'by Cavlsta's transfer agent L 

.Pdie:~ange of the Carnmon.~tock 

~&sta% Common Stock. Is traded In the der-the-counter market on the NASDAQ National Market 
-..System under the Symbol CVST. The following table sets forth, for the quarteriy ffscal peuods Indicated, the high 

and low closing sales prices for Covista'a Common Stock in such market, as reported by the National Assoclatfon 
of Securities Dealers, Inc. 

FISCAL 2QOZ 

February 1,2001 thm April 30 $ 

May 1 thru July 31 

August 1 thru'october 31 . 

November 1 thru January 31,2002 

FISCAL 2001 

. February 1,2000 thru April 30 

May 1 thnr July 31 . 

August 1 thru dctober 31 . 

November 1 thru January 31s2001 

HlGH - 
6.188- . $ 

725 

10.25 

10;25 

HlGH - 
15.00 

12.375 

9.50 ' 

4.9375 ; 

LOW . - 
1 :547 % 

LOW - 
. 9.1875 

6.00 . 

. 3.625 

Covista has not pdd 'or declared b y  cash dlvlde'nds during the past hnro fiscal years and does not. 
anticipate paying any In the foreseeable Mure. 



ITEM 8. Selected Finahdal D m  ' . . . . a 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Year ended Januaw3l. . . 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS: - .  2001 2000 ' 1999 .. 1998 

Net sales . $ ,95,313 $ . 133,230 $ 139,760 $. 137,283 $ 123,288 

Net (Loss) mining? -. $. 4 <l1,970) $ (8,829) -- $ ( 9 , )  $ (3,418) $ 1,094 
! ' * -  

Weighted average . 
common shares ..- 4 

outatandlng (a) 

Basic i . . 10.~4 7,324 . 7,069 . . 8,818 6,213 . . . .  . . ' . L  

onute~! . 10,204 7,324 7,069 . 8,818 6,842 

(LOSS) earnings per common and 
C 

. . . .  
common equivalent shares 

Basic (Lass] earnings per share $ (1.17) $ (1.18) - $ (1.33) $ 

Diluted (Loss) earnings per share $ (1.17) $ (1-18) $ ' $ (0.50) ' , $ 0.1 6 ' 

Cash dhridends per 
common share . None None None None .. None 

Addftlons to pkperLy 
& equipment 

Depreciation and 
amortization 

Working Capital $ (11,327) $ (7,734 $ 1,222 $ 1,261 $ 7,938 ' 

Property and equipment - net $ 12,490 $ 13,021 $ 13,317 $ 14,473 $ 12,406 

a Total assets $ 31,257 . $ 39,097 $ 45,184 $ 45,692 $ 40,2451 

$ 4,400@) $ 382 $ 997 $ 1,568 $ 2,092 . ' Long-term debt .. . . .  . . 
Shareholders' Equity 4 . $-. 1,569 $ 5,777 $ 14,O07 $ . 16,442 $ 18,598 ' 

' / .  
Common sham 

outstanding (a) . 



ITEM 7. Manaaement'$ Discussion and Anahrsls of Financial Conditfon arid Resub of Oueratlons 

The following discussion is presented b assist in assessing the changes in ffnandal condition and 
performance of Covista for the fiscal years ended January 31,2000 (Fncal209Q) and January 31,2001 (~iscal 
2001) and January 31, 2002 (Fiscal 2002). The following hfonnath should* be read in .conjunMon with the 
financial statements and related notes and otlwr detailed Informath ~gardlng Covista Included elsewhere In this 
report and should not be constnred to Imply managements belief that the results, causes or trends presented will 

. . necessarily continue In the future. Certain lnformation contained below and elsewhere in this annual report, 
including Information with respect to Covlsta's p h s  and strategy for Its bwiness, are "fonnrardlooking statements." . . - 

Statement of '~nancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, Accounting for Derfvative lnstwmenta and 
Hedging 'Activities, is effective for all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133, as amended, 
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivathm Instruments, indudlng certain derivative instruments 
embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities. Under SFAS 133, certain contracts that were not formerly + 

considered derivatives may now meet the deflnltfon of a deeaUve. Covlsta adopted SFAS 133 effedive February * 

.* 1,2001. The adoption of SFAS 133 dld not have a signflflcant impact on the fl nanclal positlon, results of operation, ' 
or cash flows of. CovIsta. 

ln ~ u n e  h01, the Rnanclal ~ & u n t i n ~  Standatth Board ASB') hued statement of Flnandai ~&un t ln~  Standards Sr No. 141 ("SFAS 141m), 'Business Ccmblnadons.' SFAS 41 requires the purchase method of accounting for business 
combinations lnitlated after June 30,2001 and eliminates the poollngsf-interests methad Cavista does not belleve that 
the adoption of SFAS 141 yvill have a significant iInpaC1 on its flnandd statements, beyond the cessatfon of goodwill 
amortization on future buslness combinations. As of January 91,2002 Covista has no Goodwill recarded on Rs books. 

In June 2W1, the FASB hued ~tatement of Rnandd h ~ n t i n g  Stan- No. 142 ("SFAS 1427, 'Goodwi1I and 
Other Intangible Assets', whlch Is effective February 1, 2002 SFAS 142 requires, among other things, the 
discontinuance of goodwill amortization. In additlon, the standard lndudes p~~vislons for the reclassification of certain ' 

existlng recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lhres of eAstlng recagnlzed intangibles, 
reclassiRcatfon of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and the Identiffcatlon of reporting units for 
purposes of assessing potential future lmpalrments of goodwill. SFAS 142 also requires Covista. to complete a 
transitional goodwill impairment test sk months from the date of adoption. Covista is currently assessing but has n~t.yet 
determined the impact of SFAS 142 on its fl nancIal positlon and results of operations. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Rnanclal Accounting Standards No. 143 ('SFAS 143"). 'Accounting for 
Asset Retirement Obllgatlond', which Is effective for all tlscal years beginning Febiuary 1,2003. SFAS 143 requires 
recording the fair value of a liability for an asset retlrernent obllgatfon in the period in whlch it is Incurred, and a 
cbrresponding.1ncrease in the wnylng value of the related long-lived asset Over time, the llabiiity la accreted to' its . 
present value each perlod, and the capitalized cost Is depredated over the .useful life of the related asset. Upan 
settlement of the liablty, It Is either settled for Its recorded amount or a gain or loss upon settlement is recorded. 
Covista Is currently assessing but has not yet determined the impact cd SFAS 143 on ils financial positlon and results of , 
operations. . 

.'In Wber~2001, the FASB Issued Statement of Flnandal Accounihg h d a r d s  No. 144 ('SFAS I#'), ' Accounting 
- for the impairment or Disposal c$ .Long Uved Asset& which Is eff&e February 1,2002. SFAS 144 replaces the 

Statement of Finandal b u n t i n g  Standards No. 121, Accountfn for the Impairment of Long Uved Assets and for B Long-Lived Assets to be Dlsposed Or. SFAS 144 requires th? onglived assets be measured at the lower of the 
canying amount or falr value, less cost to sell, whether Included in continukg operatlons or In dlscontfnued opemtlans. 
%vista Is cumntly assessing but has not yet determined the impact of SFAS 144 on ita finandal position and results of 
operatlons. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenues 

Net sale8 of telecomrnuiiwtiqns services for UIa I t a d  year ended Janhy 31,2002 were appmxlmately 
$95,313,000, a decrease d approximately $37,917,000 or 28.5% from the approximately $133,230,000 of net 

.. . . . . sales In Fbd 2001. Thezs :-vences i w a  comt;r',-6d.d re44: saltis of approxlm&toly $47,424,0(30. and wholesale ' 
Sales of ao~roxknatelv $47.889.CaG. Covista hilid aobroximatelv 1.075.758.000 minutes In Fiscal 2002 as 



. cost of d e s  conststs of access fees, llne Installation exwnses, switch expenses, ~ e h o r k  opera& . 
-a Certter'(*NOC ) pxpenses, network depredation, tmsport expenses, and local and long-dlstance expenses. cast 

of sales for Fiscal 2002 was approximately $76,476,000, a decrease of appmhnately $39,583,000 or 34.1% fCcm 
the approximately $1 16,059,000 of cost of sales In Fiscal 2001. Included In cost of sales are direct tine costs, 
usage charges and the djrect costs of Covista's switches and NOC. The decrease In cost of sales was primarily 
due to .the decrease in lower margin wholesale volume of a~~~oximately $24,401,000; a decrease In technician 

. . salary, wages. and Mnge benefits of appmximately $48,000; dm'eased consulting expense of approximately 

. . $174,000 an Improvement In rates obtained from vendom of ap~mxlmateb $15,298,000 ; other nef savings In the 
NOC and switches of approximately $123,000; an Increase In Fiepreciation expense resulting from upgrades to the 
switches of approximately $130,000; an lncrease in equipment rental I'eSLIltlng from a switch saldeaseback 
agreement in the amount of appmxlmately $329,000; and the effed of the access charge settlement kcorded In 
F l s d  2001. 

~elilng, General and Admlnisttative: . 
' 

- .  

Selling, general and administrative (g (3 & A) expenses are compdsed of selling and marketing costs, and 
general and administrative costs. S, G & A expenses for Fiscal 2002 lncreased to approximately $30,987,000, an 
lncrease of approxlmately $4,083,000 or 152% from the approximate $26,903,000 In Rscal2001. This lncrease 
was primarily due to Increases in salary, wages and benefits due to h e  new residential senrice and call center 
being established In Tennessee of approximately $412,000; a $570,000 severance accrual established for New 
YoMNew Jersey staff reductlons taking place In fiscal 2003; an ihcrease in marketing cost related. to new 
residentlal setvice of approximately $177,000; and lncrease In general office expense of approximately $272,000; 
an lncrease In'bad debt expense of $2,758,000 due to the write off of a portfon of certain carrier receivables; an 

. increase In depreciation and amortization due to amortltatlon of customer llsts (from customer llsts acquired from 
Blink Data Cotporatlon) of approximately $731,000; and an lncrease In travel and entertainment of approxlmately 
$98,000. Jhese Increases were offset by reductlons In commissions due to decreased sales volume of 
approximately $497,000; decreases In seillng expense of approximately $90,000; and a decrease in professional 
fees and consuWng of $252,000. , 

Stock Compensation ~ x ~ e n s e  

Stock compensation expenses far Flacal 2002 de&eased to. appro.xlmately $12,000, a decrease of 
approximately $255,000, or 95.5%, fmm the approximately $267,000 charged In Rscal2001. The decrease Is due - to a majority of stock grants behg fully vested. 

.Other. Income and Expense t .  . . 
: 
I Total other Income, net for Fiscal 2002 lnctyx%d approximately $88,000. The components of other 

income and expense are Interest expense, interest Income an.d other items. Interest Income decreased 

. - 1  
approximately $8,000; interest expense Increased approximately $137,000; and gains on sales of securities 

- .  . .. .inc dAmaI.div $-&' 2,* tlO.," .-." - ' ' " - -  . . ,. .-. ----.-. -.. .. .' .. - -. . _ . _ _ -  . .. .._ --.- -... - - 
_ .  - .  . ..* . . . . . I 



Net Loss 

The net lcor for Fiscal 2&2 of & p d m a t e l ~  $11,970,000 represents an lncrease h net 1- of 
approximately $3,340,000 over the net loss of approximately $8,629,000 reported In Rscal2001, based on the 
explandons of changes above. 

. ..':,,, : 
. . . RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

r q . ,  I.:.: 4 FISCAL 2001 AS C0,MPARED TO FISCAL 2000 . .  . 
Revenues - , - 

Net sales of telecommunicatforis services and systems for the flscal year ended Januay 31,2001 were + 

approximately $133,230,000, a decrease of' approximately $6,~30,000 or 4.7% from the approximately 
- $139,760,000 of net sales In Rscal 2000. These revenues were comprised of retail sales of appmximately 

$53,487,000 and wholesale sales of approximately $19,743,000. Covista billed approdmately 1,255,437,000 
. mlnuteg im Rscal 2001 as compared- to approximately 1,242,942,000 mlnutes, in Fiscal 2000, an lncrease of 
12,495,UOO minutes or 1.0%. j 

. . 
Net 'ratdl sales for Rs& 2001 were appridrnate~ $53,487,OW, a '  decrease of appmdmateiy 

$15,536,000, or 22.5% from the approximately $69,023,000 billed in Rscal 2000. Retail billed minutes were 
approximately 600,381,000, a decrease of approximately 00,333,000 minutes or 11.8%. from the retail minutes of 
approximately 680,714,000 billed In Fiscal 2000. The average prlce per minute has decreased approximately 
13.8% as the industry continues to experience decreased price per minute of usage. Covista does not foresee that 
this trend in pricing wiU abate in the near future. ' 

Net wholesale (carrier) sales for Fiscal 2001 were approximately $79,743,000,, &I increase of 
approximately $9,008,000 OF 12.72 over the approximately $70,737,000 billed In Fiscal 2000. Billed wholesale 
minutes amounted to approximately 655,055,000, an ln~rea~e of apptoximately 92,828,000 minutes or 16.5% over 
the billed wholesale minutes of approximately 562,227,000 billed in Fiscal 2000. The sales mix continued to move 
toward higher priced international traffic from the lower priced domestic trafflc. International carrier traftic Increased 
177,976,000 minutes or approximately 46.9% to approxlmately 557,669,000 minutes. Domestic minutes decreased 
apprdximately 05,149,000 or approxirnately 46.6% to approximately 97,387,000 minutes. The average wholesale 
prlce per minute fell 4.1% due to continuing competition in the industry, a trend, which Covista believes, will 
continue.. 

, , 
Cost of Sales 

. . 
. Cost of saka consists of access fies, 'line lnstallaticn expenses, &ch expenses, .NOC 'expenses;' 

network depreciation, transport expenses, and local and long-dlstance expenses. Cost of sales for Fiscal2001 was 
, approldmateiy ' $1 1 6,059,000, an increise of approximately $3,265,000 or 2.9% over the approximately 

$1 12,794,QOO. of cast of sales ln  Rscal2000. Included In cost of sales are dlred.Ilne costs, usage charges end the . 
' direct costa of Covlsta's ,switches and NOC. The Incpase In cost of sales was primarily due to the increase In lower 
: .margin wholesale volume of approxlmately $10,319,000; Increases In salary, ,wages and fringe henelits of' 

approximately $88l,OOO; Increased consuWng expense of approximately $178,000, and an increase in depreciation 
expense resulting from upgrades 40 the switches of approximately $289,000. Thls was offset' by the iedliced 
volume of retail trafflc amounting to approximately $6,297,000; an improvement in cost rates obtained from vendon 

: of approximately $2,924.000 and other net savings in the NOC and switches of approximately $131,000. 
. . .  . . . , I .  

Accass Charge SetUemenk 
. . . . I . . . 

' 

In the second quarter of the flswl year ended January 31, 2001, Covista received .a cash payment of. 
$1,264,483 from certain Bell Companies In seti!ement of a dass actfan suit, to which Covlsta'was a party, flied In 1992 
relating to alleged overcharges by those companies. The settlement concluded the class action with the' Bell 
Companies. Covista'a portion of.the settlement was not determined until the second quarter of the flscal year. The.cash 
payment .was recordsd as a separate line item as a redudion of costs and eqmnses In the quarter ended July 31, 
2000. 

Selllng, General and Administrative: 
.- . , . .. . ._ ., . . .. . . - . .- .... _--- - -. .... ....... ,... . . ... . -- . .. .-. .- ..".*I .. . - . . , . . ._ , -  .-_.__.__._.__... I . . .  ..-._ - 
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Stock Compensatlon Expense 
P 

Stock cornpensatlon expenses for Ascai 2001 hcmsed to appmximateiy $267,000, & increase of 
. approximately $63,000, or 30.9%. from the appmximateiY $2W000 chwed  in Fiscal 2000. The increase ~s due to 

having fewer cancellations of certain restricted stock grants to employees in the current year over the prfor year. 

Other Cornpensatlon 

On September 21,1999, Covista entered Into an agreement with Warren Feldrnan, the then Chairman of the 
Board of Directors and a shareholder of Covista. As part of this agreement, a lump sum payment In the then amount of 
$900,000 was made to Mr. Feldman in settlement of his 8mplo~ment agreement. Covista paid $650,000 and Mr. Walt 
Anderson, a major shareholder, paid $250,000. Mr. Feldrnan's Employment Agreement was to have been in effect until 
December 31,2001. Covista expensed $900,000 In nscal2000 with $250,000 being accounted for as a capital 
contribution. 

Slmuttaneausly, Revision LLC and Mr. Walt Anderson ("RevisionlAndersan")d Covista entered Into Put 
Option agrsernents with Warren Feldman, Sal Feldman ("the FeldmanO and Lean Genet, ("Genet") a director of 
Covista These Put Option agreements allowed the Feldmans and Genet the right to sell their shares of Covista to 
Revision/Anderson at a price of $16.00 per share and obligated RevisionlAnderson to purchase the shares during an 
exercise period beginning on December 11,1999 and endlng an Feb~ary ld,'2000. Revlsion/Anderson purchased the 
shares under the put option agreements prior to the expimtion, with the exception of 100,778 shares still held by the 
Feldmanq. Covista had no obligation to purchase any shares from the Feldmansor Genet. The closlng market price of 
Covista's shares on September 21,1999, the date of the agrsements, was $1225, and the total number af shares 
covered by the agreements was 1,206,137. Using a binomial valuation model with an interest rate of 5% and a wlatllity 
rate of 50%, the fall: value of the Put Option agrsements was determined to be $4.03 per share or $4,870,554. Covista 
accbunted forthis noii-cash transadon as a charge to expense and a credit to paid-in cap;M dudng Fiscal 2000. 

. . 
Other Income and Expense * ' 

Total ither lncome and Gense  for Fi& 2001 increased a&xirnately $135,000. The components of 
other Inwrne'and expense are interest expense, Interest Income and other items. Interest income Increased 
approximately $52,000;, lnterest expense decreasd apprqximately -$42,000; and. approximately $41,000 In 

. Insurance claims were received. . I .  .. . . 
Net Loss 

The net loss for Fiscal '2001 of apprqdmately '$8,629,000 represents a decrease In net ldss of 
approxlmaiely $785,000 from me net loss of approximately $9,414,000 reported In Fiscal 2000, based on the 
explanation of changes above. 

LlQUlDlN AND CAPITAL RESOURCES . ' 

. - . . . .. . . ..--. _ . . ., . . . .. . ,. . * . . ... . . . . . .. . -. .- - . . . . . .-. . . ... - .. _. . . , . _.. _ _*_ . _ .... .- . ---- r - > 
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a teducffon In lmrestments of appioximateiy $97,000; a reductfon awairnts recahrable of. approximately $9,361,000; 
an Increase in prepaid .qensss of approximately $149,000; an Increase In allowance for doubtful of 
approximately $912,000; and an Increase In accrued IlabultIes of a~~mxirIIatel~ $~,600,0M). Akso affecting womng ' 
capital were an increase In nates receivable of approximately $500,000 fMm Capsule Communlcatlons Inc; a reductfan 
In accounts payables of approximately $8,496,000: a ck!~reaae amrued sd?ries and WWes of approximately 
$313,000; and a decrease h current poriion d long term debt of $234,000. The current ratio of 0.5 ta 1, decreased fmm. 
the 0.8 to 1 mtlo at the end of Fiscal 2001. 

. On ~ebruary 21,2002, covlsta announced that on Febwty 20,2002. its B o d  of ~ i ~ & s h a c l  approved the 
private sale of additional Common Stock of up to $12,500,0W. The Investment will Include a cash lnfuslcn of 

' $4,80O,U00;. contributton .of $3,300,000 of Rxed assets for debt Or Common St& and the wnversian of all existing 
long-term d& for debt or Common Stock to Common Stack at the rate of $6.00 per share, whlch was the dosing pike 
for the Common Stock on the date authorized by the Board. The commitment for funding for the Investment and the 
conversion of the indebtedness Is anticipated to come primam fmm the current Chairman of Cov&tals Board or hls 
deslgneels and Is subject to shareholdets appmval at the next Annual Meetlng, or a specid medng of Shareholders to 
be convened for such purpose. As of May 14 2002, $2,600,000 of cash was recelued from the Chairman of Covista's . 
Board in exchange for debt. .Finally, the company Is planning to obtain a llne of credit fmm a bank H such line of credit 
la not obtained, the Chairman of thie Board has committed to loanlng $2 InillIan to the Company through at least the I 

sec0n.d quarter of fiscal 2W4. ' 

J 

. Cdsh now Statement . . 
. . 

The cash flow statement of Covlsta for Fiscal 2002 indicated a decrease In cash and cash equivalents of 
approximately $1,313,000. Nan-cash adjustments (depreciation, amorttzation, reserve for bad debt, non:cash 
compensation expense, and gain on Investments,) of approximately $9,697,000 and net changes h assets and 
llabllitfes of approximately $1,690,000 added back to the net loss of approximately $11,970,000 resuited In net 

. . cash used by operations of approxlmately $3,963,000. Cash used In Investing actlvltles amounted to approximately 
$7,477,000, of'which approximately $5,465,000 were used for the purchase of capital additions and approximately 
$56,000 was used for the purchase of addltlonal circuits tb build out the network, the proceeds from sale 
investments of approximately $1.16,000, a note from .Capsule Communications, a related party, of $500,000 and 
payment far prepaid network capacity of $4,000,000. These additions were partially offset by proceeds from and 
the sale of fixed assets of approximately $2,338,000. The cash used In financing activities of approximately 
$10,128,000 consisted primarily of the repayment of bank borrowings of approximately $616,000, offset by cash 
received fram the exerclse of stock optlons of approximately $43,0_00, proceeds from the Issuance of Cdmm0n 
Stock of $6,300,000, a note payable to a related party of $4,400,000. 

Accounts Receivable 

Tha Company has entered into offset arrangements with certain customers, who are also vendors, 
allowing for the ability to offset payable balances against the Company's receivable balances. 

The retail segment of ~chlsta experience an appmxlmate account5 receivable tumover of 53 days;.while 
the wholesale segment has an accounts receivable turnover of 64 days. I 

CRlTlCAL ACCOUNTING POUCIES . 

Revenue Recognition ' . . . 
. 'I 
I  he' Company's revenues, net of sales discounts, & recognized in ihq petlqd in whth the s e w  Is 

:: -:I . . provided, based on the number of minutes of t e l e c o m m u n ~ o ~  traffic canled, and a rate per min,ute. Access and 
. I 
!$, I other service fees charged to customers, typically monthly, are recognized in the period in whlch service Is provlded. 
. . 
*-:. 1 : . 
.. '1  ~ e f e r k d  Une lnstallatlon Costs . ... 
>>.i 1 
-:< i Deferred llne lnstallatlon casts are costs incurred by the Covista for new facilltles and costs Incurred for 
. ...I connections from within the Covista's network to the network of other telecqnimunlcatfon suppliers (such as 

! Vedzon, MFS, GTE and other caniers). AmorQatlon of these line lnstallatlon costs Is provided using the straight- 
< .  I ... - . ... !!:a .me&!od 0~3: fro conmt. lifs of t$e.lbes ranging from t h ~ e  to fhLn  ye^^; . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ....., .............. .- . 

i . . . . . .  ., . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  . ., : : . . 



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES . . 

I Capital &enditurea for Fiscal 2002 w e d  apprbdmatehl ~,48~,000, .and were financed fmm funds 

. . provided from. Covista's working capital, sale and lease back of two switches, and a private sale of equity and a 
:. 

. . loan. The capit& expenditures wece used for the addiilon of the IP network of appmxlmately $168,000; upgrades 
: . 
I 

.. to Covlsta's switches.and switch sites of apprdrnateb $4,439,000; ~0fLWate and hardware upgr'ades ta Covlst& 

.. computer network..of approximately $304,000; and fimiture, fkb~res and equipment for new sales offices of ; 

approximately $51 1;000, . . and other funiiture p d  fWures of $43,000. 

, . Capital expenditures for Fiscal 2003 are estimated at ~~~roX.imat01~ $5,000,000 and are expecbed to be @ 

financed from fundsprovlded from operations, and a cash inf~sion of $4,800,000 from a related party of Covista. 

lnflatlon 

. .  . Since inflathi has slowed In recent years, Covlsta does not believe that Its buslnek has been materially 
affected by the relatively modest rate of price Increases in the economy. However, pressures in the Industry to 
reduce prices, which have impacted Covtsta in the past, are expected to contfnue. Also the telecommunications 
Industry has recently experienced the 'failure of several businesses, some d which are Covista's wholesale 

. customer and suppliers. These failures not only have affected Covista's FY 2002 results, but may Impact future 
results. Covista continues to seek improvements in operatlons and efficiency through capital expenditures. 
Expenditures to Improve the signaling system, information systems and the hcal area network are expected to 
result In operating costs savings, which could partially offset any future cost Increases. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATIERS , 

Covlsta is. not a party to any legal pmceedlngs or the subject of any &dm regarding' envimnmsntal 
matters generally incidental' to Yts business. 1n.the oplnlon of Management, compliance with. the present 
envlronmental protection laws should not have a material adverse effect upon the flnanclai condltfon of Covista 

. . 
r. 

. . 

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DMasures About ~ a r k e i  Rlslq . 

Market ikmpresents the risk of changes.ln value 4 a financial Inshumeht, det(vat& or n&-deltva~ve, 
caused by fluctuations In interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Covista's cash and investments 
exceed long-term debt; 'therefore, the exposure to Interest rate risk relates primarily to the marketable aecuritles 

'held by Covista. Covista only Invests In instruments wtth high credit quallty where a secondary market exists.. 
Covista does not hord any derivatives related to Rs Intemst rate exposure. Covista also maintains long-term debt at 
.flxedmtea. Due to the nature and amounts of Covista's note payable, an Immediate 10% change In Interest rates 
would not have a material effect In Covista's results of operatlons over the next fiscal year. Coylsta's exposure to 
adverse changes In forelgn exchange rates 1s also immaterial todie consolidated statements as a whole. 

ITEM 8. . - .- ..- .- ..RfianaIal .Statommts and Si.!~fIf8ms~tzw-D&t~ . - . . .. . . .__. C .. . _ _ .- ....._ . - ... .-. 
. .  . - - . .... . 



.. ' 1 . -  

. . . '  .- . 
I r r i ~  9. Chames fn and Dlsaateements With Accountants an Acthuntha and Financial Dlsclosur~ 
I 

I Not applicable. . . 
i 
I 

. . . . 
-ITEM Id. .~ l re io rs  and Executive Officers of Cavlsta, I .. . . 

The dfrectors and officers of Covista are as follows: 
. . !:'I. . . Name. ASE position . . . . 

.?j Henry G; Lubn 111 ' .40 Chairman of the Board' . 
: I  ' . . . . 
iJ . .,. . 1 . . .  
,I A. John Leach, Jr.. 38 Director, President, Chief Executive Officer 

: .! 
b .  . . 

.I Kevin Alward . 35 Shief Operatlng Oflicer and Director '1 ,I _ 

 ona aid Jones . 

.: 4 68 .Director ' Jay J. Mnler $" 

'1 il 
. Nlcholas .Menfck 38 ~lrector .!I? 

Thomas P. Gunning 
. . 

< t: 
'I.. 

I,.. 

I&': :* 
$! 

66 Director. 

64 Treasurer, Secreta~y and Chief Financial Officer 

. . 
WE@ Anderson . 46 Director . 

. . 

&ton Genet 70 . Director 

i - Covista's directors all ?eke for one year terms and until their successors are elected and qualib. Offlcers serve at 
i the pleasure of the Board of Directors. ' ' 

" I 
..I . ./ .. . Henry G. Luken, Ill was elected-a Dlredor of Covlsta In ~ebruazy, 1999, and ~h4rrnan of the Board In 

! .  February, 2001. Currently, he 1s President of Mont Lake Properties, Inc., a real estate development firm;a director 
of Equity Broadcasting Gorp., a N network; a dlrector of ACMV, .a home shopping, hrnpany seillng through TV; ' 

Managing Agent of Henry IV LLC, an aircraft sales:company. A co-founder of Telco Communications Group Inc., 
he sewed as Chief .Executive Officer and.Treasurer from July, 199330 Aprll, 1996, and Chairman from July, 1.993 

: I 
to October, 1997. ' Mr. Luken has also. sewed Chairman of Tel-Labs, Ina, a te!ecommunicatlons billing firm . 

: I .. 1 (TeCLabs~ since W91, and as Chairman of Telco Development Group, Inc., a computer systems firm owned by 
Mr. Luken, dnce tS87, both of wtilch enUtla he founded . . 

. '1 . .  . .  ' ..- , 
2.:. i . "  
,. . 
'4 Walt Anderson v& elected a ~ l redor  of Covl&a In Februqty, 1999, and aa Chairman of the Board b 

November, 1999..Me ,stepped'down asctiairman In February, 2001. He has been Manager of Revislon LLC from 
94 : ' June 1998 to tha present; President and Chairinan of Entree Internattonal Ud. (Rn€inclal Consulting Senrlks) from 

I 

-I July, 1997 to the present; Chairman of Capsule Comrnunlcatlans, Inc, as of April 2001, Chairman of Teleport UK 
Ud. (Satellite Communlcatlons) from May, 1996 to the present; Chairman-of Esplrit Telewm Gmup plc. (Telecom 
Setvices) from October, 1992 to November, 1998 and Presldent and Chairman, Mld Atlantlc Telecom (Telcicom 

. Services), from May, 1 984 to December, 1993. Mr. Andemon'lg also a director of Amedcan Technology. Labs 
(Network Equipment) and Aquarfuit Holdlngs M. (Water Transport Systems), i . . .. . 

Leon ~ e n e t  haa -wed as a ~rsdor  &ber, 1998: ~ a r  more than the past five yemi he h& been a 
partner in Genet Really, a comrnerdaland industrfal real estate brokerage flrm. He selves & a member of the Natlonal 
Commerce and Industry Board forthe State of 1srael.Bonds 0rganizatlon.and Is a shareholder, di&r and officer of 
LPJ Communlcatlons, Iric., Wlch has earned commissions from C O W  on the sama basis as other Independent sales 
representatives. See "Certaln RelatIonshlps and Related Tmnsadfons"; 

! 
../. .. . ..- - .. -,.... . .. . . .- ... ..,.. .A b h n . ~ & ~  jr. w a ~  appointee! PW&FI~ md CUs! hxc.$iveSfIcer a d  ~ O I , W O F - ~ ~  k . o n  May--- 

.'I - . , .. 18.2000. He had been Senior Vlce Piesldent of We8 at BT1 Tslecomm. Ina. from December, 1999'to May, 2000; 



.that, Mr. Gach was Vlca President of ~ ~ a n t  Servicesat BTI Telemmm from Dkmber, 1989 lo June, 1996; hgional 1. 
Sales Manager of Mobilecomm (a Bell South CO~PW)  where he sh&d in sales 'and m.S t~ a.Raglonal Sales 
Manager positlon May, 1985 to December, 1989. . . 

. . 
~hom& P. ~ u n &  was appdntid VIca President, secretary l ~reasurer of ~ods ta  h May 1898. ~ s j  "- 

appointed Chief nnancial Officer in September, 1994 and senred in that capacw until May Of 1999.' He was agdn 
appointed Chief Rnancial Officer in May of.2000. He Was appointed Smr$ta~ of Covista In Janurily of 1996, He 
has served as Controller of Covista since September, 1992. He Is a Certified Public Accoun&int licem'qd by tfie 
States of New York and New Jeney; From 1989 until joining Covista, Mrb Gunnlng was the Senior AudR Manager 
d Rosenbeg Seisman & Company, a certiiied publlc accounting firm: From 1978 to 1989, he was Chief ~ f l ~ c l ~ l '  
Officer of Flyfaire, In&rporated, a travel wholesale operator. Prior to S~ch time, Mr. Gunning held varfous posltfons 
In boa public and .private ackountlng flhs.. 

Donald Jones recently retired from his position as Senior V[ce President for Chapter Services of the ' . 
American Red Cross, for which he worked since 1991. Prior to johlng the Red Cross, Mr. Jones was Deputy 
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Mllitary Manpower and Personnel Policy. Mr. Jones served in the Unbd States 
Army for over 35 years and retired in 1991 with the permanent rank of Ueutenant heneral. 

Ntcholas Menlck currently serves as President of Mt Vernon Investments, UC, an investment company, 
which he has served as Presldent since January 2002. Mr. Menfck served as Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial OffJcer of Telergy, Inc., a high-speed flber optk communications nehnrork company, from May, 2000 to 
July, 2001. Telergy filed for.reorganizatIon under the bankruptcy laws In October 2001 and is currently in the 
process of liquidation. Prior to joining Telergy, Mr. Merrick was Chief Executhm Offfcer of Up2 Technoioqles, inc. - 
and Executive Vice President of Excel Cammunicatlons, each of which Is a subsidiary of Teieglobe, Inc. (global 
communications, sbusiness services), from 1998 until 2000. From 1998 to 1997, he was Wce President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Teico Communications Qroup, Inc., and from 1985 to 1996, he was Vice President of Corporate 
Finance at the Robinson-Humphrey Company, inc. and Managing Director of R-H Capital Partners. 

Kevin A. Alward waa appointed CWperating Officer of Covista on March 29,2001 and was elected a 
director of Covista on July 17,2001. He had previously served TotalTel USA as President and Chief Operating 
Officer from 1994 to 1998, when he left the company to become President of NoN America for Destia 
Communications, Inc. (formerly known as Econophone, Inc.) and its successor bymerger, Vlatel, Inc. In April 2000, . 
he -founded Blink Data Corp., a telecommunicatians and data servlces provider headquafiered in northem New 
Jersey, where he was President and Chief Executive Officer until his return to Coulsta. 

Board of Dlrecton- 
I 

Couista's Board of Directors currently consists of elght persons, two of whom -are mmbers of 
management and &.of whom are non-management directan. Durlng the flw year ended January 31,2002. the 
Board held two meetings, each of whlch was attended by 80% of the directon then serving. 

Coviatats Board of ~ i& rs  has AudR and Compensk CommRtess, M (foes not have a NomlnatIng 
Committee or a committee performing a similar function. The Audit Cdmmitte'e currently consfsts of three non- 
management directors, Messn. Nicholas Medck, Donald Jones and Leon Genet. The Committee reviews, adyzds 
and may make mmmendatlons to the Board of Dllgctors with respect to Covista'a financial statements and controls. 
The Committee has inet and intends to meet from time to time wtth Covlsta's independent public aaxuntants to monitor 
their activitfes. The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Henry Luken and Jay J. Miller and Is charged with 
reviewing and mmmendlng the compensation and beneMs payable to Covista's senior executives. Mr. Leach Is an 
ex-officlo member of both the Compensatfon and Audt Committees. 
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Summary ~ompan&tlon Table . . 

Johntach 
Raidmt and 
ChidWVa 
-= (2) 

.ThiaaarP. . 
GuMing . 
Vica.Pirsldmt, 

.'- 
and S a x c k y  

(2) ' Mr. Leach joined Covista on May 18,2000. Sea part (e) far a discussion of My. Le;ich's emplo-t 
agreement . . 

(3) ~ h s  mount shown i n c ~ u d e ~  $250,000 in bom'duc to M. ~ c a ~ h  *rn Mmuoo to.0~0101 but not paid 
until FY 2OOi. . . 

(4) Thd amount shown rcprrsents covista's s~lmibution rmda its 4 0 1 0  D e f d  (hpmaiion and 
Retirement Savings Plan of $!WO. 

' 

(5) The amount shown reprcmts Covista's contniution Imde; its 4 0 1 0  D e f d  Compensaw and 
Retirement Savings Plan of $346 and $15,000 in reimbursement for certain relocation expenses, 

(6) The amount shown represents Covista's contniudon under its 4010 Defemd Compensation and 
Retirement Savings Plan of $4505.' Covista company auto expenses of $1,780; and Covista's p u p  major 
medical bendit qf $4'80. . 

(7) Th. a m o d  shown & CovistaVs contribution under: its 401(Q Ddc;red Ckmpmah a d  
Retirement Savings Plan of $4,460, $2,167 fbr the use of a Company's vehicle fix non-business purposes and 
$4,800 fix tam life insurance . . .  . . 

. - - 
(8) Tho amount shah &&ts..~ovista's contniutim under:its +1m Defaftd Chmpem&t~ md . 

~etiremcnt savings %of $4,200, $2,179 . for . the use df a. Company's vehicle for mn-brisiess purposes and ' 

$4800for~lifeinsuranceprcmirmrs.. . . 

(9) ' The amount shown rqments Covista's co&iutian.lmdcr its 4 0 1 ( '  D c f d  Compensation and 
Savings Plan of $3367. Retirrmtnt 



. The optton Plans may be adm~stemd by the' CoITIpe~aqon CommMee of Covlstals, Board of Dltsctors. . 

Covista has reserved 800,000 share3 I# Common Stock under the 1996 Optlon Plan and 750,000 shares of 
Common Stock under its 1999: Equitl, lncentfve Plan; and 900a000 under its 2001 Equity 'Incentive Plan for. 
Issuance to employees, ofiicen, directom and consultants of Cavista. . . 

No optlon may be transferred by an aptiqnee other than by will or the laws of descent and dlstributlon, and 
during the llfetlme of an optionee, an optlon may be exercised by him. In the eve@ of termination of :: 
employment other than by death or dlsabiilty, the option& will havqone month (subject to extension not to exceed L 

an additland two months) after such tenninatlon during.whlch he may exercise hls option. Upon termination of ,+ 

employment of an optlonee by reason of death or permanent total disability, hls optlori remain9 exeicisable for one ..* 
year thereafter to the extent it was exercisable on the date of such terminatlon. No similar limitation applies to non- 

' 

>:qualtnea ,options. : 

Options under me Optlon Planszmnt be granted withb 10 yeam horn the effedve.date of the'respectik 
Optlon Plan. Incentive stock aptlons granted under the OpUon Plans cannot be exercised later than 10 years from 
the date of grant. Options granted under the Option Plans pennit payment of the exerelse price In cash or by 

' 

delivey to Covista of shares of Common Stock already owned by the optionee hav1ng.a falr m&et value equal to 
the exercise price of the options being exercise$, or by a combination of such methods of payment. Therefore, an . 
optlonee may be able to tender shares of Common Stock to purchase additlonal shares of Common. Stock and may.. 
theoretically exercise all of his stock optlons with no additlonal investment other than his odglnal shares. 

Any option which expires unexercised or that terminates upon an, employee's ceasing to be employed by 
~ovista become available again for Issuance under the Option Plans. 

For further hforrnatlon related to stock option plans, refer to item 9 in the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 



N m n b c r d S m  % oiTotal OptlmJSBBa ' 
I .  Und~JyhgOptfDlrsl . GrantrdtOEmrployec5i Ebrdfm 

*&!is 8ARs Gmnted(#Q ' PlxslYear 
- .  

Bk!2 
A.JohnLea& . . 288,000(1) . . 185% -- 52.00 

. . .* l.Itevin:Alward ward . 250,000 161% . $2.00 
. . Thamas P. Gunning . . 25,000 13% . $200 

ThomasP;Gurming 12,000 32% . $5.65 

peb 1.2006 $124132 $26&2 
Mar 3OZOO6 910j.753 $XQ,MO 
Ftb 1,2006 $10.775 
Feb.l,U]06 $14,611 a1.466 

" (1) Stack option gmntcd onds the 1996 S& Option Plan Y~sting in six equal semi-axmud i n s t a l h ~ ,  ,i 
commencing six months from the date of p L  ' . . 

. . 
. . . . . . . . . - P 

The fO1lbwing tab]= & forth inforiPation concerning each w ~ ~ C ~ S C  of a afak option during covista*; . 

'fiscil-year ended January 31,2002 y each of the, Named Becrrtive~, and the number and value of mexercised 
options granted by covista'held by each of the . ~ a m e d  u Executives on January 31,2002 . 

Aggregated Option EJxerdses in Lad Fiscal Year 
And Fiscal Year-End Option Values . . 

Number of SCPUitia 
Underlying Uikxerdsed 

Sham3 A&@rea OptlondSBRa at Piscsl Year End 
&!!!& on Exadse Value w e d  (Q Ex&ble/Unaadsablq 

Thornasp. - Gmming .16,5W $ 1 1 1 . 2 ~  185Oa/l8500 

VaIne ofUnexerdsed 
In-the Money OptionslSARs 
atFlsglYearEnd 
Btndsabld Unaerdsable 

For he.flscal year ended ~an&y 31, 2U02, each director who was not am employee of Cov ta  was 
entitled .to receive a director's fee of $15,000 per year, and to be. reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses Incurred In 
connection with attendance at meetings. However, M e ~ n .  Anderson and Luken waived the right to receive such 
compematfon. . . , . 

. # 

' Empiovment Contracts.  emh hat ion at Emolavment and Chanae of Contral Arranaernents 

. ~ s - a i i s i z t i  chief Executive ~ f i c e ~ ,  . ~ r .  kach  baa$ hraey&r emp~oyment agwAent with dovista ' 

effecthre as of May l8,2OOO, puriuant to'whlch Mr. Leach was,paid base-sala~y at'the rate of $300,000 per annum 
durlng flscal2001, Pursuant to this agreement, Mr. Leach was also entitled to receive a slgnhg bonua. In the 
amount of $2Si000 to cover reladon and. other expenses, but to date Mr. Leachhas been paid only $1.5,000 of 
this amount. Mr. Leach is also entitled to receive an annual bonus In an amount not to excasd 100 percent of his 
then effecthre base salary, based upon Mr. Leach's attainment of annual revenue and eamlngs targets as well as - 

management goals set by the. Board of Directors. Mr. Leach was guiyanteed a minimum bonus payment of. 
$150,000 during the first year of this agreement . 

In connection with his appointment as Chief Executive Offlcer of Covfsta, Mr. Leach was granted an optton 
underCovista's 1996 Stack Option Plan to purchase 288,000 shares of Covlsta Common Stock. The option ' 

. -. -. ---. .- _... ._,. . .__..-. g~;~u-rtsd twfdr. b8ch ty~.&&uled.ii) vest over a, padad of three p a w  In six.aqual semi-annwd-in"uLdInc-ia, .the . - a  -- 
- . .  ad -L-.LLL --------A A- hln.ramhar I R 9flntl The amreise adca for the opttan was $1425'and based on - 



calculated based on the avbrage dosing price of the Covlsta Common Stock for the 40 trading d y a  prior to May 
18,2001. In lieu of adjudng the exercise price of Mr. Leach's oflons In the manner provided In his employment . 
agreement, on Febru;uy 1; 2001 Covlsta granted to Mr. Leach an aptfon to purchase 288,000 shares of Covista 
Common Stock, vesting over a period of three years, in six equal semi-annual Installments, the first of which 
commenced on August 1,2001. The exercise price for the optlon 1s $2.00 Per share and is based on the fair market 
value of the Covista Common Stock on the date of grant The opffon expires after a term of ten years. 

I n  the event of a 'change of control' of Covlsta, as defined In his employment agreement, Mr. Leach's 
. ' stock option, and slmllar beneflts, If any, shall be deemed to vest In full on the effwtlve date of such change of 

control. Pursuant to the agreement, a 'change of control' shall be deemed to occur it (I) any person1 or 'groupl 
(as such terms are used in Sections 3,3(a), 9 and 1 W )  of the ~~~urities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 

""Act')) other than Wait Anderson, Revision LLC or any of their respective affiliates becomes a beneffcial owner (as 
such term is used in the rules promulgated under the Act), d l r w ~  or indirectly, of securltfes of Covlsta representing 
50 percent or more of the combined votlng power of Covistals then outstandlng secu~itles; (ii) a change In 'controlm 
of Covista (as such term is deflned in Rule 12b-2) shall have accuired; (lli) the majority of the Board of Directors, as 
such entlre Board of Directors was composed as of May 18,2000, no longer s e n e  as directors of Covista, except 
that there shall not be counted toward such majoni who no longer serve as directors Mr. Leach or any dlrector 

. who ceased to serve either prior to the date of the change In control, for any mason, or at any other time due to L 

voluntary resignation (other than In connectlon with an event described In (iv) or (v) belcw), death, dlsabllity or 
termination for cause-; (iv) the stockholden of Covista approve a plan of complete liquldatlon d Covista or an. 

I agreemenbfor the sale or disposition by Covista of all or substantially all of Covista's assets; or (v) the stockholdera 
. of Covista approve a merger or consolidation of Covista w h any other company, other than a metger or d . ' consolldatlon which would result In the combined voting p wer of Covfsta's votlng securitles outstandlng 

' 

. . 
lmmedlately prior thereto contlnulng to represent (either by remalnlng outstandlng or by being converted Into voting 
securities of the suwMng entity) more than 50 percent of the comblned voting power of the voting securities of 

. Covista or such surviving entity outstandlng immediately after such merger or consolldation; pmvided, however, 
that no change in control shall be deemed to have occurred in any plan of Ilquidation, sale of assets, merger or 
consolldatlon provided in (iv) and (v) above Is not consummated. In addltlon, any transaction involving a leveraged 
buyout or other acquisition of Covista whlch would othewlse constitute a change in control, in which Mr. Leach 
participates in the surviving or successor entity (other than solely as an employee or consultant) will not constitute 
a change In control. 

As Covista's Chlef Operating Officer, Mr. Alward has a two-year employment agreement effeme as of 
March 29,2001, pursuant to which Mr. Alward is pald an annual base salary of $250,000. Pursuant to ?his 
agreement, Mr. Alward received a signing bonus In the amount of $24,000. Mr. Alward is also entitled to receive 
an annual bonus in an amount not to exceed 100 percent of his then effective base salary, based upon Covlsta's 
attainment of annual revenue and earnings targets as well as management goals set by the Board of Directors. Mr. 
Ahnrard's agreement provides that he shall receive the same percentage bonus as Mr. Leach. Mr. Award Is 
guaranteed a minimum bonus payment of $125,000 for each year of ?his agreement 

In connectlon with his appointment as chief Operating OMcer of ~ovlsta, Mr. Alward was granted an 
bption under Covista's 2001 Equity Incentive Plan to purchase 250,000 shares of Covista Common Stack. The 
option granted to Mr. Alward vests over a period of five years, In ten equal semi-annual installments, the first of 

' 

whlch commenced on September 29,2001. The exercise price for the optlon Is $2.00. 

In the event of a 'change of controF of Covlsta, as deflned in his employment agreement, Mr. Alward's 
stock optlan, and similar beneflts, if any, shall be deemed to vest In full on the effective date of such change of 
control. Mr. Alwardls employment agreement defines 'change of control' In the same manner as Mr. Leach's 
employment agreement, a s  described abave. 

Compensatlon ~omrnittee'lntedocks and Insider Participation 

Jay J. YUer, a d i r e  of Covista, pmvlded various legal serviced far Covlsta during flscal2002. In f l a l  
2002, Covlsta paid $144,574 to Mr. Miller for servlces rendered gnd accrued duringflscal2002. As of February 22, 
2002, Covista had invoices payable'to Mr. Miller totallng $179,31,6. Covista believes that Mr. Mllleh fees were 
reasonable for the services performed and were no less favorable to Covista than could have been obtained from 
an unrslated third party. 



. The following report des'cribes the poflcies pursuant to which COmPensatlon was paid to executive offlc&. . 
of Covista for performance durlng the fiscal year ended January 31,2002. 

Cornpensatfan Phrlosophy and Appmacb. Generally, C0vlsta seeks to attract, retain and rnotlmle its -ve 
officers through a combination of base salaly, Incentive awards based Upon Individual performance and a& 
OptfOn awards under The Covista Cummunieations, Inc. 2001 Equity hcentlve Plan .and otherwise. The ao&j of 
Dlrectars believes that a substanUai potdon of the aggregate annual wmpensatlan d eaeh e x ~ c u t h r ~  ofher should 
be influenced by the performance of Cavlsta and the Individual ~ontrlbutlon of the executive officer. 

. . 

. Base Salarfea. The Board of Dlrecton believes that the base salaries of Cadsta8s exmave 0fif-n for 
flscal2001 were ge'nerally below those for other comparable positions Whln the telecommunlcatlons senrfce . 
Industry and similar Industries. However, Covista places significantemphasis On ~ncentive awards and stock opkn 
grants as a means of motivating and rewarding its management The Board of Directors believes that this strategy 
provides optimal incentives for management to create long-term stockholder value. 

Incenthre Compensation Paymenk In addltlon to base pay, erne of Covlsta8s senior executives Y 

(Including its Chief kxecutive Officer) are ellglble to receive bonwes and stock option awards. Bonuses and stock - 
options may be awarded, based upon the IndMdual performance of each exBCUthre offlcer at the sole dlscre~on of - 
the Board of Dlrecton. Dudng the Flscal Year 2002 John Leach received a cash bonus of $400,000 of which 
$250,000 was payable to Mr. Leach for the perlad May 1,2000 to April 30,2001 but not paid untll FY 20Q Kevin 
AIward received a bonus of $104,167; and Thomas Gunnlng received a bonus of $15,000. Stock option grants 

* 

made to the Named Executive Officers during fiscal 2002 are described in '0ptIonlSAR.Grants in Last'Flscal Year.-- . 

Cornpensailon of  tfre chief Execotfve Oftlcer. The compensatlon policies appilcable to Covlsta8s chief 
Executive Offlcer are simllar to those applicable to Covista's other executive officers. Mr. Leach has a three-year 
employment agreement with Covista effective as of May 18,2000, pursuant to which Mr. Leach was pald base 
salary at the rate of $300,060 per annum durlng fiscal 2001. Pursuant to this agreement, Mr. Leach was also. . 
entitled to receive a signing bonus in the amount of $25,000 to ewer mbcd0n and other expenses, but to date Mr. 
Leach has been paid only $15,000 of this amount. Mr. Leach Is also entitled to receive an annual bonus In an 
amount not to exceed 100 percent of his then effective base salary, based upon Mr. Leach's attainment of annual 
revenue and earning targets, as well a3 management goals set by the Board of Dlrectors. Mr. Leach was 
guaranteed a minimum bonus payment of $150,000 during the first Year of this ~greement 

. 
/ 

. .. 
. . -. . . . . a *  c :  . . . I.., 

") 
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ITEM 12. . Securitv owners hi^ of Certain Beneffcial OWerS and Manaaement 
. . 

Se~urfty Ownersh$.of Certain Ben~flclal Owners. The following table sets forth the ,beneficial 
ownership of Covista's Common Stock as of April 30,2002 by each person or group known by Covista 
to be the beneficial owner of five percent or more of the outstanding sham of Covista Common Stock. 
Unless otherwise indicated, each guch person (done or with family'mem8ers) has sole voting and 
dlsposit1ve power with respect to the shares listed opposite such person's name. . . 

. - 
ParCMtage 

,,Nameand A d a  ' - - Amount and Nature of of . ...  . Qf Beneticlal Owner . BenefIelal Ownership(1) . ClasJ(2) . . 

. ~ e d n  A. ~ l k r d  . . . 1~,255,779(3) 9.9% 
1.82 Powell Road 
Allendale, NJ.07401 

' I  . + 
~ a l t . h d k n  ' 2,023,125(4) ' . . 10.1% . a 

2000 L Strqt, N.W., #202 . . I . . . Washlrigton, DC 20036 . 

Warren Feldman 
45A Sarnworth Road 
Clifton, NJ 07012 

- .  
.Foundation for the Intemaffonal 

923,8446) Non-Qovemmental Development of Space .7.i% 
1023 31" Street NW 
Suite 300 
Washington, DC 20007 

Henry G. Luken, ill 4,531 ,1330 35.9% 
400 Faiiyay Lane 
Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 

Except as otherwise set forth In the footnotes to this table, all share. are beneficially owned and sole 
investment and voting power Is held by the persons named above, to the best of Covista's knowledge. 
Shares of Covista Common Stock subject to opgons that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 
days of December 11,2001 are deemed to be outstzgdlng and to be benefldally owned by the person 
holding such options for the purpose of wmputlng the 8 .  

percentage ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstandlng forthe purpose of computing the 
percentage ownershlp of any other person. 
Based on 10,819,4Q5 shares outstanding. ' - . . 
includes 25,000 shares of Coma Cornmon'Stock iisuable io ~ r i h r d  under pr&&nUy exerclsable 
optlons. Also Includes 186,516 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by trusts of which Mr. Ahads . 
minor chlldren are beneficlarles, as to whlch Mr. Alward disclaims beneficial ownership. Based on the 
Schedule 13D lolntly flled by Mr. Alward and certain related entities on November 16,2001. 
Includes 1,297,796 shares of Covista Common Stock owned of record by Revision LLC, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Gold & Appel Transfer, SA, as to all of which shares Mr. Anderson exercises sole voting 
and dispositive power. Of the 1,297,796 shares owned of record by Revision LLC, 1,179,732 am pledged 
to Donald A. Bums to seare a loan. Also Indudes 725,329 shares owned by the Foundatlan for the 
International Non-Govemrnental Development of Space, of whlch Mr. Anaismon ls the President and a 
director, and as to which Mr. Anderson dsclalms beneil qlal ownershlp. Based on the Schedule 13DIA . 
Jointly fled by Wait Anderson, Gold & Appel and.Revislop on Novemh'er 19,2001. Notice has been 
received from Mr. Bums legal representative that Mr. Anderson ts In default of the loan agreement and 
that Mr. Bums is to exercise his rights as a secured party with respect to the pledged shares. 
Includes 300,000 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by The Warren H..Feldman Family LLC., as 
to whlch shares Mr. Feldman disclaims beneficial ownership. Based on the Schedule 13D/A filed by Mr. 
Feldman on August 22,200f. 
Of the 923,844 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by the Foundation forthe lntemational Non- 
Governmental Development of Space; 703,529 shares are pledged to Donald A. Bums to swore a loan. 

. NoUce has been received from Mr. Bums legal representative that Mr.'Anderson Is In default of the loan 
, aqwernsd and that .t~r.-elrms is to_exsrcise h k  rfghb as a sc:!zd pzdy v&-resp&t%?!!s pledgsd. - - - - 

shares. 



SecurHy Omsnhip of ~ana~ernent h e  folloWhg table sets fonh as 0thpfi.Q 2002, hformatVn concerning 
the beneficial ownership of Covista Common Stock by each director, each nominee for election as a director, and . 
each Named Executive, and for all directors, director nominees and wewtive officers as a group: 

Percentage 
Name and Address Amount and Nature bl oi 
Of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownershlp(1) Class@) 

. . - Kevin k AW .I p65,77!3(3j 
. . ' Walt Anderson -2,946,969 (4) 

Leon Qenet . 41,120 
Thomas P. Gunning I .  62,300(5) 
Donald Jones 5,000 
k&hn Leach,, Jr. . . 438,000(6) 
Henry G. Luken, Ill . 4;531 ,I 33(7) 
Nlcholas Merrick 1 0 0  , 

Jay J. Miller 35,400(8) 
All directors, directornominees and executive officers as a group 
(9 persons), . 9,328,601 (3)-(7) 

1 ' Less thw one percent. 

Except as otherwise set forth In the footnotes to this table, all shares are beneficially owned and sole 
investment and voting power Is held by the persons named above, to the best of Covista's larowledge. 
Shares of Covista Common Stock subject to optlons that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 
days of December 11,2001 are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned tiy the person 
holding such options for the purpose of computing the 
percentage ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the 
percentage ownership of any other person. 
Based on 10,81gJN5 shares outstanding 
Includes 25,000 shares of Covista Common Stock issuable to Mr. Award under presently exercisable. 
optlons. Also includes 188,516 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by trusts of which Mr. Alward's 
minor children are beneflclarles, asto which Mr. Award disclaims beneficial ownership. Based on the 
Schedule 13D jointly filed by Mr. Ahnrard and certain related entities on November 16,2001. 

lncludes 1,297,796 shares of Covistrt Common Stock owned of record by Revision L C ,  a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Qold & Appel Transfer, SA, as to all of which shares Mr. Anderson exercises sole voting . 
and dispositlve power. Of the 1,297,796 shares owned of record by Revision LLC, 1,179,732 shares are 
pledged to'Dondd A. Bums to secure a loan. Covlsta has received notice from Mr. Bums that the loan Is 
in default and it Is Mr. Bums' Intention to take ownership of the pledged shares. Also includes 725,329 
shares owned by the Foundation for the lntemauonal Non-Governmental Development of Space, of which 
Mr. Anderson Is the President anda director, and as to which Mr. Anderson disclaims beneflcial 
ownership.. ~ a s e d  on the Schedule 13DIA jointly flied by Walt Anaerson, Qold & Appel Revision on 
November 19,2001. 
Includes 37,000 shares of Covista Common Stock lssuable to Mr.'Gunning under currently exercisable 
options. Does not include 25,400 shares owned by Mr. Qunnings'sp'ouse. 
includes 192,000 shares of Covista Common Stock lssuable to W. Leach under currently exercisable . ,  
.options. 
Based on the Schedule 13DIA filed by Mr. Luken on Aprll13,2001. 
Includes 35,000 shares of Covista Common Stock lssuable to Mr. Miller under currentty exercisable 
optlons. 



In ~ u ~ k t ,  2000, Walt ~nderwn and lwa entitkg ~ntfulld by Mm Gold & Appel Transfer, S A  and R & ~ ~ ~  
KC, along with FINDS, entered Into a Stack Pledge Agreement with Donald 4. Bums, which was subsequently 
amended in W b e r  2000 (as amended, the "Pledge AgreemeW. PursUant to the Pledge Agreement, Rehion k c  
has pledged 1,179,m shares af Common Stack, and FINDS has pledged 703,529 shares of Common sto* to 
secure a $13,000,000 loan made by Mr, Bums to Mr. Anderson, Qakl& &pel Transfer, S.A. and Revision LLc. 
loan la wrrentfy In default, and consequentfy Mr. Bums h a  wring Power respect to the pledged sham. Were 
Mr. Bums to faredose upon the 1,883,201 shares of ConimOn pledged Pursuant to the Pledge A g m e n t ,  which. 
represent approximately 18% of the aumndlng Common SWki-it ~ ~ l d  result h a &age of contrd of Cwista  old . 
&.Appel has paid back appdmateiy $4,200,000 of principal On thk loan from Mr. Bums. The current value of the loan 
with acclued interest approximately $9,250,000. Covlsta has received a noiiffcatian fram Mr. Bums confirming that It 
is Mr. Bums' Intention to take ownership ofthe pledged shares. 

On February 1, 2001, the. Board of Dlrectnn of Covista authortzed a transactlon (the "Stock Issuance 
Tmnsaetton")nvoMng the Issuance and sale of a total of 3,500,000 shares of Common Sbck ta the following three 
persons (lhe "PuFchaipf) in the ipounts indicated: Kevin Alward, 1,000,000 shares; A. Jahn Leach, 500,000 shares; . ' - 
and Henry G. Luken, 111,2,000,000 shares. Pursuant bo the des of the NASD, consummation of the Stock lssuanca 7 

Transadion was subject to the approval of Covistals shareholders because Messrs. Leach and Luken cunentty were 
directon and offlcers.of Covista, and. In addition, it was expected that Mr. Alward would become an offlcer of 
Cavlsta. The transactlon was approved at a special $areholders meeting on March 29,2001. The stock was 
Issued in April ,2001. 

A change In control of Covista may be deemed to have accuned as a result of the kregolng transactions, as Walt 
Anderson now controls 23.3% of the outstandlng $mmon Stock and Henry G. Luken Ill now controls 35.9% of the 
outstandlng Common Stack 

. . 

ITEM 13. Certain Relatlanshi~a and Related Trahsadians 

Jay J. MlUer, a Dlrector of Covlsta, has pmdded varfow legal services for Cavista during Fiscal 20G2 In F d  
2002, Covlsta paid $144,574 to Mr., Miller foi*servlces rendered and ~ C C N ~  for In Rscal2002. As of Januaty 31, 
2002, Covista owed Mr. Miller $179,346, Covista believes that Mr. Miller's fees were reasanable for the sewices 
performed and were no less favorabla to Covista than could have been obtained from an unrelated third party. In 
February, 2002, Covista granted to Mr. Miller 35,000 non-stahdory shares optionable at $2.00 per share. 

Lean Genet, a Dlrector of Covlsta, has prodded agent sewices for Cavista thmugh his whollyowned 
Company, LPJ, Inc...During Fiscal 2002, LPJ, Inc. was pald commissions of $93,066. The commlsslons paid to LPJ, 
Inc. wemcamputed on the same basis asotherindependent agents retalned by Covista. , - 

Walt Anderson, a Dlrectot" of Covlsta, serves on the Board of- Directors' of Capsule Communl&tions, as ' 
described in ITEM 10.:Henry G. Luken Ill, the ChaImran of the Board of. Covlsta Is a major stockYlolder of Capsule 
Cammunicatlons: C o w  both purchases and sells s e e s  from Capsub Communlcatlona, Inc Sales to Capsule in 
Fiscal 2002 were appmdmately $615,000. Purchases from Capsule were appdmately $680,000. All transactions 
were based on competitive terms obtabed on an am's length bask Ccvlsta has subsequently merged with Capsule 
Cornmunlcatfons (see item 1 rB~~lne~sSubs8q~ent Events). 7,. . 

Cwlsta has entered Into a lease agreement for 28,000 square feet af offlce space in Chattanooga, 
Tennessee, with Henty G. Luken Ill who Is Covista's Chalrman of the Board and Its principal shareholder, The term of 
the lease is for five years beginning September 1,2001. The lease provides far annual rent of $86,400 from September 
1,2001 to August 30,.2002; $1 15,200 from September 1,2002 to August 30,2003; $144,000 fram September 1,2003 
to August 30 2004, wrth the last hNo y e h  to be $144,000 annually adjusted for the Consumer Price Index. Covkta 
belleves that such pmmlses are leased on terms similar to an arm's length transaction. 



On February 1,2001, the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to perfunctory shareholder's approval which 
was obtained on March 29,2001, authorlzed the sale of a total Ilf 3,500,000 shares d Common Stockb the 
following three persons (the "purch,asers") In the amounts Indcated: Kevin Alward, 1,000,000 shares; A. John 
Leach, 500,000 shares; and Henry G. Luken, 111,2,000,000 shares. The purchase price for the Common Stock to 
be issued to Messrs. Alward, Leach and Luken is $2.00 per share, baed on the fair market value of shares at 
February 2,2001. The stock sale was consummated In April 2001 with the lsauanca of 3,150,000 shares of 
Common Stack Th6 Board of Dlrectom authorized a decrease of 350,aOO shares to be purchas* by Mr. Leach. 

On ~ e b & r ~  1,2001, the Board of ~ l reck l s  of the Company authorlzed the aquisitlon of Bllnk Data Corporation, 
a 

a telecommunications company, of which Kevin Alward was a principal shareholder, officer and director, for 
. 300,000 shares of thg Company's Common Stack valued at the falr market value at March 29,2005, for total 

" . conslderatlon of $900,000. The transaction was completed on March 29,2001. b' 

On Jub 24, 2001, thdLCompEiny Issued a note receivable to Capsule C O ~ ~ U ~ ~ C ~ U O ~ S ,  Inc. of.which a director and . 
the chairman of the Company are pdnclpal shareholden. The note was for a total principal of $200,000 with 
interest payable of 8 %% to be paid no later than Ju(y 24,2002. On August 9,2001, the Company Issued a note . . 

: reqeivable to Capsule Communications, Inc. The note was for a tctd.principa1 of $300,000 with interest payable of 
8 94% to be paid no later than August 9,2002. . . 

On ~ & u s t  31. 2001. Covista entered lntd a transactlon with Appfled Financial Corp. an unaffiliated firm 
Involving the sale and leaseback of a telecommunicaUona switch. Covfsta reallzed proceeds of appmirnately 
$1,250,000 from the sale portlon of the transaction, and agreed to lease back the switch for a Ihree-year period at a 
cost of approximately $420,000 per annum. Henry G. hken, 111 provided an unconditional guaranty of Covista's 
payment obllgatlons to Applied Financial under the lease. Covista did not compensate Mr. Luken for providing 
such guaranty. 

. (THE REST OF THIS PAGE I N T E N T I O W  LEFT BLANK) 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15. (d) of the Secunlleg ~xohm49 * I  Act of 1934, the Registrant has 

duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undenlgpd, thereunto duly authorized, on the fifteenth 
' 

day of May, 2002 . . -  -- 
COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. ' 

. . (Registrant) . a 

. . 

By: IS1 Henrv G. iuken 111 , 

Henry G. Luken Ill + .. , . . . .  Chairman of the . Board , ..!. . , 
. . 

~ursuant to themquirements of the sec"rities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the 
fbllowing persons on behalf of the Registrant and ln4he n,c4pacitles and on b e  dates indicated. 

Date - .  . 
... 

Slanature 

. May 15,2002 .IS/ Henrv G. Luken- Ill . . . . Chairman of the Board 
HenryG. Luken I11 - 

' Director . May 15,2002 IS1 Walt Anderson 
Walt Anderson 

May 15,.2002 Director. 
Chief Operating OfRcer 

IS1 Kevin Alward 
Kevin Alward 

May 15,2002 Director IS1 Lean Genet . . 
Leon Genet: 

IS/ Donald Jones 
Donald Jones . 

May 15,2002 . 
. . Dlrector . . 

. . 
Dlrectar. ~resldent'and - . 
Chlef Executive Officer . 

May 15,2002 IS1 A. John Leach 
A. John Leach I .  

, . . 

. IS/ Nlcholas.Medck 
- . Nlcholas Merrick' ' 

. . 
May 15,2002 . . .  

i .  

. . _  ' 
/S/Jav J. MMer 
Jay J. Miller 

Director 

' May 15,2002 Wce President ~reasukr  and ' 
Secretary, Chief Ananclai Ofiicer 
and Principal Accountlng Officer 

IS1 Thomas P. bunnlna 
lhornas P. Gunning 



COVlSTA COMMUNICAVONS. INC. 

AND SUBSIDIARIES . 

' (a) 0 )  iflnmc~al . ' ~ b t & e n t s ~  The following mnsolldated financial. ,statements of MVI& . , 

Communications, inc.. and subsidiaries are Included. at the end of this Repo* 4 

. . 

Independent auditors' report F-I t 

Cohsolldated. balance she& - January 31,2002 . ' . . 
. . and 2001 . . F-2 

Consolidated statements of loss and 
comprehensive loss - years 

- ended January 31,2002,2001 and 2000 

Consolldated'statements of shareholdersi equity - 
years ended January 31,2002,2001,2000 

Consolidated statements of cash flows- years 
ended January 3l.2OO2,2OOI1 2000 

- Notes td consolidated financial statements F-7 

(a) (2) Supplementhry Data Furnished ~un"ant  . 
to the .Requirements of FORM 104: . 

. . .  . . 
Schedule - ye& endad January 3I12OO2, 2001 and 2000 . 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Consolidated) 

Schedules other than. those ilsted above are omitted because hey are not required, not applicable or the ' 
Infonnatlon has been otherwise supplied. . 

. . 
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. . -- 

Board of Dlrsctors and Shareholden 
Covlsta Camrnunicattana, Inc. 
150 Clove Road 

. . 
W e  Falls, New Jersey 07424 . . . . 
We have audited the'accomPanying ansoildated balance sheds d CaVista h m u d t c r m o ~ ,  Inc. and~aubaldlati& 

I - (the "Company") as of January 31,2002 and 2001, and the related ecnsolldated statements. of lbss and $~mpmhensive 
l-loss, shareholders' equfty, and cash Rows for each of the threesyears in the perlad ended Jahuary 31,MM. Our audb 

. . aha Includbd the conso~dated financial statement schedule listed In the Index at item 14(a)(2)r These cqnmlldated 
finandal statements and flnandal statement schedule are the responsibiflty of the Company's management Our 
'mponsibility Is to express an opinlon on these cansolldated flnandal statements and flnanctal statement schedule. 

, based on our audits. , . 
. . . . .  , . 

We conducted our aukq h accadanca with &dMng standards ~enera l l y ,~p ted  la the ~nl$;l States of America. 
Those standaFds require that we plan and perfann the audit to obtain reasonable assumnce about whether the' 

.' .consalldated financial. statements are free of material misstatement An audlt includes examining, 'on a test basis, 
.. evidence supporting the amowrts. and disclosures In the consafldated flnandal statements. An audlt also Includes 

. assesslrig the accountlng pdnclplesused and sigMcf~!'~t estimates made. by management, as well as evaluating .the 
overail con$olldated financial statement presentation. We believe @at our audits provide a reasonable bkb for our 

- '  oplnlcn. . - 

In our.opinion; such consondatkd finandal statements prssent fddN b 'all material resp8cts;the iinandd position of 
Covlsti Communications, Inc. and subs1diarles.a~ of January 31,2002 and 2001, and the results of their operatfans 

. and their cash'ffavui for each of. the three years in the period ended January 31.2002 In contormtty with accounting 
. principles generally accepted in the United S@s of America. Also, In our opinion, such flnancial statement schedule, 
' when considered in relatIon to the baslc consolidated ffnaphl statements taken as a whole, presents fairiy: In all 
material respects the lnfarmaticn set fa& theretn. - , 

. , . . 
ld DELoI~TE & TOUCHE U P  

. . . .  New YoQ New York 
April 26,2002 
(May 14,2002 as to Nate 21b) ' . , . 

. , . . 



I . .  

COWSTA COMMUNICA;~ONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIAFIIES 
- CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHE- 

JANUARY 31,2002 AND 2001 
. . . .  . .  

.'ASSET_S 

CURRENTASSRS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments available for sale , .  
7:rade;accounts re@vable (net of all&nce for doubtful 

accounts of ($4,987,130 and $4,075,W In 2002 and 2001, 
resp-ely) 

Notesreceivable ' 

Prepaid expenses and ather current assets 
, . . - . ~ o t a ~  &rent assets. , . . . + 

i m p w a n d  equipment, net . . . 

. '. Deferred llne lnstallatlon costs (net d'accumulated amortfiatfon . 

of $843,049'and $745,353 In 2002 and 2001, rfspeCtiV@) . 
Other:assets'(net of.accumulated.amorUzaUon of $846,452 and $33,761 
In 2002 and 2001, respectivety. . . . 

CURRENT LIABIUTIES 
Accounts payable . . 
Other current and acaued liabilities 
Salaries and wages payable 
Current portlon of long-term debt . ) 

Total current liabilities 

. Other long-term I labl l i t l~ 
. . 

. iong-term debt . . 
. . 

. Commitmkrts and aoritlngendes (Note . 141 . 

SHARMOLDERS'EQLIITY: * 
r. 

. Common !jtock, pbr value 4.05 per shak  a&aed  5OIWO,00O 
' 

shares;-Issued 12,305,757 shares In 2a02 and 9,505,824 shares In 2001 
Additional pald-in capital . 
Accumulated def7dt ' . . . . . . . 
Unearned ESOP shares . 
Tr&ury stack-& cost - 1,536,419 shares h 2002 and 2001, 
Accumulated other mmpreh&sive Income . . . 

Total shareholders' equtty . . 



. . . .  . . 
, . .  . . . . 8 

COV~STA COMMUNICASIONS, M C  AND SUBSlDlARlES 
CONSOUDATED SCATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COHPREHENSNE LOSS 

YEARS ENDED 3,:ANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND,2000 

NET SALES . . . . ... 
COSTS AND DBENSES: .%. . . -- 

castnf sales 76,475,802 - 116,059,002 ' 112;7!H1378 
A u k  charge settlement (Note 18) - (1,2641483) - 
Selling, general and admlnistrathre (excluding ' 

~~arrnpenstlon) 30,986,877 26,902,962 27,990,145 
Reshuctudng charge - - - . - ' t31a1w.  * 
Other wmpensatlon (Note iZ) 5,770,554 , 
Stock cornpensatton l?.Olt 266.565 204.015 

. .  . . . - Total ,oosts'an'd expenses '107,'474,690 M1,964,046 . 146,440,213 

MHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
Interest income . . 159,996 167,583 115,119 
Other hmme . . 274,466 ' 41,994 

(242.05 
1,105 

- Interest expense . . 61 --cu%za (147,0921 
. . 

192.406 . 104.305 T~tai  other lnwme (expense), .net . ' no.s6q 
. . (11.969.588l (8.629.3041 . LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (6.710.5841 

INCOME TAX PROVISION . -  . - , 2.703.618 

NETLOSS ,. (11.969.5881 1 8,629,3041 (9.414.2021 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX 
Unrealkid holding gain ' ' . - 79,531 6l.055 . 

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS m &-cUSml. 
. - i .  . . u iL-Aaa , '  ! BASIC LOSS PER COMMON SHARE . . . 

DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE 

! 

1 .  . - . - 

1 
, 

I 
- 

1 .  . . . . . . 
E . , * . . I 
c . . .  . I . .  

i I . .: . . -. 
5 i 
I .,. See notes to consolidated financial statements . . ., . . . .  
! '. .... . 



9NUARY 31,1999 . . 

aldlng galn .. . 
nploy& sbodc options . 

butfon (NOT 12) . 
nt (NOTE 12) 
stodc gmnts 

. . 
, . . . _ .  . . . ._ 

. : . . 
COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUB~IDIARIES 

. .  

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDEW EQUITY . 

YEARS ENDED JANUARY 311200212001 AND 2000 .- . . . , . .  
. Retained Accumulated 

.. ~ h i t i o n a ~  Eamlng s unearned dther 
;Cornin& . Paid-In (Accumulated ' ~ r e k u r y  ' ESOP ~ ~ l p r e h e n s l v e  
'Stodc daml . Dencitl _ S h a w  Jnosme 

$ 455,739 $ . 2218091518 $ 6,7!i7,987 - $ (1,456,781) $ (1~,225,0W) - I, $ 1Ob.N - - 61,055 . 

. Total 
$ 16,442,184 

61,055 
1,799,149 

250,000 
4,870,554 

(1,769) 
EI.414.202l 
14,006,971 

79,531 - - 
mphyee stodc options / grants , 825 , 135,187 . - .  . - L  . - . - 136,012 ' ' ' 

&res for other assets 170,773 - .  . 13,380 ' 
- - . - 184,153 : 

' -  - . . I '  - - - (270) storkgrants , 
- - (270) . - - - - - (6,629,304) - (8.629.304) - 

IANEJARY 31, 2001 , .  . . 475,291 ' . .. 30,016,454 (1 1;285,5i9) (I,M~,VID) ( 1 2 ~ ~ 5 ~ ~ 0 )  241,307 . . s,m,oss 
& stock - 

l!i7,500 6,142,500 - - - 6,300,000 

1,497 * 41;944 ' . - .  mpbyee stodc options / gr'anb .. - -. . - 4 3 , k  ' 
- . - .  885,000 shares for other assets . 15,000 - - 900,000 . 

- - ' ' 12225,000 . 
. . 

(3~,000) . ( 12,195,000) - of SOP - . . .  - 759,200 ' - 759,200 . - .  Stodc  ran& . - . . 
fi 0i3 sale of Investments (241,307). (241,307). , 

. . - - f11.969.588't - - 111.9 - 69.588) 

JANUARY 31,2002 . - z -  

consolidated financial statements . 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND S~~SIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 

CASH ROWS FROM OPERATING A ~ E S :  
Net loss 
Acljudmeds to reconale net loss tn net 
cash (used In) provided by opemtlng activities: . . 
Depredation and amortization 
Provision for doubtful accounts 

. Non-cash stock compensation expense 
Defened income taxes 

. Restructurlng (credit) charge, n t o f  cash'.pafd 
Loss on disposal d property..and equipment 
(Gain) lass on sale of investments , 

- Change In assets and I1abilitIes.-,. 
(Increase) decrease In a*. 
Trade accounts receivable. 
Prepaid expenses and other-current assets 
otherassets . 

Increase (deereke) In liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Other current and actrued llabiltttes 
Other Icng-tenn llabiiities 

Net &sh (used in) provided by operathg actMes 

W H  FLOWS &OM INVEmNG A G E S :  

. . Net Assets acquled In plikhase of Bllnk Data Corporation 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of 

Investments available fdr sale (net). 
- . - Pudases -d  property and equipment ' . 

Pmceeds ftom sale of ppperty and eq~lptned and leasebadc bansadions 
. Notes receivable fium related party . - .  

Payments far d e f '  llne Installatian costs 
Payments for prepaid network capacity . . . . . . 

. cdilectton on notes receivable lbm employees ' . . . . ' . .  .- 

Net cash used ... In Investing ~actfvttles ' . . 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCtNG ACrMTIES: i . . 

5 Proceeds from the Issuance of Common Stock . I' 

. I 

.6,300B0 
f . Proceeds from Stock Options exedsed i . . 43,%1 

Note payable to rela& party . . . 4,400,000 . 
1 

. Repayment on bank borrowings ' C615.695l 

Net cash provlded by (used In). flnandng actlvMes 10.127.746 
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COVlSTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF'CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 
(Continued) 

. zaOz zaOx a ! u s  

NET DECREASE IN-& AND 
CAsH EQUNALENTS . -  - - $( 1,312,851) ' $(1,682,590) $(1,677,413: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMSI 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,691.889 4,374,479 6.051.89; 

. 
END OF YEAR . . ' _  

. . 
. SUPPLEMENTAL D I S C ~ ~ ~ ~ R E S  OF . . . J 

CASH ROW INMWRQN: , . 
I !  , .  . cash paid (retehled) during the'year for: 
I .  
! ' Interest . . . - 

, Income taxes 

I 

i Issuance of treasury stDck for customer lists 
I 
I lnduded In other assets . 
I 
I .  

! .  Issuantx of Common %dc In connection with Blink Data 

$L. 
- .  . ' 

/ ]  . . acquisition for other assets' and cash 
i 
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' COVISTA COMMUNICAflONS, INC. WD SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS , 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31r2002 2001 AND 2000 

NANRE OF OPERATIONS 

Covista Communications, Inc. ("COW"), and its whoW9wned. subsldIarles .(coitecthrely, -be 
"Company") operate as a witch based resale common -mrrler providing twenty-four hour, seven day a - 
week, domestfcand international long dlstance t~k~mmunicalAons servlce to customers throughout: the 
United Shtes. The Company's principal customers are primarib busfnesses and other common carriers. 
On September 15, 2004 the Company changed its name fmm Total-Tel USA Communlcattons, Inc to 
Covlsta Communkations, Inc. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Y 

. L 

: Pr/nclp/izs cxf&nso/idart/on - The mnsolldated finandal statements lndude the akunts of Covista 
CommunicalAons;'Inc. and its subsldlaries, all of which are wholly-owned- All intercompany transactions 
and balances have been eliminated In the mnsolldated flnandal statements. 

Revenue Recogniffon - The Company's revenues, net of Sales discounts, are recognized in the pericd h 
whi& the service is'prouided, based on the number of minubis of telecommunications baffIc carriedI and a 
rate per minute. Access andather service fees charged to typlcalb monthly, are recognized in 
the perfad in whi& service b provided. 

Pmperlyand Equ//rment- Property and equipment are stated at cost: Depredatlon.and amortbatioq 
is being provided by use of the might-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets. Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the useful . 
lives of the asset. - 

The estimated useful Ilves of the prindpal classes of assets are as follows: 

Classification Years 
. . 

Machinery and equipment . 5-10 
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 7-10 
Vehicle3 3-5 
Leasehold Improvements 2-10 
Computer equipment and software 5-7 

Deikmd Une2hsta//affon C& - m e  Company defers darges from other common carrfk which 
cover the cost of installing telephone tran'smission fad- (lines). ArnortimUon of these costs Is 
provlded using the stralght-line'methad over the contract llfe of the llnes ranging from three to five 
years. 

. . 
m m e r  11Ws - Customer Ilbs, lnduded In other .assets, leprksents the fair value of the customer 
base acquired and Is bdng amortized using an accele!ated method-over a perlod of 3 years. The 
orrylng value of the customer list is-reviewed on a  quark^ basis br the exlsimce of facts or 

. drcumstances, both Internally and externally, that may suggest Impairment; During fiscal year 2001, the 
Company acquhea a customer list through the Issuance of 14,234 sharks of beasury stock valued'at the. 
falr market value of the Company's Common Stock on Ihe date of the transaction. During flscal year 
2002, the Company aqulred a customer li'st through an acquisition by issuing 300,000 shares of its 
Common Stock at 'me fair market,value of the Company's Common Stock on me date of the transactfon. 
The excess of the purchase price over the net assets of company acquired were abcated 100% to the 
customer list. . . - - -. 



COVlSTA COMMUNICATIONS, INCm AND SUBSIDIARIES - 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continbed) 
FOR M E  YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 

use of m m a m  -  he preparation of awrsolldated flnandal statem& in mnfwmiiy t y i  

accepted amounting principles. requires management make esthates and assumptions .that a f f a  
the reported amounts of assets and Ilabilltles, the dlscfosure of contingent aksets and liabiliies at the 
date of the consojk!ated financtal statements and !$e reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reported period. Actual results could differ fium those estimates. 

Cimcentraffons of Credit Wsk - The Company sells its telecommunlcatlons services and products . 
primarity to small to medium size businesses and wholesale customers. The Company performs ongoing. 
uedlt evaluatfons of both its retail and wholesale customers. The Company generally does not require 
collateral,. however when dmms@nces warrant, deposits are' required. Recent condltfons In the ' 
telecommunications Industry have given rise to an Increase in potential doubtful accounts. Alldwances 
are maintained for such pokntlal credit losses; The Company has entered Into offset arrangements 
with certain of its customers, who are also vendors, allowing for the ability to offset ~ceivables against: 
the Company's payables balance. : J 

-per Share - Basic lass per share Is represented by net loss available to common shareholders 
divlded by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss 
per share reflects the potential dilution that.could occur if securities or stodc optlons were exerdsed or 
converted Into Common Stadc during the period, if dilutive (see Note 15). 

Authodzed CO&OIZ Stvck- On February 23, 2000, the Company's shareholders approved an 
increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 20,000,000 to 50,000,000 shares. 

ash and Cash Equivafeni9 - The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash 6quivalents consist: of 
cash on hand, demand deposits and money market accounts. 

Fair Value of lrnanclal Instruments - Far cash and cash equivalents, the carrying value Is a 
reasonable estimate of its fair value. The estimated fair value of publlcly traded flnandal instruments Is 
determined by the Company using quoted market prices, dealer quotes and prices obtained from 
independent third parties. For flnandal instruments not publldy traded, fair values are estimated based 
on values obtained from independent third parties or quoted market prices of comparable insbyments. 
The fair value of the debt was deteimlned based on interest rates that are currently available to the 
Company for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities for debt issues that are not 
traded on quoted market prices. However, judgment k required to interpret market data to develop the 
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the &mates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that 
could be redfied h a currentmarket exchange. 

The carrying values and fair values of fl nancial lnsbvments are as follows: 

2002 . 2001 
Carrying . Fair 

Value Value Value Value . 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,379,038 $ 1,379,038 $2,691,889 $2,691,889 
Investments available hr sale $ 439,773 $ 439,773 $ 537,007 $ 537,007 
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31) 2005 2001 AND 2000 

' long-Lived Assets - The Company accounts for the Impairment of long-lived wets  and for long-livd 
assets to be disposed of by evaluating the o m n g  value 04 its long-lived assets h relaffon to the 

. operating pehrmance and future undl~~unted  cash flows of the underlying businesses annually and 
when indlcations of impairment a.re present. Long-lW assets to be disposed of, if any, are evaluated 

. In relation to the net realizable value. If Impairment. is indicated, the amount of the Impairment 1s 
typically calculated using discountd expected future cash flows* The discount rate applied to these cash' 
flows Is based on the Company's weighted average cost of capital. If the carrying value of the asset 
exc- the fair value of the asset, the difference will be charged to the results of operations Tn the 
period that the impairment occurred. 

-. :. '. Recent dhunffng pmnounrments - Statement of Finandal Accounting Standards (SFAS) NO. 
.' 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, b effective for all fiscal years 

beginning af&r June 15,2000. SFAS 133, as amended, establlshg dccounting and reporting standards a 

for derivative Instruments, indudlng certain derivative Instruments embedded in other contracts and for 
hedglng actlvitles. Under SFAS 133, certain contracts that were not formedy considered derivatives may 

. now meet the definition of a derivative. The Company adopted FAS 133 effective Februav 1,2001. The 
adoption of SFAS 133 did not have a significant impact on the financial positlan, results of operation, or 
cash flows of the Company. 

In June 2001, the Finandal Accounting Standards Board ("FASEW) issued Statement of Finandal 
Aaountlng Standards No. 141 ("SFAS 14In), %usiness Combinattons." SFAS 141 requires the purchase 
method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30,2001 and eliminates the 
pooling-of-interests method. Covista does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 141 will have a 
significant impact on its financial statements, beyond the cessation of goodwill arnortlzation on futbre 
business combinattons. As of January 31,2002 Covista has no Goodwill recorded on its books. 

In June 2001, the FASB lssued Statement of Finandal Acmunting Standards No. 142 ("SFAS 142% 

. . "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", which Is effective February 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requites, among 
other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard indudes provisions for 
the redas%ification of certain existing recognized intangibles as gaodwill, .reassessment of the useful 'lives of 

. . exIstlng recognized intangibla, redassiffcation of certain.intangibles out of prevloysfy reported goodwill and 
the Identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future lmpaiments of goodwill. SFAS 
142 also requires Covista b complete a tmnsitional goodwill impairment test six' months from the dak of 
adoption. Covista Is currently assessing but has not yet determined the impact of SFM 142 an' ik financial 
poskfon and results of operations.. 

, In August 2001, the F& l s su i  Statement of Rnandal Amwnting Standards No. 143 ("!iFAS 1439, ' 

'Acnintlng for Asset Retirement Obligations", which Is efkdive for all fIscal years begirinlng February I, .. 
'2003; SFAS 143 requires krdingthe.fair value of a liability for an asset retiremint obllgatlon In the perlod . 

In which It Is Incurred, and a wmspondlhg increase In the lanying M I U ~  of the related long-llved asset ' 

I 
Over time, the liability Is a& tD its present value ea* periad, and the...capitaked axt Is depredated 

. . over the useful life of the related asset; Upon settlenient gf the liability, it b either settled far its recorded 
. . . amount or a gain or lass upon settlement Is recorded. Covfsta is wrrently assessing but has not yet 

determined the impact of SFAS 143 on its .finandal pasiUon and results of operations. . . 
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 'AND SUBSIDIARIES . 
N m E S  TO ~QNSOUDATED FINANQAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

FOR M E  YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31f2002f2001 AND 2000 

In October 2001, the FASB i s u i  statement d Rnandal ADmunUng ~Gnaards NO. 144 ("SFAS 1+p), 'n 
h u n t i n g  for the Impairment or Dlsposai of Long Uved bets", which Is effectbe February 1, 2002. 

. SFAS 144 replaces the Statement of Rnandal Accounting Standa* No. 121, Accounting for the 
Impairment of Long Uved Assets and for LongLived Assets to be Disposed Of". SFAS 144 requires that 
.long-lived wets be measured a t  the lower of the G3flying amount or fair value, lep mst to sell, 
whether included in continuing operations or In discontinued operaUans. Covista is currently assessing 
but has not yet determined the impact of SFAS 144 on its financial position and results of operations. 

3. SEGMENT REPORTING 
C 

; , ' ihe Company  IS te!emmmunim~on services to N o  dlstlnct segments: a retail segment,.mnsisting 
primarily of small to rmedlum size businesses within the Northeastern United States, and' a wholesale . 

. . segment, with sales to other telemmmunio~ons mrriers.' 
J . . 

, . In addition to direct costs, each segment IS aktaed a proporUon of the Company's operating 
expenses,'lndudlng utilization of'its switch and facilities. The'allocatlon of'expenses is based upon the 

. minutes of use flowing through the Company's switching network. mere are no. Intersegment sales.' . 
Assets are held at the consolidated level and are not aliocable to the operating segments. Management' 
evaluates performance on operating results of the two business segments. 

summarized financial information concerning the Company's reportable segments is shown in the 
. following table. 

Retail Wholesale Total 
2002 

Net sales 
Gross margin 
operating loss 

2001 
Net sales 
Gross matgin 
Operating loss . 

. 2000 
Net sales $ 69,023,194 ' $ 70,737,303 $139,760;497 

. Grossma'rgln $ 20,712,262 $ 6,253,851 $26,966,119 
Operating loss . . 3 $ (3,905,664) $ 2,996,502 $ ( 909,162) 
opeking (loss) income after other ampensation - : $ (6,760,900) " $ 81,184 $ (6,619,716) 
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COWSTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

FOR M E  YEARS ENDED JANUARY 311 2002,2001 AND 2000 

4. INVESTMENT S E C U W E S  

Investments available for sale consist of: 
. - -- 

2002 
Gmss Un- Market 

!a! sah w m  a& 
Bond . $25,0aO $ - $ $ 25,000 .$ 25,000 
Mutal Funds 4 1 4 ~ n  - - 414,m . Z~O,OOO 
CommanSW . - - - 

7- -70.7aP 

. . b 

RK deferred on the net unreallaxi gains at ~anualy 31,2002. and 2001 wek $0 and $0, &pectlve[y; 
~.resultlng In net amounts of $0 and $241,307 in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. 

The bond will mature in 2005. 

5. P R O P E ~ R ~  AND EQUIPMENT 

. Property and equipment consists of: 

Machinery and equipment 
Office. furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Leasehold impmvernents 
Vehides . .. 
Computer equlpment.and sofhwre - 
Machinery and equlprnent In progress 

ten accumulated depredation and ,atmrtizatIon 

, 

. . 
- Depredation and amortidon w e n s =  reliited &I pmp&rty and &lpment foi..the years ended. 

January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, was $3,658,244, @ , ~ 3 3 J ~ ~ 4 ,  and $2,862,151, respednretYpednretY , 



COVlSTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SCATEMEMS (continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000 

6. INCOMETAXES . 

The provi~idn (benefR) for income taxes indudes the following: . . . 
. - -- 

2002 2661 2000 

. Federal . 
- ' Current.. $ - . $  - ; $  - 

Deferred . . 1,893,850 L 

'State Income taxes 
Current - - L 

Deferred - - 809.768 

J 
$-,axUU 

Deferred income taxes reflect the ,net tax effects of bempomry differences betwen the canying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for finandal reporting purposes and the amounts used for Income tax 
purposes valuation allowances are provided against assets that are not likely to be reallzed. 

The Income tax effects of significant items comprising the Company's net deferred tax asset (liability) 
are as follows: 

2002 2001 . 
Current Lana-terq , Current Lana-term 

Deferred bk assets: 
~Ilowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,991,860 
Aarued compensation. expense - 
Unamortized leaq Incentive - 
Am'ed'  expenses 332,560 
Net opemt!ng loss anyforward. . - 
.Alternative minimum tax credit . . 
Other 74.550' 

. . 
- Total gross deferred lax assets 2;398,970 - 11;739,789 1,593,750 . - ' .7,846,990 

Less: valuation allowance (2,398,970) 19.530,179\ (I ,593,7501 . . ts,ai2.7901 

Total net d e f e d  tax asset .- , 2.209.610 ' - - . 2,034.200 - . .  'L. 

. . .  

Deferred tax llabilitles: 
Property and equipment - . . (2,209,610) ' - ' (1,937,820) 
Other . . . - - . . - ,' (96,380) 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred tax asset (liablityl 



COV~STA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ' 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 

. 'A recon~llation from the US. statutory tax rate of 34% to the effective bk rate for income taxes on the - 
consolidated statements of (loss) earnings is as follows: . 

. - '  
:Computed expense a t  statutory rates 
(Reductfons) increase in taxes resulting from 
. Tax exempt Interest income 

. Staik taxes (benefit), net of federal lnm,me 
tax benefit 

Put agreement 
ValuaUon allowance 
Other 

A t  January 31, 2002, .for .Federal income tax purposeS, the CDmpany had net operating loss 
carryforwards of approximately $24.4 million which will begin to expire In stages in the year 2020, and 
alternative minimum tax credit carryforwads of approxlmqteiy $594,000. The alternative minimum tax 
credit does not expire. 

7. LEASE COMMrlPlENTS 

The Company rents various facilities under lease agreements classified as operating leases. Several of 
the underlying agreements contain certain incentives eliminating payments at the inception of the lease. 
Lease incentives are amortized on a *ighf-llne basis over the entire lease term. Under terns of these 
leases, the Company Is required tq pay its proportionate share of increases in real estate .taxes, 
operating expenses and other related costs. 

The Comaanv leases warehouse space in Belleville, New Jersey from a partnership In which twa of the . . 
partners were directors and major'shareholders of the Company. Both partners are no longer directors. 
During i$e flscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company paid..rent of $21,530, 

; ~$49,479 and $62,848, respecthe& to the partnership. The kase expired on November 30, 1998, and 
, has been renewed subject to tegnination upon 120days. prior written notlce by either party. The lease 

' was amended on Augkt 31, 1399 to provide an annual fate af$47,980. The lease termhated during 
. .the flscal.year endlng January 31,2002. 

Covisla has enter@ into a lease agreement for 28,000 square feet of offlce space In Chattanooga, 
Tennessee, with Henry G. Luken Ill who is Covlsta's Chairina~ 9- the .Board and its prlndpal 

. 'shareholder. The term of the lease Is for five years beginfling September 1,2001. The lease provides 
, . *.for annual rent of $86,400 from September I, 2001 to August 30, 2002; $115,200 fmm'September 1, 

2002 to August 30,2003; $144,000 fium September 1,2003 to August 30 2004, with the last two years 
.to be $144,000 annually adjusted for the Consumer Prlce Index. Covista believes that such premises 
: are leased on terns similar to an arm's length transadon. 
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' 1  : ,/ COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

1: ,.. 
I, . NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contiinued) 
I 

? FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002, ZOO1 AND 2000 
t I 

f; t '  
I'. 

In July 2001, ~ovista eritered i r h  an appmdmatel~ $1,245,000 sale and leaseback bansadon whereby 
I 

!!;{ a 
Covista sold and l&ed back new and exiting tekc~mmunicatlons switching equipment 

I . . ' 'earlier in the current fiscal year. 'The equipment was sold for the origlnal puichase price. The term 1s 
.I : 

, three years and Covista has an option to repurchee the equipment at hir market value at lease, 
.I; termination. The related lease'is'belng accounted fbr as an opentfng lease. 
.3 i 

I I 

! ' 
.!: 

' I n  ~ k m b e r  2001, Covida negotiated .another sale and leaseback tra&adon for a second 
i, teletommun~cations switrh for approximately $1,092,700. The lease contract Is similar to the first 
1; .' transactton, with a term of three years with an optlon to iepurchase the equipment at fair market value ;, 

. , at lease brtnlnation. The second lease Is also accounted for as an operating lease. . . 

Future mlnlmum annual rentals on these leases as ofJanuary 31,2002 are as follows: . 

Year ending January '31, . 
2003 
2004 
2005 
,2006 
2007 
2008 and thereafter 

I .  

...,. . 1 Rental expense for the years ended January 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $2,3,355,000,~ 

.:' . $1,500,000, and $1,377,000, respectively. 
1 .  

8. EMPLOYEE BENERT PLANS ' 

. The Company has established a savings Incentive plan for substanffalfy all employees of tfie Company 
whldi Is qualified under sectlon 401(k) of. the Internal Revenue Code. The savings plan provides for 

. 4antrtbutIons tb an independent trustee by both. the Company and its partidpating employees. Under 
the plan, employees may conHbute up to 15% of their pretax base pay. The Company .matches50016 
of the first.6% of paitidpant Fontributlons. Partlclpants vest Immediately h their own contributions and 
:.over .a period ,of six years for the Company's cpntributions. Company contribuUons'were approximately 
$162,000, $95,000, and $125,000, for the yedrs ended January 31,2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

. 
9. STOCK OPRON P M S  . I 

' . - j  . 

. . 
, 

The Company has fbur stock option plans abthoridngJthe granting d either Incen&e.~tod; bptions or 
Nonqualffied Stack Optlons, 7he.1987 Stodc Optlan Plan. (the "1987 Plan")prvlded for the issuahce of 
an aggregate of not m ~ r e  than 1,329,800 shares of the Company's Common Sbck . The 1996 Stock 
.Qptron Plan (the "1996 Plan3 provldes for the.lssuance of an aggregate of not morethan 600,000 
. shares of the Company's Common Stock. The 1999 Equity IncenWe Plan (the "1999 ~!an")pmvldes for 
the issuance of an aggregate of not more than 750,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock The 

, 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the %I01 Plan") prdvides for the issuance of an aggregate of not more than 
. .  . 9Q0,000 shares cf the Csmpacy's Csnncr: Sto&. . . .. . - .  . .  . . . . .  

8 % 



COVlSTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC- AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31r2002,2001.AND 2000 . 

Stock Optlans g & e d  pursuant to the Plans must have an exercise price equal to at least 50% of the 
fair market value of the Carnpariy's Common Stqdc at the the optlan is granted. Incentive stock . 
Options may be granted only to employees- Nonqualiffd SFck Options may be granted to employes 
.-.as well as directors, independent contractors and agents, as determined by the Baard of Dlrectars. A~I 
aptions available to be granted under the 1987 Plan were granted prior to Septemb,y 1, 1997. All 
options availabie to be granw under the 1996 Plan, tohllng 49,350 at January 31, 2002, must be 

. - granted by October 10, 2006. All options available to be granted under the 1999 Plan, totallng 242,667 
at January 31,2002, must be granted by Februaty 23,. 2009- All options available to be granted.under 
the 2001 Plan, totaling 47,400 at January 31,2002, must be granted February 8,2012. 

L 

n 

At January 31,2002, shares under the 2001 Plan had not been regI*red by the Company. The omons 
cu'ently outstandin'g have 'terms that expire between five and ten years from the date of grant and 

. over a period of one to four yead fmm the date of the grant 

On February 23,2004 the Board of Directon p a s d  a resdutlon 'allowing the company to reprkC all 
outstanding options granted under the 1996 Plan and the .'I999 Plan. All outstanding options, 
approxlmateiy 243,000 net of cancellaUons, which were originally granted at prices ranging from $14.63 

- to $21.50 per share were repriced to $14.25 per share, Accordingly, the option prices per share and 
weighted average exercise prlce in the following 1996 Plan and 1999 Plan tables have been reslated to 
.reflect the $14.25 exercise price. All other terms and conditions, indudlng vestlng periods remain 
unchanged. The repriced options are subject fo variable plan accounting and as a result there was no 
income statement effect of these options In the y&r ended January 31,2002 and. January 31,2001 due 
b the decrease h the Company's stock price below the new exercise price. 

On February 1, 2001, 35 employees were given the opportunity to cancel 248,200 options to purchase 
Common Shares. All 35 agreed to cancel the optlans. On August 2, 2001 248;200 options to purchase 
Common Shares were Issued at the then closing market prlce of $5.65 per share. 

Information regarding options under the 1987 Plan Is as follows: 

. Weishted ' , - O~t lon  Prlcq 
edsablq E i  

Averase 
. . I Per Shaq . Outstandhq Ex erdse ~r icq  

January 31,1999 balance ' $0.51 - $4.81 . 310,000 310,000 $ 1.77 
- .-Exercised $0.51 - $4.83 ~211,0001 - ~211,oao) ji 2.25 

January 31r2000 balance $0.51 - .$1.00 ' 99,00a' -?.- 99,000 $ 0.75 

- Exerdsed $ 0.51 , [16,50U) 16.500 . 3 0.51 

January31,ZOOl balance $0.51 - $ i00  82,500 82,500 . $ 0.80 
.Exerdsed $ . 1.00 (16150(!) (16,500] $ 1.00 

, Cancelled $0.51 - $1.00 . (66.000) (66.0001 $ . 0.80 

January 31,2002 balance - d - - . $  
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COYISTA COMMUNICAVO~W, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 ' 

. Information regarding optfons under the 1996 Plan Is as hllows: 

O ~ t i 0  
' ' ' Per5"L:." 0utrtsndhq 

January 31,1999 balance . $7.25 - $14.25 342,100 
Granted $14.25 261,500 

. Became Exerdsable a 
. $14.25 o 

. .Exerdsed . $7.25 - $14.3 . (165,500) 

. Cancelled $7.25 - $14.25 (94.1001 

danuaty 31,2000 balance , $10.00 - $14.25 . ' 344,006 
Became Exercisable . $1455 - 

. . fancelled ' $14.25 (259.6001 

Exerdsable 
175,000 - 
87,683 

(165,500) - 

: i % ,  

I 
I a 4; . . January 31,2001 balance .' $10.00 - $14.25 ' 84,400 51,367 $ . 13.50 
: Granted . . . $2.00 523,000 ' - 
! $ 2.00 

L i  BecameExerdsable ' $2.00 i - . 101,000 . $ 2.00 
I '1. Cancelled . . $ 2.00- $14.25 (259,400) ( 51,367) $ . .5.74. 
..I : 
I. ~ercised $2.00 ( ~ , O O O ~  (S.OOO~ ii 2.00 
'1: 

I 
I . . January 31,2002 balance ' . 4. --2klua --=Q3 '$~-&!a 

i 
I .  1 .  

Infonnatfon regarding optlons under the 1999 Plan Is as follows: I i 
1: - '  . 

I Weiahted 
:,I . :.I. '. . . . O~tion Prkq Averass 
$1. .. Per Sharq . . Outstandlnq Exerdsable' Exerelje Prlcq 
9 .  

January 31,,1999 balance $ 
L ;I - - - $ - . 

1 . . . :Granted . . $ . 14.25 -.. 684,500 '. . $. 143- :!] !. - 
$.J Became Exeklsable ,. . $ 14.25 - $1 : 48,000 ' ' . $ 14.25' 
6.' , .. . tancelled , $ 14.25 fi63.5001 ' o $ 

. . 14.25 
!C .. ; . . 

t. . January 31; ZOO0 balalice $ 14.25 521,000 ' .  48,000 . $. 14.25 
I '  

.I:: Granted $ 14.25 ', 365,100 -c. o $ 14.25 

.I , : ~ecame' Exercisable $ 14.25 , - 92,375 . $ 14.25 . 

'J :. Cancelled . . $ 14.q (3n.6001 (48,000) $ 14.25 
. - ..I: . . 
$ - . .January 31,2001 balance $. 14.25 513,500 92,375 $ 14.25 . :I: ' .  . .  

Granted . $ 2.00 - $7.00 . 558,400 - $' 3.76. 

Became .hercisable , 
$ i00 - $3.50 - 8,433 $ . 2.02 

, i 
- I  . Cancelled , . . . .. . . ..-... . ..... . .-. . $3.00 - $14.25 (573,000) . . . ( 89,175). . . $ - . .- 12.93 . . .... .. 
I . 
.I . - Exerdsed $ 2.00 - $3.50 8.4331 ( 8.4331 $ . 2.02, 
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. COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
'NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002,ZOOl AND 2000 

Information regarding optfdns under the 2001 Plan Is as follows: 

.. Welahted 
5 . . OMon P r i q  .-- Averaqq ' 

per h a  Outshndlnq Exerelsablq Ex_e~ise 
January 31,2001 balance $ - - . , - $ - 
Granted . . . $ 2.00 -$6.71 855,500 - $ 4.02 . 

Became Exerdsable ' . $ 2.00 -$5.65 . - U3,899 $ 4.26 . :- 

. Cancelled . $ 5.65 ( 2.900) . . . . ' ,  - s 5.65 1 
' - 

' +  

The following table nrmmarizes information about options omr id ing  'of January 31,2002 under the, 
' 

1987,..1996, 1999 and 2001 Plans: 
. . 

options. Outstanding . . Options &erdsable 
Average Weighted . Weighted 

Number of Remaining Average Number of Average 
Range of Shares Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise 

exercise erices outstandlnq life Price outstandinq Price 

$2.00 - $7.00 1,672,867 5.23 $3.52 . 309,899 $ 3.56 

" $7.01 - $14.25 13,200 3.07 $14.25 3,200 $ 14.25 

The Company has adopted the dlsdosure-only provision of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation." Had compensation cost for the Company's plans been determined based on the fiir 
value a t  the grant date for awards in the ffscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, 
consistent with the provisbns of SFAS No. 123, the Company's net loss and basic and dlluted loss per 
share would have been $10,837,464, $1.06 and $1.06 for 2002; $8,886,465, $1,23 and $1.23 for 2001; 
$10,068,538, $1.43 and $1.43 for 2000. 

The fiir value of the optlon grants Is estimated based on the date of grant using the Black-Sdwles 
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for. grants in fiscal 2002, 

.- .2001, and 2000: dividend yield of 0.00% for the three years; e)cpected volatility of 165.18%, 62.23% 
and 46.11%, respectively; rish-free Interest rate of 6.47016, 3.85% and 6.02% respectively; and 
expected l k  of 3 to 5 years for each of the'thrk years. ' - 

The Company, a t  the. discMon of the Board of ~irecto~s, has awarded fmm .time to tlrne to. 
management personnel shares of its Common St& at  par value. These shares vest over a perlod of 
three to five yeais: The Company awarded 0 shares, 0 shares, and 1,000 shares of its Common Stock. 
and recorded cornpensatlon w p a e  of $1~011, $266,565, and $204,015 for the years ended Januafy 
31,2002,2001 and 2000, respectively. 

. . . . . .,. . .Shqes.~.nce!led by the Company due to termination or reslgnatlon of the recipients for the yeamnded  .., 
1 . - ... . .lanuarv 31. 2002. 2001 and 2000 totaled 0.4.000 and 35,383 respectively, which amounts have been 



COVlSTA COMMUNICATIONSy INC. AND SUBSIDI~IES 
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 3Iy2002,2001 AND 2000 

11. LONG-TERM DEBT ' I 

On July 2, ZOO1 , Covlsta received a !oan I-hry (3: I.~ken IIIt Chairman of the Board and principal 
shareholder, in the amount of $4,000,000. The loan matures on kbruary 1,2003 together with accumulated 
Interest at  a rak of 8% per annum. The proceeds of the loan Were used to purchase a 10-year commitment fcr 
apprmbmatdy 2.8 billion D50 channel miles of telecommunicatlom network capacity fium an unafWbted pa*, 
This prepaid network capacity Is lnduded in prepaid expenses (current portfon of $400,000) and other assets 
(long term partlon of $3,600,000, net of current year a ~ ~ t t k d i o n  of $233,000). The cost will be amortized to 
operations based upon the greater.of capadty use or m k h t  h e  over the term of the agreement The 
unaffiliated  pa^ has kentty filed frJr Chapter 11 reorganization; however at  the time of this filing Is continuing 
tn perform under the agreement ' Mr. Luken also advmced the Company, $400,000, the pmaxds of whlch 
were used for construction of new ficilitles, The agreement calls for interest tn be a w e d  a t  a rate of 8% per 
annum. The total balance of the liability Is $4,4tl0,000 plus ~0clllOCllled interest: at January 31,2002. (see Note 21b) 

J 

As of January 31, kl02,~~ovl& owes a remaining balance of $381,95 loan payable to a New Jersey bank, all of 
which is classified as current: The interest tate on the term loan Is 7.71% and Is payable the scheduled monthly 
installments of $55,923. The tern loan requires the Company b meet certain menants. The tern loan Is 
collateralized by certain of the Company% machinery and equipment At January 31,2002, the Company was 
not in compliance with these covenank. 

12 OTHER ~MPENSATION 
On September 21, 1999, tk Company entered into an agr&ent with Warren Feldman, Chairinan of the 
Board of Ditectors and a'shareholder of the Company. As part of thls agrement, a lump sum In the 
amount of $900,000 was pald'ln Mr, Feldman in settlement of his employment agreement1The Cqmpany 
pald $650,000 and Mr. ~ a l t  Anderson, a major shareholder,. paid $250,000. Mr. Feldman's Employinent 
Agreement would have been In effect until December 31, 2001. The Company expensed the $900,000 

: with the $250,000 .being accounted for as a capital contribution. . . 

~huitaneously, Revislbn U C  and Mr. ~ a l t  A n d k n  ("Revision/Anderson") and the Company entered lntc 
put option agreements with Warren Feldman, Sol Feldman ("the Feldmans") and Ledn Genet, ("wet") a 
director of the Company. Thke Put Option agreements allowed the Feldmans and Genet the right tb sell 

. . their shares of ,the Company to Revlsbn/Anderson at a prlce of $16.00 per share and obllgak 
Revision/Anderson to purchas'e the shares durlng an e x d e  period beginnlng on December 11,1999 anc 
ending -on Febfuary 10, 2000. Revision/Anderson purchased the shares under the put option agreementr 
prior to the deadhe,-with liie exception of 100,778 shares still held by the Fddman's. The Company hac 
no obngation tlD purchase any shares fmm the Feldmans oi: Genet ?he dosing market price of thc 
Company's shares on September 21,1999, the date of the agreements, \a@s $12.25, and the tatal numbel 
of shares covered by the agreements was 1,208,137, Using a binomial valuation model with an lnteres 
rate of 5% and a yolatility rab of SO%, the fair value of the Put Option agreements was determined to bt 
approximately $4.03 per share or $4,870,554, In accordance with the Securities and m a n g e  Commlssior 
Staff Accounting Bulletln No. 83, the Company accounted for thls non-cash transadon as a charge IK 
expense and a &it to paid-in capital during the quarter ended October 31,1999. 



13. RESTRUCTURING 

Durlng the lourth quarter d ftscai 1999, the ~mPanY rea~m a m C h h K J  Charge of apprmdmately 
$2,368,000 related tci the adoption by the Campany of a fbml plan fir resbuchmdng its focus of - 

. omens. Jhe mcturlng was adopted In an  effcrt b cmWrate the Company's efforts on the .' 
Northeastern United stam market Elements of the Company's restructuring plan lnduded eliminating the 
.sales offices in Horfda, Atlanta, Georgia, Washington D.C and the United Kingdom as well as the Miami - 
swftrh. - 

For the f ls~ai  year ended .~anuary 31, 2000, amounts aggregating approximately $1,797,OW ipgied 
against the a h 1  consisted of 'approximately $1,280,000 far the write down of the Miami .swit&, 
appraximattily $99,000 for the line In~tallaUon dI approximately $51,000 for payments made on-the 
Fort ~auderdale lease, approximately $327,000 .for =veran= payments and approximately $40,000 far 
payments made to shut down the U.K. operation. kfditrcnally, an aggregate of approxhately $319,000' 
whlch'ls reflected as a &it through the resbucturing charge line in the fiscal 2000 consolidated finandal 
statements consisted of approxlmately $97,000 reduction In the severence accrual, approximately $20,000 
for the reduction .of the fiinge benefit a m i .  and $202,000 reduction In. the a h a 1  on the Fort 
Lauderdale lease, due b revisions In the lease. The sahmgqble components of the switch were relooted 
to the Company's New York CRy switch In the third quarter of fiscal 2000. After restructuring'charges 
incurred, the balance in .the 'reserve at January 31, 2000,. of approxlmately $~,000, consisted. .of the 

. settlement of the lease 'in Fort Lauderdale, Rorlda. 

Inme fiscal year ended January 31,2001, the Company settled, icr approximately $YWO, the halaice 
on the lease ir! Fork Lauderdale, Florida, which was charged against the restructuring kerve, . . . .  . 

14 COMMrrrvlENTS AND C O N ~ N G E N C I ~  

- The &mpaiy IS - l d v e d  in variqus kgai  and administrative adions arising In the normal ewe of 
business. While the resolution of any such'aetlons may have an Impact on the flnandal results for the 
period In which It' Is resolved, management believes that the ultimate disposition of these matters will 
n h  have a material adverse effect upon its consolidated results of operatfons, cash flows or flnandal 
pqlUon. 

. .  . . . 

15. LOS'PERSHARE . '  . ,  . . .  
. . . . 

Bask I& per share was c o & ~  by dividing net lo& by the'weighfd average number of shares of 
Common 'Stock outstanding durfng each year. Diluted lossper share was computed on the assumption 
that all stock options convertd or exercised during each year or outstanding at the end of each year 
were converted at the beginning of each year or at the date of Issuance or grant, if dilutlve. . 

. . 





COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSlDlARlES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEJWS (continued) . 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED. JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 

... Amounts in thousands except per shak data. 

. - 
Nkf: earnlngs (loss) 
Basic eamlngs (loss) per common share 
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 

April 30,2000 . ( July 32,2000 ( October 31,2000 

' July 3% 1999 

$36,617 
590 
339 
0.05 
0.05 

Net sales 
Operating income (loss) . 
Net m.rnings (loss) 
Basic earnlngs (loss) per common share 
Dlluted earnings (loss) per common share 

October 31,1939 
- $36,988 
(5,954) 
(539) 
(0.77) 

, (0.71) 

April 30, 1999 

$33,530 
519 
296 
0.04 
0.03 

Net sales 
Operating income (loss) 
Net earnings (loss) ' 
Basic earnings (loss) per common share 

Diluted eamlngs (loss) per common share 

January 31,2000- 
$32,625 
(1,834) 
(4,510) 
(0.63) 
(0.63) 

1 
. 

17. EMPLOYEE S K K K  OWNERSHIP PLAN 

On September 1, 1996 the Company +bllshed the dovista ~ornmunlcatlons, Inc  Employee Stodc 
Ownership Plan (the "ESOP Plan") Concurrentty. with the establishment of the nonleveraged ESOP Plan, 
the Company contributed 600,000 shares of its Common Stodc to the ESOP Plan. The Common shares 
were recorded a t  fair vqlue a t  the date contributed to the ESOP, totaling approximately $12.2 rnilllon, 
with an offset to Unearned ESOP.Shat-es In the Statement of Shareholders' Equity. The ESOP Plan was 
to'be admlnisteredthmugh a trust by a w e  deslgnakd by the Board of Directors 

. In February 1999, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the ~ l n a t l o n  of the ESOP Plan. The IRS 
gave its approval to terminate tfie ESOP, and the CompanJ offidally Wminated thb plan during 2002, apd 
theentire 600,000 shares of Common Stodc were ~turned: to authorized but unissued stiares of Ccmmon 
stock. , .  

April 30, 2001 
$29,444 

(4,863) 

(4,592) 

(0.56) 

(0.56) 

July 31,2001 
$20,892 

42 

86 

. .Ol  

-01 

October 31,2001 
$201467 

(1,790) 

(1,asg) 

(0.13 
(0.17) 

January 31,2002 
$16,510 

(5,551) 

(5,605) 
(0.52) 

(052) 



f .  COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOrrS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31f 200& 2001 AND 2000 

18. ACCESS CHARGE SElTLEMENT 
i. 

:fl 
1 ' .  ~n the &ond quarkr of ffxai 2001, the Chnpany ~ ~ ~ e i v t x t a  cash ' b e n t  ot $1,264,483 fiam -1, 
! 
I .  Bell Companies In settlement of a. class action suit, to which the Campany .was a party, filed in 199: 
1' 

1: . relating to alleged overdrarge by those companl&. me settiement.conduded the dass actian with tht 
i: '  - Bell Companies. 'The Company's portfon of the ~&thtmt was n9t determined until the second qua& 
1. 
1: 

ended July 31,2000. The cash payment was recorded as  a sepahte line item as a reductland ant . , . -  . ' expenses in thelqua&r ended July 31,2000. 
:i . . .c 

1 ;  : 

. ... $1 . ' A dire&r of the Company selves on the Board of ~lte&rs of ~ a ~ . s &  Communications, i n k  

..,$ ("Capsule"jsee Note 21). Also the Chalrrnan of the Company is 'the majorlty shareholder of Capsule 
: .i. The Company. purrhaies and sells servlces, to Capsule. Salesto Capsule in the ye- ended Janyar 
;: 31, 2002, '2001. and 2000 were appmhately. $615,004 $532,000 and $681,000, respectively 

Purchases from Capsule in the years ended January 31, 2002,. 2001 and 2000 were approximate! 
. $660,000, $544,000 and $291,000 respectively. All transadons were based on ~mpetitive tern: 

- obtained in arm's length transactions. 
.: yj.1 
a; . 

On .February 1,2001, the Board of Directors of the Company representing a majority ownership of 
:..':* , 
,<$? 1: 
j.: .< the Company, subject to perfunctory shafeholder's approval which was abtgined on March 29, 

/ 2001, authorized the sale of a total of 3,500,000 shares of Common Stock to the following three 
. ' persons (the "~urchasers") in the amounts Indicated: Kevln Alward, 1,000,000 shares; A. John Leach, 

I. 

.. I. 500,000 shares; and Henry G. Luken, III, 2,000,000 shares. The purchase price for the,Common 
' I Stock to be Issued ta Messrs. Alward, Leach and Luken Is $2.00 per share, based on the fair market 

6 

f I. 
value of shares a t  February 1,2001. The stock sale was consummated in April 2001 with the 

! ' Issuance of 3,150,000 shares of common stock The Board of Directors authorized a decrease of 
. ," 350,000 shares to be purchased by Mr. Leach. I ; 1.. 
. 1: 

I* . 1; 
I. . 

On February 1,2001, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the acquisition of BIlnk Data 
Carpokklon, a telecommunicatlons company, of which Kevin AIward was a. prindpal shareholder, !>.I.. . 

....I . . 'officer and director, for 300,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock valued at the fair market 
8&l :+!: . - value at  March 29, 2001 for t p a l  consideration of $900,000. The trapsaction was completed on 
.. ..-: . . March 29,200.l. . . 
:;+-I: 
:;. .j' 
..::.!: On July 24,2001 and August 9,2001, the Company issued notes &ivabli t6 Capsule for a total 
?&.! principal of $200,000 and $300,000, respectively with Interest payable a t  8 %% to be paid no later .. . 
it;# , . than one year from eachxnote issuance. . . . 
i $  . . ' . , 

+3ii Jay J. Miller, a Dlrector of Covlsta, has provided various le&l services for Covlsta during Rad 2002. I 
,. 
1:. . . . Flxal 2002, Cavlsta paid $144,574 to Mr., Miller for servim reri*red-and a m e d  for In Flscal 200 

. 1, As of January 31, 2002, Carista. owed Mr. Miller $179,316. he1feve.s that Mr. Miller's 'fees we! 
reasonable for the services perforpd and were no less favorable to Covista Fan auld have ba 

. obtalned from an unrelated thjrd party. . . ... 
. Leon Gene5 a Director of Covista, has pnwided agent &ces for Covisla through his wholly-own~ 

Regis€rant, LPJ, Inc During Fiscal 2002, WJ, Inc was paid commIssfons of $93,066. The commissio~ 
paid to LPJ, Inc were computed on the same basis as other independent agents retained by Covista. 

I 

1 .. I:  . . ,. - ... .._-- . . -  .,.. - . . . . . -  
.: 11 .- . 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
N07ES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND 2000 

EMPLOYEE RECEIVABLES 

, Wuded h prepaid expenses and other cunent assets is a note receivable totaling $262,500 
evidencing a loan to a fo~er:employee of the Company. The n h  beats interest at 11.5% per 
annum, and Is:;payable in monthly iNtalllnents with the lasf: Payment due on January 1, 20q4. The 
.Company Is In the process of negottatlng collection of the note- 

An add[tlonal?~qppmxlmate $179,000 of employee receibles IS Included in prepaid &penses and 
other current assets. ' This remaining balance rep@ents loans and payroll advances to various :. 

. . . employees. .. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
. - 

a. On February 8, 2002, the Company acquired Capsule ~mmunicaffons, I nc  ("Capsule")ar 
1,724,311.shares of Common Stack. Capsule Is a te~ecommunicatfons carrier providing local and 

' long-distance telephone communications senfices to small and medium size business customers 
and residential customers generally located In the Mid-Atlantic region and in California. Capsule 
is a related party of which both Henry G. Luken m, the Chairman and shareholder of the 
Company, and Walter Anderson, a director and shareholder of the Company, each of whom were 
the two major shareholders' in Capsule. The terms of the acquisition were that all shareholders 
with the exception of Henry Luken received 0.0917 shares of Covista Common Stodc for each 

.share of Capsule Common Stack, and Mr.- Luken received 0.0688 shares of Covista Common 
Stock for each share of Capsule Common Stock The total value of the acquisition was 
approximately $11,000,000. 

b. On Februab 20,2002 the ~oard af Dlr.ect0i-s approved the.private sale of additional common 
Stock of up to $12,500,00Q. The investment: would indude a cash infusion of $4,800,000 for 
debt or Common Stock, contributlan of $3,300,000 of fixed assets for debt or Common Stodc and 
the conversion of all existing long-term debt to Common Stock at $5.00 per shargr. The ,-. 

' 

commitment for funding for the investment is anticipated to '&me primarily from the current' 
. Chairman of Covista's Baard and is subject to shareholder's approval at the next annual or 

scheduled meeting of stockholders.. As of May 14,2002, $2,600,000 of cash was received from 
the Chairman of ~ovi&s'~oard in exchange for debt Finally, the Conipany is pbnning to obtain 
a line of credit from a bank If such line of credit is not obtained, the Chairman. of .the Board has 
mmmittqt to loaning $2 million . to the , Company through at least the s&nd quarter of Fiscal . 

. ' 2004; . ,  
C .  
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARI.ES 
Schedule I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (ConsolidatetJ) , 

Column A ' . 

Additions 
Charged Charged to 

.. Balance at (Credited) to , 0th'er . Balanc 
. . - 'Beginning C M  and Accounts- Deductions- at End 

Desdption of Period Expenses Describe . Describe Perio~ 
. . . . 

. MAR ~ D E D  3 W A R Y  31,2002. . . . . 
Resetves and allowances. 

deducted from asset accounts: , * . ., 
. . 

' Allowant& for uncollectible 
accounts $ .4,075,223 $5,382,384 $ . . - .$4,47O1477(A) $ 4,98; 

. . I  
' valuation reserve on 

deferred tax asset . .$ 7,406,540 $ 4,618,990 $- . - $ - $12,0? . . 
. . . . 

- 

YEAKENDED JANUARY 31,2001. . . . . 

Reserves and allowances 
deducted from asset accounts 
Allowanck.for uncollectible 1, 

accounts ' $ 1,827,260 ' ' $ 2,346,761 $ - $ 98,798 . $ ' 4,07: 
. . . . 

~aluaffon &serve on 
deferred tax asset - f 3,70ml . $ 3,703,659 . $ - $ .  - $ 7,40 

. . 
. . ~l iOmi - r&  not deducted: 

'Restructuring reserve $ ii;995 $ - 
, * 

$ - $ 11,995 $ 

YEAR END& JANUARY 31,~ooo , . . 
Reserves and allowances , ' I .  

deducted from asset accounts:. , .  
. . 

Allowance for uncollectibte . 
accounts . $ 1230,488 $ ~,074,916 . . : 1 - $ 478.139' $ 1,82 

Valuation reserve on 
deferred tax asset . ' $ ' . " $ 3,702,881 ' $ - $  - $ 3,7C 

. . 
Allowances not deducted: 

Restructuring reserre $ 2,128,000 $ (3X8.879) $' - $ 1,797,126 $ j 

(A) Represents write-off of accounts receivable against the allowance in Fscal Year 2002; 
.. - . .  . . .  - . .  . . . .. .- .- 
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ITEM I - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(Unaudited) 

Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended 
October 31, October 31, 

2002 2001 2002 2001 

NET SALES $ 77,002,274 $78.803.039 $26,773,184 $20,466,685 

Costs and Expenses - . 
Cost of sales . 54,341,941 64,423,267 18,185,528 15,335,763 
Selling, general and administrative 30.717.399 20,990,705 9,846.672 6.921.048 

. . Total costs and expenses 

OPERATING LOSS . 

Other Income (Expense) 
Interest income 
Other income 
lnterest expense ' 

Total other income (expense) 

Loss before benefit from income taxes 

Benefit from income taxes 

- NET LOSS 

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

BASIC LOSS PER COMMON SHARE 

DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE 
. . 

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

October 31, January 31, 
2002 2002 - 

(Unaudited) (Note) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments available for sale 

Notes receivable - 
Accounts receivable, net 16,937,991 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 534, I 64 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 20,853,524 13,945,428 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 14,557,592 12,489,626 

OTHER ASSETS: 

Deferred line installation costs, net 579,519 174,785 

Intangible assets, net 2,441,532 . -  

Goodwill, net 8,307,850 - 

Other assets 3,962,091 4,646,952 

Note: The condensed consolidated balance. sheet at January 31,2002 has been 
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date. 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
I 

October 31, 
2002 

(Unaudited) 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Current portion of long-term debt 

~ccoun'ts payable 

Other current and accrued liabilities 

Salaries and wages payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Other Long Term Liabilities 

Long-Term Note Payable - Bank 
Long-Term Note Payable - Shareholder - 
Total Notes Payable 

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 

Cpmmon stock 

Additional paid-in-capital 

Accumulated deficit 

Treasury stock 

Total Shareholders1 Equity 

January 31, 
2002 

(Note) 

Note: The condensed consolidated balance sheet at January 31,2002 has been 
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date. 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Unaudited) 
Nine Months Ended 

October 31, 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss 
Adjustment for non-cash charges 
Gain on sale of marketable securities 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of 
Acquisitions 
Net cash used in operating activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash acquired in purchase of business 
Proceeds on sale of marketable securities 
Purchases of marketable securities 
Purchase of prepaid network capacity 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Proceeds from sale and leaseback transaction 

Additions to deferred line installation costs 
Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Sale of common stock 
Proceeds of loan from shareholder 
Proceeds from bank borrowings 
Repayments of bank borrowings 
Net cash provided by financing activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
BEGINNING OF PERIOD 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
END OF-PERIOD 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH 
FLOW INFORMATION: 
Cash paid (received) during the period for: ,- 

Merest 
Income taxes 

Business Acquired 
Fair Value of Assets excluding cash 
Less Liabilitv Assumed . 
Less: stock-consideration for business acquired (9 2,972,127) 
Cash acquired 1,179,172 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Unaudited) 

NOTE A--BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the 
instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. They do not include all information and 
notes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. However, 
except as disclosed herein, there has been no material change in the information disclosed in the notes to 
the consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Covista 
Communications, Inc. (formerly Total-Tel USA Communications, Inc.) and Subsidiaries (Covista) for the 

I 

fiscal year ended January 31, 2002. In the opinion of Management, all adjustments (consisting of normal 
recurring accruals only) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating 
results for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results that 
may be expected for the year ending January 31,2003. 

NOTE B -NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 ("SFAS 142"), 
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", which is effective January I ,  2002. SFAS 142 requires, among 
other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard includes provisions for 
the reclassification of certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives 
of existing recognized intangibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill 
and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 ("SFAS 143"), 
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations", which is effective for Covista's fiscal years beginning 
February 1, 2003. SFAS 143 requires recording the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement 
obligation in the period in which it is incurred, and a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the 
related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the 
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, it is 
either settled for its recorded amount or a gain or loss upon settlement is recorded. Covista is currently 
assessing, but has does not expect the impact of SFAS 143 to be material to its financial position and 
results of operations. 

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 ("SFAS 144"), 
"Accounting for the lmpairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assetsn, which is effective for all fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 replaces the Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 121, Accounting for the lmpairment of Long Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be 
Disposed Of'. SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets to be measured at the lower of the carrying 
amount or fair value, less cost to sell, whether included in continuing operations or in discontinued 
operations. Covista is currently assessing, but does not expect the impact of SFAS 144 to be material to 
its financial position and results of operations. 



In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145 "Rescission of FASB statements No. 4, 44, and 64, 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections". This statement eliminates the 
automatic classification of gain or loss on extinguishment of debt as an extraordinary item of income and 
requires that such gain or loss .be evaluated for extraordinai-y classification under the criteria of 
Accounting Principles Board No. 30 "Reporting Results of Operations". This statement also requires sale- 
leaseback accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale- 
leaseback transactions and makes various other technical corrections to existing pronouncements. This 
statement will be effective for Covista for the year ending January 31, 2003. The adoption of this 
statement is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position. 

In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS N0.146,"Accounting for Costs 
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities." SFAS No.146 will supersede Emerging Issues Task Force 
Issue No.94-3,"Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit 
an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)." SFAS No.146 requires that costs 
associated with an exit or disposal plan be recognized when incurred rather than at the date of a 
commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS No.146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal 

ir 

activities initiated after December 31, 2002. 

NOTE C - EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per common share: 
Nine-Months Ended Three-Months Ended 

October 31, October 31, October 31, October 31, 
2002 2001 2002 2001 

Numerator: 
Loss available to $ (7,863,255) $ (6,366,057) $ (1,391,912) $(I ,858,950) 
Common Shareholders used in basic 
and diluted loss per Common Share 

Denominator: 
Weighted-average number of Common 12,612,053 9,990,562 12,697,673 10,820,365 
Shares used in basic loss per 
Common Share (1) 

Effect of diluted securities: 
Common share options 

Weighted-average number of Common 12,612,053 9,990,562 12,697,673 10,820,365 
Shares and diluted potential Common 
Shares used in diluted loss per 
Common Share 

Basic and diluted loss per Common Share 3 10.621 $ (0.64) $ CO.Il)$ (0.17) 

(1) Common Shares subject to options are not included in the calculation of diluted loss per 
Common Share for the nine month periods ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, and the three- 
month period ended October 31, 2002, as doing so would be antidilutive due to the net loss per 
Common Share. 



NOTE D -- SEGMENT REPORTING 

Covista sells telecommunications services to three distinct segments: a retail segment consisting primarily 
of small to medium sized businesses principally within the United States, a wholesale segment with sales 
to other telecommunications carriers throughout the world, and a segment that generates sales through 
direct mailing campaigns (KISSLD) which started in the beginning of fiscal year 2003 for residential 
customers in network supported areas on the East Coast. 

In addition to direct costs, each segment is allocated a portion of the Covista's switch and operating 
expenses. The allocation of expense is based upon the minutes of use flowing through the Covista's 
switch network. There are no intersegment sales. Assets are held at the consolidated level and are not 
allocable to the operating segments. Covista evaluates performance on operating earnings of the three 
business segments. 

Summarized financial information concerning Covista's reportable segments is shown in the following 
table: 

.Nine Months Ended 
October 31,2002 ' 

Net Sales . 
Gross margin 
Operating loss 

Nine-Months Ended 
October 31,2001 

Net Sales 
Gross margin 
Operating loss 

~ h r e e  Months Ended 
October 31,2002 

Net Sa!es 
Gross margin 
Operating loss 

Three Months Ended 
October 31,2001 

Net Sales 
Gross margin 
Operating loss 

Retail - Wholesale KISS LD Total - 

$36,717,000 $42,086,000 NIA $78,803,000 
13,062,000 I ,318,000 N/A 14,380,000 
(4,457,000) (2,153,000) NIA (6,611,000) 

Retail - Wholesale KISS. LD - Total 

$ 11,996,000 $8,471,000 , NIA $20,467,000 
4,284,000 847,000 NIA 5,131,000 

(1,495,000) (295,000) NIA (1,790,000) 



NOTE E - INCOME TAXES 

For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002, Covista established a valuation allowance against its net 
deferred tax asset due to the uncertainty of realizing certain tax credits and loss carryforwards. In the 
quarter ended October 31, 2002, Covista continued this accounting treatment and recorded a full 
valuation allowance against the net tax benefit arising from the quarter's net operating loss. The result is 
that the net deferred tax asset of approximately $14,278,000 is fully offset by the valuation allowance and, 
as such, does not appear on the balance sheet. It will be reflected at net recoverable value when the net 
deferred tax asset can be utilized in future periods. 

During the second quarter of the fiscal year 2003, Covista received a tax refund of $511,220; which 
reflected a change in IRS regulations regarding net operating loss carrybacks. 

NOTE F -ACQUISITION OF CAPSULE COMMUNICATIONS 

On February 8, 2002, Covista completed the merger (the "Merger") of its wholly owned subsidiary CCI 
Acquisitions, Inc. ("CCI") with and into Capsule Communications, Inc. ("Capsule"), pursuant to the 
Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of July 17, 2001 among Covista, CCI and Capsule (the 
"Merger Agreement"). As a result of the Merger, Capsule became a wholly owned subsidiary of Covista. 
Covista has accounted for the combination with Capsule as a purchase business combination under 
SFAS 141("Business Combination"). Capsule is a switch-based interexchange carrier providing long 
distance telephone communications services primarily to small and medium-size business customers as 
well as residential accounts. 

The results of Capsule's operations have been included in Covista's statement of operations since the 
Merger Date. The total purchase price was approximately $12.7 million and consisted of approximately 
1.7 million shares of Covista's Common Stock, valued at approximately $1 1.6 million determined based 
on the average closing market price of Covista's Common Stock at the time of acquisition, options 
assumed from Capsule for the purchase of 286,975 shares of Common Stock valued at approximately 
$1.1 million using the Black-Scholes Valuation Model, using an exercise price of $3.49 to $20.10, 
expected lives of 0.5 to 2 years, 156% volatility, 2.69% discount rate, and Covistas' stock price of $6.71. 
In addition, Covista incurred approximately $0.3 million in acquisition expenses. 

The following table summarizes the estimate of fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at 
the Merger Date. . . 

Cash 
Current assets 

, Property and equipment 
Other assets 
Intangible assets 
Goodwill 

Total assets acquired 
Current liabilities 

Total purchase price 

The intangible assets acquired from Capsule were identified as its business customer relationships 
valued at $1,288,000, its residential customer relationships valued at $376,000, and its agent 
relationships valued at $2,526,000. These intangibles are being amortized over periods of 10 months to 
four years. The customer and agent relationships are amortized'using double-declining method. 



The unaudited pro forma information below represents the consolidated results of operations as if the 
merger with Capsule had occurred as of February I, 2001 and 2002. The unaudited pro forma 
information has been included for comparative purposes and is not indicative of the results of operations 
of the consolidated Company had the merger occurred as of February 1, 2001, nor is it necessarily 
indicative of future results. 

Nine Months Three Months 
Ended Ended 

October 31.2002 October 31,2001 October 31.2002 October 31,2001 

Total Revenue $ 77,815,223 $107,019,236 $26,773,184 $29,413,441 
Loss attributable to (7,770,611) (7,388,496) ( I  ,391,912) (2,476,381) 
Common stockholders 
Basic net loss per (0.62) (0.74) (0.1 1) (0.23) 
common share 

NOTE G - SHAREHOLDER LOAN 

As of October 31, 2002, Covista received loans from Henry G. Luken Ill, its Chairman of the Board and 
principal shareholder, in the amount of $7,000,000. These loans will be converted to equity upon 
shareholder approval which approval is expected to be sought at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting 
planned to be held December 19, 2002. Covista currently has the necessary votes to approve the 
conversion. 

NOTE H - NOTES PAYABLE 

Covista has a revolving $2,000,000 credit facility with Wells Fargo Business Credit Corporation, 
renegotiated and amended on May 1 I, 2002, which expires on May I I, 2004. Interest on the revolving 
credit facility is currently calculated at the prime lending rate plus 2 3/4%, on a minimum loan balance of 
$750,000. The loan is collateralized by accounts receivable and fixed and intangible assets of Covista. 
As of October 31, 2002, Covista's outstanding balance on its credit facility was $548,076 leaving 
approximately $1,451,924 available based on collateral for future borrowing under the credit facility. 

The loan agreement contains covenants and restrictions, which, among other things, require maintenance 
of certain subjective financial performance criteria and restrict encumbrance of assets, creation of 
indebtedness and places limitations on annual capital expenditures. Covista was not in compliance with 
several of its covenants in the Loan Agreement; however, Covista received verbal waivers related to such 
non-compliance relevant to the fiscal period ended October 31, 2002. 

On June 17, 2002, Covista entered i k o  a term loan agreement with a major Tennessee bank. Covista 
has received $3,775,000 payable monthly in 36 installments at a fixed ibterest rate of 4.595% for the first 
year and converting to 2% over LIBOR on June 17, 2003 and each year thereafter. This term loan is 
secured by certain of the Company's switching equipment and Certificates of Deposit provided by 
Covista's Chairman of the Board. 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
ITEM 2 - 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULT OF OPERATIONS 

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: 

Certain matters discussed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are "forward-looking statements" 
intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements can generally be identified as such because the context of 
the statement will include words such as Covista "believes", "anticipates", "expects", or words of similar 
import. Similarly, statements which describe Covista's future plans, objectives or goals are also forward- 
looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain 
risks and uncertainties which are described in close proximity to such statements and which could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this Report. Shareholders, 
potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors in evaluating the forward-looking 
statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The % 

forward-looking statements included herein are only made as of the date of this Report and Covista 
undertakes no obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events 
or circumstances, except as required under applicable laws. 

Results of O~erations 

Net sales were approximately $77,002,000 for the first nine months of the current fiscal year, a decrease 
of approximately $1,801,000 or 2.2% as compared to the approximately $78,803,000 recorded in the first 
nine months of the prior fiscal year. Net sales for the third quarter of the current fiscal year were 
approximately $26,773,000, an increase of approximately $6,306,000 or 30.8% as compared to the 
approximately $20,467,000 recorded in the third quarter of the prior fiscal year. 

Wholesale revenue for the nine-month period was approximately $11,389,000, a decrease of 
approximately $30,696,620 or 73% from the nine month period ended October 31, 2001. For the quarter 
ended October 31, 2002, wholesale revenue was approximately $3,099,000, a decrease of 
approximately $5,372,000 or 63.4% over the comparative quarter in the last fiscal year. Wholesale 
minutes sold in the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 148,615,000 minutes, 
a decrease of approximately 234,143,000 minutes or 61.1% from the nine-month period ended October 
31, 2001. Wholesale minutes sold in the quarter ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 32,578,000 
minutes, a decrease of approximately 49,309,000 minutes or 60.2% from the third quarter of the prior 
fiscal year. For the nine-month period, the decline in revenue also reflected the competitive wholesale 
market place and the business failure of several wholesale customers, both trends that Covista believes . 
will continue. Competitive pressures on sales price have resulted in a 34.7% decline in the average 
selling rate. Covista also has attempted to limit its exposure to the business failures experienced within 
the industry by tightening up credit limits on all wholesale accounts. Covista has strategically reduced the 
Wholesale segment of its business. 



Retail revenues for the nine-month period were approximately $61,205,000, an increase of approximately 
$24,488,000 or 66.7% from the nine-month period ended October 31, 2001. For the quarter ended 
October 31, 2002, retail revenues were approximately $20,788,000, an approximately $8,792,000 or 
73.2% increase over the comparative quarter in the last fiscal year. Retail minutes sold in the nine-month 
period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 824,279,000 minutes, an increase of approximately 
353,487,000 minutes or 75% over the nine-month period ended October 31, 2001. Retail minutes sold in 
the quarter ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 276,585,000 minutes, an increase of 
approximately 109,487,000 minutes, or 65.5% over the third quarter of the prior fiscal year. The increase 
in volume results primarily from the acquisition of Capsule Communications. However, the decrease in 
revenue per minute results from the extreme pricing pressures existing within the industry. Covista has 
experienced a rate decrease of 7.3% for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 and 3.1 % for the 
three-month period ended October 31, 2002. The extreme pricing pressures experienced in the industry is 
a trend that the Company believes may continue. 

KissLD revenues (a product sold to retail consumers) for the nine month period were approximately 
$5,286,000. KissLD is a new product offering for the current fiscal year and, therefore, does not have 
prior year comparatives. The total minutes sold for KissLD for the nine month period was approximately 
103,472,000. For the three month period ended October 31, 2002, sales were approximately $2,886,000 
for KissLD. KissLD minutes sold for the three month period ended July 31, 2002 were approximately 
57,511,000. 

Cost of sales for 'the current nine-month period was approximately $54,342,000, a decrease of 
approximately $10,081,000 or 15.6% from the nine- month period ended October 31, 2001. These 
changes were favorable in relation to the 2.2% decrease in sales for the nine-month period. The 
decrease in cost of sales was due primarily to a decrease of approximately 234,143,000 wholesale 
minutes equating to a'pproximately $27,627,000. This savings was offset with the cost of the increase in 
retail volume of approximately $1 7,595,000. 

Cost of sales for the three-month period ended October 31, 2002 was approximately $18,186,000, an 
increase of approximately $2,850,000 or 18.6% from the third quarter of the prior fiscal year. These 
changes were favorable in relation to the 30.8% increase in revenues in the third quarter. The'increase in 
cost of sales was due primarily to the Capsule acquisition. 

In the normal course of business, Covista files disputes with its service providers. Covista's accounting 
policy is to record the invoiced amount to cost of sales, which may include disputed amounts. When the 
dispute is resolved and the credit is received, the amount is credited to cost of sales. Open disputes 
included in cost of sales for the nine-month period and the three-month period ended October 31; 2002 
are approximately $3,116,000 and $3,007,000, respectively. 

Selling, 'general and administrative expense for the nine-month period increased to approximately 
$30,717,000, an increase of approximately $9,727,000, or 46.3% over the nine-month period ended 
October 31, 2001. For the quarter ended October 31, 2002, selling, general and administrative expense 
was approximately $9,847,000; an approximate $2,926,000 or 42.2% increase over the comparative 
quarter in the last fiscal year. , 



The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of approximately $9,727,000 for the nine- 
month period was primarily due to an increase in commission expense of approximately $4,045,000 
related to the added agent commissions of the Capsule agent program, an increase in salaries of 
approximately $2,906,000 related to the addition of Capsule salaries and expansion of the Tennessee call 
center staff; an increase in marketing expense of approximately $2,731,000 related to the KissLD 
marketing program, an increase in oftice expense of approximately $1,265,000 due to the addition of the 
Tennessee call center, the addition of Capsule general and administrative costs, and the one-time 
relocation costs of the corporate headquarters; and other miscellaneous selling, general and 
administrative expenses of $130,000. This was partially offset by a reduction in bad debt expense of 
approximately $Il349,OOO for the same period. 

For the three-month period ended October 31, 2002, the net increase in selling, general and 
administrative expenses of approximately $2,926,000 was comprised primarily of increase in commission 
expense of approximately $1,459,000 from the acquisition of the Capsule agent program, an increase in 
office expense of approximately $626,000 due to the one time relocation costs of the corporate 
headquarters to downtown Chattanooga, TN, and the addition of Capsule G & A, an increase in salaries 
of approximately $436,000 from the addition of Capsule salaries, an increase in benefits of approximately 
$231,000, an increase in equipment rental of approximately $195,000, an increase in franchise taxes of 
approximately $127,000, an increase in postage'of approximately $88,000, increase in marketing 
expense of approximately $84,000, and other miscellaneous expenses of $8,000. This was partially 
offset by a reduction in bad debt expense of approximately $172,000 and a reduction in legal expense of 
$156,000. 

For the reasois described above, the operating loss for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 
was approximately $8,057,000, an increase of approximately $1,448,000 from the nine-month period 
ended October 31, 2001 The operating loss for the three-month period ended October 31, 2002 was 
approximately $1,259,000, an improvement of approximately $531,000 over the prior year's three-month 
period ended October 31, 2001. 

Total other expense, net, for the current nine-month period was approximately $317,000 as compared to 
approximately $245,000 of total other income, net, recorded in the prior year nine-month period. The 
approximately $562,000 change for the nine-month period is primarily due to the reduction in sale of 
marketable securities of approximately $262,000, offset by an increase in interest expense of 
approximately $234,000 and a reduction in interest income of approximately $50,000. Total other 
expense, net, for the current fiscal quarter was approximately $133,000 as compared to approximately 
$69,000 of total other expense, net, recorded in the comparable period during the prior fiscal year. This 
change was due to an increase in interest expense. 

Basic and diluted loss per Common Share was $0.62 per share for the current nine-month period ended 
October 31, 2002 as compared to $0.64 loss per share for the nine-months ended October 31, 2001. 
Basic and diluted loss per Common Share was $0.1 I per share for the current three-month period ended 
October 31, 2002 as compared to $0.17 loss per Common Share for the three-months ended October 31, 
2001. . . 



Lisuiditv and Ca~ital Resources , 

At October 31, 2002, Covista had a working capital deficit of approximately $13,784,000, an increase of 
deficit of approximately $2,457,000 as compared to January 31, 2002. The ratio of current assets to 
current liabilities at October 31, 2002 was 0.60:1, as compared to the ratio of 0.55:l at January 31, 2002. 
The increase in the working capital deficit at October 31, 2002 was primarily attributable to an increase in 
accounts payable of approximately $6,559,000; a decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets 
of approximately $840,000 and an increase in the current portion of long term debt of approximately 
$1,278,000. This was offset by an increase in accounts receivable of approximately $6,685,000; an 
increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $2,002,000; a decrease in investments available 
for sale of approximately $440,000; and a increase in accrued liabilities of approximately $2,110,000. 

The increase in cash of approximately $2,002,000 was the result primarily of proceeds from the sale of 
Common Stock of $315,963; proceeds from a long-term loan received from a major shareholder of 
$2,600,000; the proceeds from the sale of marketable securities of approximately $439,773; the proceeds 
of a note payable of approximately $3,775,0001 and cash acquired in the purchase of businesses of 
approximately $1,179,165. These increases were offset by cash used in operations of approximately 
$1,386,000; and payment of line installation costs of approximately $405,000, purchases of Property, 
Plant, and Equipment of approximately $3,029,000 and repayment of bank borrowings of approximately 
$1,488,000. 

On February 20, 2002, Covista's Board of Directors approved the private sale of additional Common 
Stock of up to $12,500,000. The investment includes a conversion into common stock, of $6,800,000 of . 
debt, contribution of $3,500,000 of fixed assets and $2,200,000 of cash to be received at the rate of 
$2.867 per share, which was the closing price, for the Common Stock for 30 trading days prior to 
November 1, 2002, as authorized by the Board. The commitment for funding for the investment and the 
conversion of the indebtedness is from the current Chairman of Covista's Board or his designee's and is 
subject to shareholder's approval at the next Annual Meeting, to be held on December 19, 2002. 
Additionally, Covista has received a commitment from W. Thorpe McKenzie, a nominee for election as a 
director, to purchase an additional 500,000 shares at $2.867 per share for a total of approximately 
$1,434,000. Finally, the company is seeking a line of credit from a bank. If such line of credit were not 
obtained, the Chairman of the Board has committed to loaning $2 million to the Company through at least 
the second quarter of fiscal 2004. 

Cadital Expenditures 

Capital expenditures for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately $3,196,207. 
These expenditures were financed principally from the proceeds of a long term loan received from a 
major shareholder. Planned spending for the balance of the fiscal year ending January 31, 2003, includes 
approximately $100,000 for additional switches and equipment to be installed as part of Covista's network 
expansion. These expenditures are planned to be financed primarily through vendor financing, sale and 
leaseback transactions, and additional lines of credit, which Covista intends to negotiate with its current 
lender or other sources. In addition, Covista may seek to sell privately, additional equity or debt securities. 
However, there can be no assurance that Covista shall be able to obtain such financing or, if available, 
the terms thereof shall be favorable. 



Prepaid Network Capacity 

On July 2, 2001, Covista received a loan from Henry G. Luken Ill, its Chairman of the Board and principal 
shareholder, in the amount of $4,000,000. This loan will be converted to equity upon shareholder 
approval which approval is expected to be sought at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting to be held 
December 19, 2002. Covista currently has the necessary votes to approve the conversion. The proceeds 
of the loan were used to purchase a 10-year commitment for approximately 2.8 billion DS-0 channel miles 
of telecommunications network capacity from an unaffiliated-party. The unaffiliated party has filed for 
Chapter 11 reorganization; however, as of the date of this report, is continuing to perform under the 
agreement, and, therefore, management does not believe that this asset is impaired. However, 
management has been unable to determine if this carrier's bankruptcy will adversely affect the carrier's 
ability to fulfill its' obligation to Covista under the prepaid network capacity agreement. 

As of October 31, 2002, Covista has used 63 million DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network 
capacity against the 2.8 billion DS-0 total prepaid network capacity, of which $400,000 has been % 

classified as a current asset and based on anticipated usage in the next 12 months. The remainder of the 
' 

prepaid capacity amount of approximately $3,200,000 is included in other assets. 

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk 

Accounts receivable subject Covista to the potential for credit risk with customers in the retail and 
wholesale segments. To reduce credit risk, Covista performs ongoing evaluations of its customer's 
financial condition and except in situations where the risk warrants it, Covista does not require collateral. 

A Accounts receivable of approximately $16,938,000, net of the reserve for uncollectible accounts totaling 
approximately $6,833,000, represents approximately 33% of the total assets of Covista. No one customer 
accounts for greater than eight percent of the total revenues and receivables. In the wholesale segment, 
which contains Covista's largest customers, Covista has been able to ameliorate credit risk by using 
reciprocal arrangements with the customers, which are also Covista's suppliers, to offset outstanding 
receivables. Covista has historically maintained a better than three percent ratio of bad debts to revenues. 
For the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002, this ratio was 4%. Covista also measures net 
accounts receivable turnover (as measured in days sales outstanding). For, the periods ended October 
31, 2002 and 2001 days sales outstanding were 59.3 days and 58.5 days respectively. 



Related Partv Transactions 

Jay J. Miller, a Director of Covista, has provided various legal services for Covista in Fiscal 2003. In the third 
quarter, Fiscal 2003, Covista accrued $13,960 to Mr. Miller for services rendered and accrued for in Fiscal 
2003. As of October 31,2002, Covista owed Mr. Miller $26,100. 

Leon Genet, a Director of Covista, has provided agent services for Covista through his wholly-owned 
Registrant, LPJ, Inc. During the third quarter, Fiscal 2003, LPJ, Inc. was paid commissions of $24,155. The 
commissions paid to LPJ, Inc. were computed on the same basis as other independent agents retained by 
Covista. 

Covista has entered into three lease agreements for office and switch space in Chattanooga, Tennessee, 
with Henry G. Luken Ill, Chairman of the Board and a principal shareholder of Covista. Each lease 
carries a term of five years. The leases provide for annual rent of $154,986 for fiscal year 2003; 
$258,290 for fiscal year 2004; $293,336 for fiscal year 2005 and for both fiscal years of 2006 and 2007 
the annual rent will be $300,000 and annually adjusted for the Consumer Price Index. For the third 
quarter FY 2003 Covista has paid Henry G. Luken 111 $21,600 for rent of office space. 

i 

As of October 31, 2002, Covista received loans from Henry G. Luken Ill, its Chairman of the Board and 
principal shareholder, in the amount of $7,000,000. These loans will be converted to equity upon 
shareholder approval which approval is expected to be provided at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting 
scheduled to be held December 19,2002. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue Reco~nition 

Covista's revenues, net of sales discounts, are recognized in the period in which the service is provided, 
based on the number of minutes of telecommunications traffic carried, and a rate per minute. Access and 
other service fees charged to customers, typically monthly, are recognized in the period in which service 
is provided. 

Deferred Lirre lnst'allation Costs 

Deferred line installation costs are costs incurred by Covista for new facilities and costs incurred for 
connections from within the Covista's network to the network of other telecommunication suppliers (such 
as Verizon, MFS and other carriers). Amortization of such line installation costs is provided using the 
straight-line method over the contract life of the lines ranging from three to five years. 

Long-Lived Assets 

Covista accounts for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of by 
evaluating the carrying value of its long-lived assets in relation to the operating performance and future 
undiscounted cash flows of the underlying businesses annually and when indications of impairment are 
present. Long-lived assets to be disposed of, if any, are evaluated in relation to the net realizable value. 
If impairment is indicated, the amount of the impairment is typically calculated using discounted expected 
future cash flows. The discount rate applied to these cash flows is based on Covista's weighted average 
cost of capital. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset, the difference will be 
charged to the results of operations in the period in which the impairment occurred. Based on Covista's 
analysis of future undiscounted cash flow, which are in excess of the carrying value of its long-lived 
assets, there does not appear to be an impairment as of October 31,2002. 



On July 2, 2001, Covista received a loan from Henry G. Luken Ill, its Chairman of the Board and principal 
shareholder, in the amount of $4,000,000. This loan will be converted to equity upon shareholder 
approval which approval is expected to be provided at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting planned to 
be held December 19,2002. 

The proceeds of the loan were used to purchase a 10-year commitment for approximately 2.8 billion DS-0 
channel miles of telecommunications network capacity from an unaffiliated party. The unaffiliated party 
has filed for Chapter 11 reorganization; however, as of the date of this report, is continuing to perform 
under the agreement, and therefore, management does not believe that this asset is impaired. However, 
management has been unable to determine if this carrier's bankruptcy will impact the carrier's ability to 
fulfill its' obligation to Covista under the prepaid network capacity agreement. 

As of October 31, 2002, Covista has used 63 million DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network 
capacity against the 2.8 billion total prepaid network capacity, of which $400,000 has been classified as a 
current asset and based on anticipated usage in the next 12 months. The remainder of the prepaid 
capacity amount of approximately $3,200,000 in included in other assets. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill consists of the excess purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets of acquired 
businesses. Goodwill added subsequent to January I, 2002 is not being amortized in accordance with 
SFAS142. The carrying value of goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. Management 
also reviews goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of goodwill may be impaired. If it is determined that an impairment in value has 
occurred, goodwill will be written down to the present value of the expected future operating cash flows to 
be generated by the respective reporting unit. 

Vendor Disputes 

In the normal course of business, Covista files disputes with its service providers. Covista's accounting 
policy is to record the invoiced amount to cost of sales, which may include disputed amounts. When the 
dispute is resolved and the credit is received, the amount is credited to cost of sales. Open disputes 
included in cost of sales for the nine-month period and the three-month period ended October 31, 2002 
are approximately $3,116,000 and $3,007,000, respectively. 

lntansible Assets 

Intangible assets are carried at cost, less accumulated amortization, and are amortized on a double- 
declining or straight-line basis over their expected lives based upon managements' expectation'regarding 
the timing of future realization. 

Quantitative and Qualitative  isc closures about Market Risk 

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial instrument, derivative or non-derivative, 
caused by fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. As Covista holds no 
significant marketable securities at October 31, 2001, the exposure to interest rate risk relating to 
marketable securities no longer exists. Covista does not hold, any derivatives related to its interest rate 
exposure. Covista also maintains long-term debt at fixed rates. Due to the nature and amounts of 
Covista's note payable, an immediate 10% change in interest rates would not 
have a material effect in Covista's results of operations over the next fiscal year. Covista's exposure to 
adverse changes in foreign exchange rates is also immaterial to the consolidated statements as a whole. 



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

ITEMS 1 - 5 Not applicable 

ITEM 6 Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K . 

No reports on Form 8-K were filed in the period 



I, A. John Leach, Jr., certify that 

1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Covista; 

2) Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly 
report; 

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in quarterly 
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of Covista as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4) Covista's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for Covista are have; 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information 
relating to Covista, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness Covista's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date with 90 days 
prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the %valuation Date"); and 

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date; 

5) Covista's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Covista's 
auditors and the audit committee of Covista's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions); 

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely 
siffect Covista's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data, and I have 
identified for Covista's auditors any material wealmesses in internal controls; and 

b) . any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in Covista's internal controls; and 

6 )  Covista's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant 
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to 
the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

Date: December 16,2002 By: /s/ A. John Leach Jr. 
A. John Leach, Jr. 
President and Chief 
~xicutive Officer 



I, Thomas P. Gunning., certify that; 
> 

1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Covista; 

2) Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly 
report, 

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in quarterly ' 
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the f m c i a l  condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of Covista as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4) Covista's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for Covista are have; 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information 
' 

relating to Covista, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness Covista's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date with 90 days 
prjor to the filing date of this quarterly report (the "EvalUation Date"); and 

c) presented in this quarterly riport our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date; 

5 )  Covista's other ceicifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Covista's 
auditors and the audit committee of Covista's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions); 

a) all signifcant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely 
affect Covista's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data, and I have 
identified for Covista's auditors any material wealmesses in internal controls; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in Covista's internal controls; and 

6 )  Covfsta's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant 
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to 
the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

Date: December 16,2002 By: Is/ Thomas P. Gunning 
Thomas P. Gunning, 
Vice President, Chief Financial 
Officer and Principal Accounting 
Officer 



CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In conuection with the Quarterly Report of Covista Communications, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ending 
October 3 1,2002 as Gled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, A. 
John Leach, Jr., President and CEO of Covista Communications, Inc., certfy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that; 

1) The report fully complies with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934; and 

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
result of operations of Covista Communications, Inc. 

~ k e :  December 16, 2002 By: Is/ A. John Leach, Jr. 
A. John Leach, Jr. 
President and Chief 
Executive Officer 



CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Covista Communications, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ending 
October 31,2002 as fded with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the  report^^), I, 
Thomas P. Gunning, CFO of Covista Communications, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that; 

3) The report fidly complies with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934; and 

4) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all niaterial respects, the financial condition and 
result of operations of Covista Communications, Inc. 

Date: December 16,2002 By: Is/ Thomas P. Gunning 
Thomas P. Gunning, 
Vice President, Chief Financial 
Officer and Principal Accounting 
Officer 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Covista has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
(Registrant) 

Date: December 16.2002 

Date: December l6,'2OO2 

By: Is1 A. John Leach 
A. John Leach 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

By: Is1 Thomas P. Gunning 
Thomas P. Gunning, 
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Principal Accounting Officer 
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The following symbols shall be used in this tariff for the purpose indicated below: 

To sigrufy changed regulation. 

To sigrufy discontinued rate and regulation. 
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To sigrufy new rate or regulation. 

To sigrufy reduced rate. 
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To sigrdy a change in text but no change in rate or regulation. 
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This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the local exchange 
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For the purpose of this tariff, the following definitions will apply: 
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Access Line - An arrangement which connects the Customer's location to a switching center or point of 
presence. 

Account Codes - Optional, Customer-defined digits that allow the Customer to identdy the individual user, 
department or client associated with a call. Account Codes appear on the Customer bill. 

Advance Payment - Part or all of a payment required before the start of service. 

Authorized User - A person, firm, corporation, or any other entity authorized by the Customer to 
commurticate utilizing the Company's service. 

Business - A class of service provided to individuals engaged in business, firms, partnerships, corporations, 
agencies, shops, works, tenants of office buildings, and individuals practicing a profession or operating a 
business who have no offices other than their residences and where the use of the service is primarily or 
substantially of a business, professional or occupational nature. 

Commission - South Dakota Public Utilities Commission. 

Company or Carrier - Covista, Inc., unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context. 

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other entity which orders, cancels, amends or uses service and is 
responsible for payment of charges and compliance with the Company's tariff. 

Deposit - Refers to a cash or equivalent of cash security held as a guarantee for payment of the charges. 
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DID Trunk - A form of local switched access that provides the ability for an outside party to call an internal 
extension directly without the intervention of the Company operator. 

Dial Pulse (or "DP") - The pulse type employed by rotary dial station sets. 

Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (or "DTMF") - The pulse type employed by tone dial station sets. 

End User - Any person, firm, corporation, partnership or other entity which uses the services of the 
Company under the provisions and regulations of this tariff. The End User is responsible for payment 
unless the charges for the services utilized are accepted and paid for by another Customer. 

End Office - With respect to each NPA-NXX code prefix assigned to the Company, the location of the 
Company's "end office" for purposes of this tariff shall be the point of interconnection associated with that 
NPA-NXX code in the Local Exchange Routing Guide ("LERG"), issued by Bellcore. 

Hearing Impaired - Those persons with communication impairments, including those hearing impaired, 
deaf, deaf/blind, and speech impaired persons who have an impairment that prevents them from 
communicating over the telephone without the aid of a telecommunications device for the deaf. 

Hunting - Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station line is busy. 

In-Only - A service attribute that restricts outward dial access and routes incoming calls to a designated 
answer point. 

IXC or Interexchange Carrier - A long distance telecommunications services provider. 
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LATA - A Local Access and Transport Area established pursuant to the Modification of Final Judgement 
entered by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 82-0192; or any 
other geographic area designated as a LATA in the National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. 
No. 4. 

LEC - Local Exchange Company 

Minimum Point of Presence PMPOP") - The main telephone closet in the Customer's building. 

Monthly Recurring Charges - The monthly charges to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment, 
which continue for the agreed upon duration of the service. 

Multi-Frequency or PMF") - An inter-machine pulse type used for signaling between telephone switches, or 
between telephone switches and PBX/key systems. 

Non-Recurring Charge ("NRC") - The initial charge, usually assessed on a one-time basis, to initiate and 
establish service. 

Other Telephone Company - An Exchange Telephone Company, other than the Company. 

PBX - Private Branch Exchange 

Premises - A building or buildings on contiguous property. 

Recurring Charges - The monthly charges to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment which 
continue for the agreed upon duration of the service. 

Residence or Residential - A class of service furnished to a Customer at a place of dwelling where the actual 
or obvious use is for domestic purposes. 
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Service Commencement Date - The first day following the date on which the Company notifies the 
Customer that the requested service is available for use, unless extended by the Customer's refusal to accept 
service which does not conform to standards set forth in the Service Order and this tariff, in which case the 
Service Commencement Date is the date of the Customer's acceptance. The Company and Customer may 
mutually agree on a substitute Service Commencement Date. 

Service Order - The written request for services executed by the Customer and the Company in the format 
devised by the Company. The signing of an Order by the Customer and acceptance by the Company 
initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff, but the 
duration of the service is calculated from the Service Commencement Date. 

Telephone Company - Used throughout this tariff to mean Covista, Inc. unless clearly indicated otherwise 
by the text. 

TBD - To Be Determined. 

Two Way - A service attribute that includes outward dial capabilities for outbound calls and can also be 
used to carry inbound calls to a central point for further processing. 

Usage Based Charges - Charges for minutes or messages traversing over local exchange facilities. 

User or End User - A Customer, Joint User, or any other person authorized-by a Customer to use service 
provider under this tariff. 
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Undertaking of the Company 

2.1.1 Scope 

The Company undertakes to furnish communications service pursuant to the terms of this 
tariff in connection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission originating 
from points within the State of South Dakota, and terminating within a local calling area as 
defined herein. 

The Company is responsible under this tariff only for the services and facilities provided 
hereunder, and it assumes no responsibility for any service provided by any other entity 
that purchases access to the Company network in order to originate or terminate its own 
services, or to communicate with its own Customers. 

2.1.2 Shortage of Equipment or Facilities 

(A) The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, 
or of additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack 
of facilities, or due to some other cause beyond the Company's control. 

(B) The furnishing of service under this tariff is subject to the availability on a 
continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the 
Company's facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other 
carriers to furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the 
Company. 
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Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.3 Terms and Conditions 

(A) Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least six months, 24 
hours per day. For the purpose of computing charges in this tariff, a month is 
considered to have thirty (30) days. 

(B) Customers may be required to enter into written service orders which shall contain 
or reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged, the 
duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this tariff. Customers will 
also be required to execute any other documents as may be reasonably requested 
by the Company. 

(C) Except as otherwise stated in the tariff, at the expiration of the initial term specified 
in each Service Order, or in any extension thereof, service shall continue on a month 
to month basis at the then current rates unless terminated by either party upon 
thirty (30) days written notice. Any termination shall not relieve the Customer of 
its obligation to pay any charges incurred under the service order and this tariff 
prior to termination. The rights and obligations which by their nature extend 
beyond the termination of the term of the service order shall survive such 
termination. 

(D) Service may be terminated upon written notice to the Customer if: 

(1) the Customer is using the service in violation of this tariff; or 

(2) the Customer is using the service in violation of the law. 

(E) This tariff shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of South 
Dakota without regard for its choice of laws provision. 
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SECTTON 2.n - R T n n  

2.1 Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.3 Terms and Conditions, (cont'd.) 

Issued: 
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(F) Any Other Telephone Company may not interfere with the right of any person or 
entity to obtain service directly from the Company. No person or entity shall be 
required to make any payment, incur any penalty, monetary or otherwise, or 
purchase any services in order to have the right to obtain service directly from the 
Company. 

To the extent that either the Company or any Other Telephone Company exercises 
control over available cable pairs, conduit, duct space, raceways, or other facilities 
needed by the other to reach a person or entity, the party exercising such control 
shall make them available to the other on terms equivalent to those under which 
the Company makes similar facilities under its control available to its Customers. 
At the reasonable request of either party, the Company and the Other Telephone 
Company shall jointly attempt to obtain from the owner of the property access for 
the other party to serve a person or entity. 

(H) The Company hereby reserves its rights to establish service packages specific to a 
particular Customer. These contracts may or may not be associated with volume 
and/or term discounts. 
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TTON 7 fl - RTTT .ES ANT) RECTTT,ATTONS fCONT113) 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.4 Limitations on Liability 

(A) Except as otherwise stated in this section, the liability of Carrier for damage 
arising out of the furnishing of its services, including but not limited to mistakes, 
omissions, interruptions, delays, or errors, or other defects, representations, or 
use of these services shall be determined by South Dakota Statute Sections 49-13- 
1 and 49-13-1.1. 

(B) Except for the extension of allowances to the Customer for interruptions in service 
in Section 2.7, Carrier shall not be liable to a Customer or third party for any direct, 
indirect, special, incidental, reliance, consequential, exemplary or punitive 
damages, including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, including but not 
limited to, any act or omission, failure to perform, delay, interruption, failure to 
provide any service of any failure in or breakdown of facilities associated with the 
service except as determined pursuant to SDCL 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1. 

(C) The liability of Carrier for errors in b i h g  that result in overpayment by the 
customer shall be limited to a credit equal to the dollar amount erroneously 
billed, or in the event that payment has been made and service has been 
discontinued, to a refund of the amount erroneously billed. 
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Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.4 Limitations on Liability (Cont'd.) 

(D) The Company shall be indemnified and saved harmless by the Customer from and 
against all loss, liability, damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, 
due to: 

(1) Any act or omission of: (a) the Customer, (b) any other entity furnishing 
service, equipment or facilities for use in conjunction with services or 
facilities provided by the Company; or (c) common carriers or 
warehousemen, except as contracted by the Company; 

(2) Any delay or failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond 
the Company's control, including but not limited to, acts of God, fires, 
floods, earthquakes, hurricanes, or other catastrophes; national 
emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars or other civil commotions; strikes, 
lockouts, work stoppages or other labor difficulties; criminal actions taken 
against the Company; unavailability, failure or malfunction of equipment 
or facilities provided by the Customer or third parties; and any law, order, 
regulation or other action of any governing authority or agency thereof; 

(3) Any unlawful or unauthorized use of the Company's facilities and services; 

(4) Libel, slander, invasion of privacy or infringement of patents, trade secrets, 
or copyrights arising from or in connection with the material transmitted 
by means of Company-provided facilities or services; or by means of the 
combination of company-provided facilities or services; 

(5) Breach in the privacy or security of communications transmitted over the 
Company's facilities, which is not the result of the negligence of the 
Company; 
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2.1 Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.4 Limitations on Liability (Cont'd.) 

(D) (cont'd) 

(6) Changes in any of the facilities, operations or procedures of the Company 
that render any equipment, facilities or services provided by the Customer 
obsolete, or require modification or alteration of such equipment, facilities 
or services, or otherwise affect their use or performance, except where 
reasonable notice is required by the Company and is not provided to the 
Customer, in which event the Company's liability is limited as set forth in 
paragraph (A) of this Subsection 2.1.4. 

(7) Defacement of or damage to Customer premises resulting from the 
furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the installation or 
removal thereof; 

(8) Injury to property or injury or death to persons, including claims for 
payments made under Workers' Compensation law or under any plan 
for employee disability or death benefits, arising out of, or caused by, 
any act or omission of the Customer, or the construction, installation, 
maintenance, presence, use or removal of the Customer's facilities or 
equipment connected, or to be connected to Carrier's facilities; 

(9) Any noncompletion of calls due to network busy conditions; 

(10) Any calls not actually attempted to be completed during any period that 
service is unavailable; 

(11) Breach in the privacy or security of communications transmitted over 
Carrier's facilities, which is not the result of the negligence of the 
Company; 
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Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.4 Limitations on Liability (Cont'd.) 

(E) The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to 
installations provided for use in an explosive atmosphere. 

(F) Failure by the Company to assert its rights pursuant to one provision of this tariff 
does not preclude the Company from asserting its rights under other provisions. 

2.1.5 Notification of Service-Affecting Activities 

The Company will provide the Customer reasonable notification of service-affecting 
activities that may occur in normal operation of its business. Such activities may include, 
but are not limited to, equipment or facilities additions, removals or rearrangements and 
routine preventative maintenance. Generally, such activities are not specific to an 
individual Customer but may affect Customers' services. No specific advance notification 
period is applicable to all service activities. The Company will work cooperatively with the 
Customer to determine the reasonable notification requirements. With some emergency or 
unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an outage resulting from cable damage, 
notification to the Customer may not be possible. 
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Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.6 Provision of Equipment and Facilities 

(A) The Company shall use reasonable efforts to maintain only the facilities and 
equipment that it furnishes to the Customer. The Customer may not nor may the 
Customer permit others to rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or 
otherwise interfere with any of the facilities or equipment installed by the 
Company, except upon the written consent of the Company. 

(B) The Company may substitute, change or rearrange any equipment or facility at any 
time and from time to time, but shall not thereby alter the technical parameters of 
the service provided by the Customer. 

(C) Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer Premises for use in 
connection with the services the Company offers shall not be used for any purpose 
other than that for which the equipment is provided. 

(D) Except as otherwise indicated, Customer provided station equipment at the 
Customer's premises for use in connection with the service shall be so constructed, 
maintained and operated as to work satisfactorily with the facilities of the 
Company. 

(El The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, or 
maintenance of any Customer provided communications equipment. Where such 
equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this tariff, the 
responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered 
under this tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities. Subject to 
this responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for: 

(1) the through transmission of signals by Customer provided equipment or 
for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or 

(2) the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment; or 

(3) network control signaling where such signaling is performed by Customer- 
provided network control signaling equipment. 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

Effective: 
A. John Leach, President 

Covista, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 

Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 



COVISTA, INC. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

South Dakota Tariff Number 2 
Original Page 18 

Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.7 Non-Routine Installation 

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the 
Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based 
on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the Company 
will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's 
request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited 
to, weekends, holidays, q d / o r  night hours, additional charges may apply. 

2.1.8 Special Construction 

Subject to the agreement of the Company and to all of the regulations contained in this 
tariff, special construction or facilities may be undertaken on a reasonable efforts basis at the 
request of the Customer. Special construction is construction undertaken: 

(A) where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other requirement for the 
facilities so constructed; 

(B) of a type other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the 
furnishing of its services; 

(C) over a route other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the 
furnishing of its services; 

(D) in a quantity greater than that which the company would normally construct; 

(E) on an expedited basis; 

(F) on a temporary basis until permanent facilities are available; 

(G) involving abnormal costs; or 

(H) in advance of its normal construction. 
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SECTTON 7.n - R T n  

2.1 Undertaking of the Company, (Cont'd.) 

2.1.9 Ownership of Facilities 

Title to all facilities provided in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company, its 
partners, agents, contractors or suppliers. 

2.2 Prohibited Uses 
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The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use 
as to which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, 
authorizations, licenses, consents and permits. 

The Company may require applicants for service who intend to use the Company's 
offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that 
their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and the South Dakota 
Public Utilities Commission's regulations, policies, orders, and decisions. 

The Company may block any signals being transmitted over its Network by Customers 
which cause interference to the Company or other users. Customer shall be relieved of all 
obligations to make payments for charges relating to any blocked Service and shall 
indemzllfy the Company for any claim, judgement or liability resulting from such blockage. 

A Customer, joint user, or authorized user may not assign, or transfer in any manner, the 
service or any rights associated with the service without the written consent of the 
Company. The Company will permit a Customer to transfer its existing service to another 
entity if the existing Customer has paid all charges owed to the Company for regulated 
communications services. Such a transfer will be treated as a disconnection of existing 
service and installation of new service, and non-recurring installation charges as stated in 
this tariff will apply. 
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SECTION 7 0 - RTn.l?S A m  REGTTT.ATTONS (CONT'n 

2.3 Obligations of the Customer 

2.3.1 General 

The Customer shall be responsible for: 

(A) the payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff; 

(B) damage to or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or 
omissions of the Customer; or the noncompliance by the Customer, with these 
regulations; or by fire or theft or other casualty on the Customer Premises, unless 
caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the 
Company; 

(C) providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed 
equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment 
installed on the premises of the Customer, and the level of heating and air 
conditioning necessary to maintain the proper operating environment on such 
premises; 

(D) obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for all rights-of- 
way and conduit necessary for installation of fiber optic cable and associated 
equipment used to provide Communications Services to the Customer from the 
cable building entrance or property line to the location of the equipment space 
described in Section 2.3.1(C). Any and all costs associated with the obtaining and 
maintaining the rights-of-way described herein, including the costs of altering the 
structure to permit installation of the Company provided facilities, shall be borne 
entirely by, or may be charged by the Company, to the Customer. The Company 
may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to 
accepting an order for service. 
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2.3 Obligations of the Customer 

2.3.1 General (cont'd.) 

(E) providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations 
regarding the working conditions on the premises at which Company employees 
and agents shall be installing or maintaining the Company's facilities and 
equipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company 
facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, 
injury or damage to the Company employees or property might result from 
installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be responsible 
for identdymg, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous material 
(e.g., friable asbestos) prior to any construction or installation work; 

(F) complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, 
approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of 
Company facilities and equipment in an Customer premises or the rights-of-way 
for which Customer is responsible under Section 2.3.1(D); and granting or obtaining 
permission for Company agents or employees to enter the premises of the 
Customer at any time for the purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining, 
repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the facilities or 
equipment of the Company; 

(G) not creating or allowing to be placed any liens or other encumbrances on the 
Company's equipment or facilities; and 

(H) making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for maintenance 
purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No 
allowance will be made for the period during which service is interrupted for such 
purposes. 
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Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd.) 

2.3.2 Liability of the Customer 

(A) Carrier shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer or 
end user from and against any and all claims, loss, demands, suits, expense, or 
other action or any liability whatsoever, including attorney fees, whether 
suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for 
any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, 
damage, or destruction of any property, including environmental contamination, 
whether owned by the Customer or by any other party, caused or claimed to 
have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to 
operate, maintenance, presence, condition, location, use or removal of any 
Carrier or Customer equipment or facilities or service provided by Carrier. 

(B) Carrier does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations 
provided by it for use in an explosive atmosphere. Carrier shall be indemnified, 
defended and held harmless by the Customer from and against any and all 
claims, loss, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, 
including attorney fees, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the 
Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury to or death of any person 
or persons, and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, including 
environmental contamination, whether owned by the Customer or by any other 
party, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the 
installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, presence, condition, 
location, use or removal of any equipment or facilities or the service. 

(C) Notwithstanding any other provision of this tariff and pursuant to S.D. Codified 
Laws SS 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1, any person claiming to be damaged by Carrier 
may either make complaint to the Commission or may bring suit on his own 
behalf for the recovery of damages in any court of competent jurisdiction in 
South Dakota, but no person may pursue both remedies at the same time. 
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2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels 

2.4.1 General 

A user may transmit or receive information or signals via the facilities of the Company. The 
Company's services are designated primarily for the transmission of voice-grade telephonic 
signals, except as otherwise stated in this tariff. A user may transmit any form of signal that 
is compatible with the Company's equipment, but the Company does not guarantee that its 
services will be suitable for purposes other than voice-grade telephonic comunication 
except as specifically stated in this tariff. 

2.4.2 Station Equipment 

(A) Terminal equipment of the user's premises and the electric power consumed by 
such equipment shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the user. 
The user is responsible for the provision of wiring or cable to connect its terminal 
equipment to the Company MPOP. 

(B) The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment 
connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such equipment 
and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed 
on Company-provided equipment and wiring by connection, operation, or 
maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to 
the Company-provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's 
employees or to other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to 
prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the 
Customer's expense, subject to prior Customer approval of the equipment expense. 
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2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels (Cont'd.) 

2.4.3 Interconnection of Facilities 

(A) Local Traffic Exchange provides the ability for another local exchange provider to terminate 
local traffic on the Company's network. In order to quallfir for Local Traffic Exchange the 
call must: (a) be originated by an end user of a company that is authorized by the South 
Dakota Public Utilities Commission to provide local exchange service; (b) originate and 
terminate within a local calling area of the Company. 

(B) Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities 
and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communications Services and the 
channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense. 

(C) Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other 
communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and 
conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers which are applicable to such 
connections. 

(D) Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer provided terminal 
equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such terminal equipment 
shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 
47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all user-provided wiring shall be installed and 
maintained in compliance with those regulations. 
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2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels (Cont'd.) 

2.4.4 Inspections 

(A) Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company 
may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the 
Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in Section 2.4.2(B) for the 
installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, 
equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and 
equipment to Company-owned facilities and equipment. 

(B) If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being 
complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect 
its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will n o w  the Customer 
promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten days of 
receiving this notice, the Customer must take this corrective action and n o w  the 
Company of the action taken. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may 
take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of 
service, to protect its facilities, equipment and personnel from harm. 

(C) If harm to the Company's network, personnel or services is imminent, the 
Company reserves the right to shut down Customer's service immediately, with no 
prior notice required. 
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2.5 Customer Deposits and Advance Payments 

2.5.1 Advance Payments 

The Company does not collect advance payments from Customers. 
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2.5 Customer Deposits and Advance Payments (Cont'd.) 

2.5.2 Deposits 

The Company does not require deposits from Customers. 
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2.6 Payment Arrangements 

2.6.1 Payment for Services 

The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for facilities and services 
furnished by the Company to the Customer. 

The Customer is responsible for the payment of federal excise taxes, state and local sales 
and use taxes and similar taxes imposed by governmental jurisdictions, all of which shall be 
separately designated on the Company's invoices. The Company will not separately charge 
for the South Dakota gross receipts tax on the Company's invoice for local services. Any 
taxes imposed by a local jurisdiction (eg., county and municipal) will only be recovered 
from those Customers residing in the affected jurisdictions. 

Certain telecommunications services, as defined in the South Dakota Revised Code, are 
subject to state sales tax at the prevailing tax rates, if the services originate, or terminate in 
South Dakota, or both, and are charged to a subscriber's telephone number or account in 
South Dakota. 

2.6.2 Billing and Collection of Charges 

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges incurred by the Customer or other 
users for services and facilities furnished to the Customer by the Company. 

(A) Non-recurring charges are due and payable within tfurty (30) days after the date 
the invoice is mailed to the Customer by the Company. 

(B) The Company shall present invoices for recurring charges monthly to the Customer 
and recurring charges shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after the 
date the invoice is mailed to the Customer by the Company. When billing is based 
upon Customer usage, usage charges will be billed monthly for the preceding 
billing period. 

(C) When service does not begin on the first day of the month, or end of the last day of 
the month, the charge for the fraction of the month in which service was furnished 
will be calculated on a pro rata basis. For this purpose, every month is considered 
to have thirty (30) days. 
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2.6 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd.) 

2.6.2 Billing and Cdlection of Charges (Cont'd.) 

(D) Billing of the Customer by the Company will begin on the Service Commencement 
Date, which is the day on which the Company notifies the Customer that the 
service or facility is available for use, except that the Service Commencement Date 
may be postponed by mutual agreement of the parties, or if the service or facility 
does not conform to standards set forth in this tariff or the Service Order. Billing 
accrues through and includes the day that the service, circuit, arrangement or 
component is discontinued. 

(E) If any portion of the payment is not received by the Company within 30 days of 
receipt of this bill, or if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in 
funds which are not immediately available upon presentment, then a late payment 
charge of 1.5% per month shall be due to the Company. A late payment charge is 
not applicable to subsequent rebilling of any amount to which a late payment 
charge has already been applied. Late payment charges are to be applied without 
discrimination. 

(F) the Customer should n o w  the Company of any disputed items on an invoice 
within one hundred eighty (180) days of receipt of the invoice. If the Customer and 
the Company are unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction, the 
Customer may file a complaint with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 
in accordance with the Commission's rules and procedure. The address of the 
Company and the Commission is as follows: 

(G) If service is disconnected by the Company (in accordance with Section 2.6.3 
following) and later re-installed, re-installation of service will be subject to all 
applicable installation charges. 
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2.6 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd.) 

2.6.3 Discontinuance of Service for Cause 

The Company may discontinue service for the following reasons provided in this Section 
2.6.3. Customers will be provided five (5) days written notice prior to discontinuance unless 
otherwise indicated. 

Upon the Company's discontinuance of service to the Customer under Section 2.6.3(A) or 
2.6.3(B), the Company, in addition to all other remedies that may be available to the 
Company at law or in equity or under any other provision of this tariff, may declare all 
future monthly and other charges which would have been payable by the Customer during 
the remainder of the term for which such services would have otherwise been provided to 
the Customer to be immediately due and payable (discounted to present value at six 
percent). 

(A) Upon nonpayment of any aqounts owing to the Company, the Company may 
discontinue or suspend service without incuzTing any liability. No basic residential 
service shall be disconnected for nonpayment until at lease 29 days from the date of 
the bill and only following proper written notification. Non-payment of disputed 
charges by Customer does not constitute discontinuance or suspension of service. 
Disputed charges will be due after Customer and Company resolve dispute. 

(B) Upon violation of any of the other material terms or conditions for furnishing 
service the Company may, discontinue or suspend service without incurring any 
liability if such violation continues during that period. 

(C) Upon condemnation of any material portion of the facilities used by the Company 
to provide service to a Customer or if a casualty renders all or any material portion 
of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair, the Company, by notice to the 
Customer, may discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability. 

(D) Upon the Customer's insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors, filing for 
bankruptcy or reorganization, or failing to discharge an involuntary petition withir~ 
the time permitted by law, the Company may immediately discontinue or suspend 
service without incurring any liability. 

(E) Upon any governmental prohibition or governmental required alteration of the 
services to be provided or any violation of an applicable law or regulation, the 
Company may immediately discontinue service without incurring any liability. 
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2.6 Payment Arrangements, (Continued) 

2.6.3 Discontinuance of Service for Cause 

(F) Without notice in the event of fraudulent use of the Company's network. The 
Customer will be liable for all related costs. The Customer will also be responsible for 
payment of any reconnection charges. 

(G) Without notice in the event of Customer use of equipment or services in such a 
manner as to adversely affect the Company's service to others. 

(H) Without notice in the event of tampering with the equipment or services furnished by 
the Company. 
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2.6 Payment Arrangements, (Continued) 

2.6.4 Notice to Company for Cancellation of Service 

Customers desiring to terminate service shall provide the Company thirty (30) days notice 
of desire to terminate service. If special construction is involved, the required notice shall be 
written. 

2.6.5 Cancellation of Application for Service 

(A) Where the Company permits the Customer to cancel an application for service prior 
to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be imposed 
except for those specified below. 

(B) Where, prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs any expenses in 
installing the service or in preparing to install the service that it otherwise would not 
have incurred, a charge equal to the costs the Company incurred, less net salvage, 
shall apply, but in no case shall this charge exceed the sum of the charge for the 
minimum period of services ordered, including installation charges, and all charges 
others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to the Customer 
had service begun. 

(C) Where the Company i n m s  any expense in connection with special construction, or 
where special arrangements of facilities or equipment have begun, before the 
Company receives a cancellation notice, a charge equal to the costs incurred, less net 
salvage, may apply. In such cases, the charge will be based on such elements as the 
cost of the equipment, facilities, and material, the cost of installation, engineering, 
labor, and supervision, general and administrative expense, other disbursements, 
depreciation, maintenance, taxes, provision for return on investment, and any other 
costs associated with the special construction or arrangements. 

(D) The special charges described in 2.6.5(A) through 2.6.5(C) will be calculated and 
applied on a case-by-case basis. 
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2.6.6 Changes in Services Requested 

If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment 
specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or othenvise materially modifies any 
provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation fee shall be adjusted 
accordingly. 

2.6.7 Bad Check Charge 

A service charge of $20.00 will be assessed in accordance with South Dakota law for all 
checks returned by a bank or other financial institution for: Insufficient or uncollected 
funds, closed account, apparent tampering, missing signature or endorsement, or any other 
insufficiency or discrepancy necessitating return of the instrument at the discretion of the 
drawee bank or other financial institution. 

2.7 Allowances for Interruptions in Service 

2.7.1 General 

(A) A credit allowance will be given when service is interrupted, except as specified in 
Section 2.7.2 following. A service is interrupted when it becomes inoperative to the 
Customer, e.g., the Customer is unable to transmit or receive, because of a failure of a 
component furnished by the Company under this tariff. 

(B) An interruption period begins when the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit 
to be inoperative and, if necessary, releases it for testing and repair. An interruption 
period ends when the service, facility or circuit is operative. 
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2.7 Allowances for Interruptions in Service, (Continued) 

2.7.1 General (Continued) 

(C) If the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be interrupted but declines to 
release it for testing and repair, or refuses access to its premises for test and repair by 
the Company, the service, facility or circuit is considered to be impaired but not 
interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a service, facility or circuit 
considered by the Company to be impaired. 

(D) The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges as set forth 
herein for visits by the Company's agents or employees to the premises of the 
Customer when the service difficulty or trouble report results from the use of 
equipment or facilities provided by any party other than the Company, including but 
not limited to the Customer. 

2.7.2 Limitations of Allowances 

No credit allowance will be made for any interruption in service: 

(A) Due to the negligence of or noncompliance with the provisions of this tariff by any 
person or entity other than the Company, including but not limited to the Customer; 

(B) Due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, connections or services not provided 
by the Company; 

(C) Due to circumstances or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Company; 

(D) During any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its 
facilities and equipment for the purposes of investigating and correcting 
interruptions; 
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2.7 Allowances for Interruptions in Service, (Continued) 

2.7.2 Limitations of Allowances 

(E) A service will not be deemed to be interrupted if a Customer continues voluntarily 
make use of the service. If the service is interrupted, the Customer can get a service 
credit, use another means of communications provided by the Company (pursuant to 
Section 2.7.3), or utilize another service provider: 

(F) During any period when the Customer has released service to the Company for 
maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Customer order for a change in 
service arrangements; 

(G) That occurs or continues due to the Customer's failure to authorize replacement of 
any element of special construction. 
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Use of Another Means of Communications 

If the Customer elects to use another means of communications during the period of 
interruption, the Customer must pay the charges for the alternative service used. 
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2.7 Allowances for Interruption in Service, (Continued) 

2.7.4 Application of Credits for Interruptions in Service 

Issued: 
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Credits for interruptions in service that is provided and billed on a flat rate basis for a 
minimum period of at least one month, beginning on the date that billing becomes 
effective, shall in no event exceed an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge 
to the Customer for the period of service during which the event that gave rise to the 
claim for a credit occurred. A credit allowance is applied on a pro rata basis against 
the rates specified hereunder and is dependent upon the length of the interruption. 
Only those facilities on the interrupted portion of the circuit will receive a credit. 

For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have thirty (30) days. 

A credit allowance will be given for interruption of thirty (30) minutes or more. Two 
or more interruptions of fifteen (15) minutes or more during any one 24-hour period 
shall be combined into one cumulative interruption. 
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2.7 Allowances for Interruption in Service, (Continued) 

2.7.4 Application of Credits for Interruptions in Service, (Continued) 

(D) Interruptions of 24 Hours or Less 

Length of Interruption 
Less than 30 minutes 

30 minutes up to but not 
including 3 hours 

3 hours up to but not 
including 6 hours 

6 hours up to but not 
including 9 hours 

9 hours up to but not 
including 12 hours 

12 hours up to but not 
including 15 hours 

15 hours up to but not 
including 24 hours 

Amount of Service to be Credited 
None 

1/10 Day 

1/5 Day 

2/5 Day 

3/5 Day 

4/5 Day 

One Day 

(E) Interruptions Over 24 Hours and Less Than 72 Hours 

Interruptions over 24 hours and less than 72 hours will be credited 1/5 day for each 
3-hour period or fraction thereof. No more than one full day's credit will be 
allowed for any period of 24 hours. 

(F) Interruptions Over 72 Hours 

Interruptions over 72 hours will be credited 2 days for each full 24-hour period. No 
more than thirty (30) days credit will be allowed for any one-month period. 
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2.7 Allowances for Interruption in Service, (Continued) 

2.7.5 Limitations on Allowances 

No credit allowance will be made for: 

(A) interruptions due to the negligence of or noncompliance with the provisions of this 
tariff by the Customer, authorized user or joint user; 

(B) interruptions due to the negligence of any person other than the Company, including 
but not limited to the Customer; 

(C) interruptions of service during any period in which the Company is not given full 
access to its facilities and equipment for the purpose of investigating and correcting 
interruptions; 

(Dl interruptions of service during a period in which the Customer continues to use the 
service on an impaired basis; 

(E) interruptions of service during any period when the Customer has released service to 
the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Customer order 
for a change in service arrangements; 

(F) interruption,of service due to circumstances or causes beyond the reasonable control 
of Company; and 

(G) that occur or continue due to the Customer's failure to authorize replacement of any 
element of special construction. 

2.7.6 Cancellation For Service Interruption 

Cancellation or termination for service intemption is permitted only if any circuit 
experiences a single continuous outage of eight (8) hours or more or cumulative service 
credits equaling sixteen(l6) hours in a continuous twelve (12) month period. The right to 
cancel service under this provision applies only to the single circuit which has been subject 
to the outage or cumulative service credits. 
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2.8 Cancellation of Service/Termination Liability 

If a Customer cancels a service order or terminates services before the completion of the term for any 
reason other than a service interruption (as defined in Section 2.7.1) or where the Company breaches 
the terms in the service contract, Customer may be requested by the Company to pay to Company 
termination liability charges, which are defined below. These charges shall become due and owing 
as of the effective date of the cancellation or termination and be payable within the period set forth 
in Section 2.6.2. 

2.8.1 Termination Liability 

Customer's termination liability for cancellation of sei-vice shall be equal to: 

(A) all unpaid non-recurring charges reasonably expended by Company to establish 
service to Customer, plus; 

(B) any disconnection, early cancellation or tennination charges reasonably incurred and 
paid to third parties by Company on behalf of Customer, plus; 

(C) all recurring charges specified in the applicable Service Order for the balance of the 
then current tenn discounted at the prime rate announced in the Wall Street Journal on 
the third business day following the date of cancellation; 

(D) minus a reasonable allowance for costs avoided by the Company as a direct result of 
Customer's cancellation. 
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2.9 Reserved for Future Use 

2.10 Use of Customer's Service by Others 

2.10.1 Resale and Sharing 

There are no prohibitions or limitations on the resale of services. Prices for services appear 
in the price sheet attached to this tariff. Any service provided under this tariff may be 
resold to or shared with other persons at the option of Customer, subject to compliance with 
any applicable laws of the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission regulations governing 
such resale or sharing. The Customer remains solely responsible for all use of services 
ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s) pursuant to this tariff, for determining 
who is authorized to use its services, and for no-g the Company of any unauthorized 
use. 

2.10.2 Reserved for Future Use 

2.11 Transfers and Assignments 

Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection with 
the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other party, 
except that the Company may assign its rights an duties to a) any subsidiary, parent company or 
affiliate of the Company; b) pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all the assets of the 
Company; or c) pwsuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company. 
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2.12 Notices and Communications 

The Customer shall designate on the service order an address to which the Company shall 
mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Customer may also 
designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed. 

The Company shall designate on the service order an address to which the Customer shall 
mail ordeliver all notices and other communications, except that Company may designate 
a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on 
that bill. 

Except as otherwise stated in this tariff, all notices or other communications required to be 
given pursuant to this tariff will be in writing. Notices and other communications of either 
party, and all bills mailed by the Company, shall be presumed to have been delivered to 
the other party on the third business day following placement of the notice, 
communication or bill with the U.S. Mail or a private delivery service, prepaid and 
properly addressed, or when actually received or refused by the addressee, whichever 
occurs first. 

The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses 
designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for 
giving notice set forth herein. 
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3.1 Exchange Service Areas 

Local exchange services are provided, subject to availability of facilities and equipment, in areas 
currently served by the following Incumbent LECs: 1) Qwest. 

3.2 Rate Groups 

Charges for local services provided by the Company may be based, .in part, on the Rate Group 
associated with the Customers End Office. The Rate Group is determined by the total access lines 
and PBX trunks in the local calling area which can be reached from each End Office. 

In the event that an Incumbent LEC or the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission reclassifies an 
exchange from one Rate Group to another, the reclassification will also apply to customers who 
purchase services under this tariff. Local calling areas and Rate Group assignments are equivalent 
to those areas and groups specified in Qwest's South Dakota General Subscriber Service Tariff 
(GSST). 
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3.3 Extended Area Service Additive 

Certain exchanges within the Telecommunications Service Territory within South Dakota utilize an 
Extended Area Service additive to the rates provided in Sections 7.2, 7.3 and 7.5 of this tariff. The 
following chart identifies the additive rates that need to be added to the rates in those sections for 
the Extended Area Service rate. 

3.3.1 Flat Rate Service Additive 

To Be Determined 

3.3.2 Message Rate Service Additive 

To Be Determined 
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SECTTON 4.n _ ,  SERVTCE C H m C E S  AND STTRC'HARCES 

4.1 Service Order and Change Charges 

Non-recurring charges apply to processing Service Orders for new service, for changes in service, 
and for changes in the Customer's primary interexchange carrier (PIC) code. 

Line Connection Charge 
First Line 
Each Additional Line 

Line Change Charge 
First Line 
Each Additional Line 

TBD TBD 
TBD TBD 

TBD 
TBD 

TBD 
TBD 

4.2 Maintenance Visit Charges 

Maintenance Visit Charges apply when the Company dispatches personnel to a Customer's 
premises to perform work necessary for installing new service, effecting changes in service or 
resolving troubles reported by the Customer when the trouble is found to be caused by the 
Customer's facilities. 

Maintenance Visit Charges will be credited to the Customer's account in the event trouble is not 
found in the Company facilities, but the trouble is later determined to be in those facilities. 

The time period for which the Maintenance Visit Charges is applied will commence when Company 
personnel are dispatched at the Customer premises and end when work is completed. The rates for 
Maintenance of Service vary by time per Customer request. 

. . nn nf h r n ~  npr t ~ r h n i r m  E i w i n ~ s  

Initial 15 minute increment TBD TBD 
Each Additional 15 minute increment TBD TBD 

4.3 Restoration of Service 

A restoration charge applies to the restoration of suspended service and facilities because of 
nonpayment of bills and is payable at the time that the restoration of the suspended service and 
facilities is arranged. The restoration charge does not apply when, after disconnection of service, 
service is later re-installed. 

Per occasion 
Ep~idprlce 

TBD TBD 
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5.1 General 

5.1.1 Services Offered 

The following Network Services are available to residence/business Customers and for 
resale by other carriers certificated by the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission: 

Standard Residence Line Service 
Standard Business Line Service 
PBX Trunk Service 
Direct Inward Dial (DID) Service 
Optional Calling Features 

The following services are available to residence/business Customers and are not offered 
on a resale basis as of the effective date of this page. 

Listing Services (including Non Published and Non Listed Services) 
Directory Assistance 
Miscellaneous Services (including Vanity Numbers and Number Portability) 

5.1.2 Application of Rates and Charges 

All services offered in this tariff are subject to service order and change charges where the 
Customer requests new services or changes in existing services, as well as indicated Non- 
Recurring and Monthly Recurring Charges. Charges for local calling services may be 
assessed on a measured rate basis and are additional to monthly recurring charges shown 
for Business or Residence lines, PBX Trunks, DID Trunks and Digital/DSl service. 
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ON 5.n - NETWORK SERVTCES I-IESCRTPTTONS. !CnNTf13) 

5.1 General (Continued) 

5.1.3 Emergency Services Calling Plan 

Access (at no additional charge) to the local operator or emergency services bureau by 
dialing 0- or 9-1-1 is offered at no charge to the Customer. 

Message toll telephone calls, to governmental emergency service agencies as set forth in (A) 
following, having primary or principal responsibility with respect to the provision of 
emergency services to persons and property in the area from which the call is made, 
meeting the definition and criteria of an emergency call as set forth in (B) following are 
offered at no charge to Customers: 

Governmental fire fighting, South Dakota State Highway Patrol, police, and emergency 
squad service (as designated by the appropriate governmental agency) quahfy as 
governmental emergency service agencies provided they answer emergency service calls on 
a personally attended (live) twenty-four (24) hour basis, three hundred sixty-five (365) days 
a year, including holidays. 

An emergency is an occurrence or set of circumstances in which conditions pose immediate 
threat to human life, property, or both and necessitate that prompt action be taken. An 
emergency call is an originated call of short duration to a governmental emergency services 
agency in order to seek assistance for such an emergency. 
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5.2 Call Timing for Usage Sensitive Services 

Where charges for a service are specified based on the duration of use, such as the duration of a 
telephone call, the following rules apply: 

5.2.1 Calls are measured in durational increments identified for each service. All calls, which are 
fractions of a measurement increment, are rounded-up to the next whole unit. 

5.2.2 Timing on completed calls begins when the call is answered by the called party. Answering 
is determined by hardware answer supervision in all cases where this signaling is provided 
by the terminating local carrier and any intermediate carrier(s). 

5.2.3 Timing terminates on all calls when the calling party hangs up or the Company's network 
receives an off-hook signal from the terminating carrier. 

5.2.4 Calls originating in one time period and terminating in another will be billed in proportion 
to the rates in effect during different segments of the call. 

5.2.5 All times refer to local time. 
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5.3 Distance Calculations 

Where charges for a service are specified based upon distance, the following rules apply: 

5.3.1 Distance between two points is measured as airline distance between the rate centers of the 
originating and terminating telephone lines. The rate center is a set of geographic 
coordinates, as referenced in Local Exchange Routing Guide issued by Bellcore, associated 
with each NPA-NXX combination (where NPA is the area code and NXX is the first three 
digits of a seven-digit telephone number). Where there is not telephone number associated 
with an access line on the Company's network (such as a dedicated 800 or WATS access 
line), the Company will apply the rate center of the Customer's main billing telephone 
number. 

5.3.2 The airline distance between any two rate centers is determined as follows: 

Step 1: Obtain the "V" (vertical) and " H  (horizontal) coordinates for each Rate Center 
from the above-referenced Bellcore document. 

Step 2: Computer the difference between he "V" coordinate of the two rate centers; and 
the difference between the two " H  coordinates. 

Step 3: Square each difference obtained in step @) above. 

Step4: Add the square of the "V" difference and the square of the " H  difference 
obtained in step C) above. 

Step 5: Divide the sum of the squares by 10. Round to the next higher whole number if 
any fraction is obtained. 

Step 6: Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to the 
next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the airline mileage. 

5.3.3 The formula for distance calculations is: 
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5.4 Rate Periods for Time of Day Sensitive Services 

5.4.1 For time of day, usage sensitive services, the following rate periods apply unless otherwise 
specified in this tariff. 

MON TUES WED THSJR FRI SAT SUN 
8:00 AM TO 

5:OO PM* DAYTIME RATE PERIOD 
5:00 PM 

TO EVENING RATE PERIOD 
11:OO PM* 

11:OO PM TO 
8:OO AM* NIGHT/ WEEKEND RATE PERIOD 

EVE 

*Up to but not including. 

5.4.2 Calls are billed based on the rate in effect for the actual time period(s) during which the call 
. occurs. Calls that cross rate period boundaries are billed the rates in effect in that boundary 

for each portion of the call, based on the time of day at the Customer location. 

5.4.3 For services subject to holiday discounts, the following are Company recognized national 
holidays, determined at the location of the calling station. The evening rate is used on 
national holidays, unless a lower rate normally would apply. 

New Year's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

January 1 
As Federally Observed 
July 4 
As Federally Observed 
December 25 
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5.5 Standard Residence Line 

A Standard Residence Line provides the Customer with a single, analog, voice-grade telephonic 
communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Standard 
Residence Lines are provided for the connection of Customer-provided wiring and single station 
sets or facsimile machines. An optional per line Hunting feature is available for multi-line 
Customers which routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station 
line is busy. 

5.6 Standard Business Line 

The Standard Business Line provides a Customer with a single, analog, voice-grade telephonic 
communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Standard 
Business Lines are provided for the connection of Customer-provided wiring and single station sets 
or facsimile machines. An optional per line Hunting feature is available for multi-line Customers 
which routes a call to an idle station line iti a prearranged group when the called station line is busy. 

5.7 PBX Trunk Service 

Basic PBX Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications 
channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Basic Trunks are provided for 
connection of Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) to the public switched 
telecommunications network. Each Basic PBX T d  is provided with touch-tone signaling and may 
be configured into a hunt group at no additional charge with other Company-provided Basic PBX 
Trunks. The signal is an analog signal at the DSO level. 
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5.8 Reserved for Future Use 

5.9 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service 

Direct Inward Dialing ("DID") permits calls incoming to a PBX system or other Customer Premises 
Equipment to be routed to a specific station without the assistance of an attendant. DID calls are 
routed directly to the station associated with the called number. DID service as offered by the 
Company provides the necessary trunks, telephone numbers, and out-pulsing of digits to enables 
DID service at a Customer's location. DID service requires special PBX software and hardware not 
provided by the Company. Such hardware and software is the responsibility of the Customer. 
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5.10 Reserved for Future Use 

5.11 Optional Calling Features 

The features listed in Section 5.11.1 are offered by the Company to Residential and Business 
Customers. Refer to Price Lists in Sections 6 and 7 of this tariff for specific features offered with each 
type of local exchange service. 

5.11.1 Features Descriptions 

(A) Flexible Call Forwarding: Provides end-user control for call forwarding capabilities via 
dial-accessed voice prompt menus. Customers may forward calls to a primary local or 
long distance. The end-user may spec* a secondary location for routing of go 
unanswered at the forward-to location or reach a busy signal. This secondary location 
may be another telephone number, pager or voice messaging service. Other capabilities 
included with this feature include: 

Speed Forwarding; 
Priority Screening; 
Ring Control; and 
Timed Forwarding. 

It is the responsibility of the Customer to subscribe to the telephone number, pager or 
voice messaging service used as the secondary location. 

(B) Flexible Call Forwarding with Audio Calling Name: Provides all of the functionality 
of Enhanced Call Forwarding. Also permits the end-user to receive the Directory Name 
of the party's whose call was forwarded to primary number. In some situations, the 
end-user may hear the calling party's city and state or telephone number, depending on 
available call data. 

(C) Flexible Call Forwarding Plus: Provides all of the functionality of Enhanced Call 
Forwarding. Also includes an additional telephone number with directory listing and 
distinctive ringing for calls placed to the additional number. Enhanced Call 
Forwarding Plus allows parties to reach the end-user's location when FCF is active and 
all calls to the end-users main telephone number would normally forward. Calls to the 
additional number do not forward even when Enhanced Call Forwarding is active. 
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ON 5.0 - NETWORK SERVTCES T)ESCRTPTTONS (CnNTTNTTET)) 

5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(D) Flexible Call Forwarding Plus with Audio Calling Name: Provides all of the 
functionality of Enhanced Call Forwarding Plus including the additional telephone 
number with listing and distinctive ringing. Also permits the end-user to receive the 
Directory Name of the party's whose call was forwarded to primary number. In some 
situations, the end-user may hear the calling party's city and state or telephone number, 
depending on available call data. 

(E) Call Forwarding Variable: Permits the end-user to automatically forward (transfer) all 
incoming calls to another telephone number, and to restore it to normal operation at 
their discretion. The end-user must dial an activation code from his/her exchange line 
along with the forward-to number in order to turn the feature on. A separate code is 
dialed by the end-user to deactivate the feature. 

(F) Call Forwarding Variable, Remote Access: Permits the end-user to automatically 
forward (transfer) all incoming calls to another telephone number, and to restore it to 
normal operation at their discretion. The end-user must dial an activation code along 
with the forward-to number in order to turn the feature on. A separate code is dialed 
by the end-user to deactivate the feature. Feature activation may be performed from 
the end-user's exchange line or remotely from some other line. Remote access requires 
the end-user to (1) dial a special access number 2) enter their seven-digit telephone 
number and 3) enter a personal identification number prior to forwarding their calls. 

(G) Call Forwarding Don't Answer, Basic: Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when 
the end-user's line remains unanswered after a pre-designated ringing interval. The 
ringing interval before forwarding and the forward-to number are fixed by the service 
order. 

(H) Call Forwarding Don't Answer w/Ring Control: Permits the forwarding of incoming 
calls when the end-user's line remains unanswered after a pre-designated ringing 
interval. The forward-to number is fixed by the service order. However, the end-user 
has the ability to change the time interval before forwarding occurs at &/her 
discretion. 
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5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(I) Call Forwarding Don't Answer w1Customer Control: Permits the forwarding of 
incoming calls when the end-user's line remains unanswered after a pre-designated 
ringing interval. The ringing interval before forwarding and the forward-to number are 
fixed by the service order. However, the end-user has the ability to turn the feature on 
or off at his/her discretion. 

U) Call Forwarding Busy Line, Basic: Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the 
end-user's line is busy. The forwarded number is fixed by the end-user service order. 

.(K) Call Forwarding Busy Line wICustomer Control: Permits the forwarding of incoming 
calls when the end-user's line is busy. The forwarded number is fixed by the end-user 
service order. However, the end-user has the ability to turn the feature on or off at 
his /her discretion. 

(L) Call Waiting - Basic: Call Waiting provides a tone signal to indicate to a Customer 
already engaged in a telephone call that a second caller is 'attempting to dial in. It 
permits the Customer to place the first call on hold, answer the second call and then 
alternate between both callers. Cancel Call Waiting is provided with the feature and 
allows a Call Waiting end-user to disable the Call Waiting feature for the duration of a 
single outgoing telephone call. Cancel Call Waiting is activate by dialing a special code 
prior to placing a call, and is automatically deactivated when the Customer disconnects 
from the call. 
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SECTTON 5.0 - NETWORK SERVTCES l3ESCRTPTTONS fCONTTNTTEl3) 

5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(M) Call Waiting -- Deluxe: Allows the end-user to control the treatment applied to 
incoming calls while the Customer is off-hook on an existing call. This feature includes 
the capabilities of Call Waiting Basic plus additional call treatment options. Treatment 
options offered with Call Waiting Deluxe include: 

Answer the waiting call and placing the first party on hold; 
Answer the waiting call and disconnecting from the first party; 
Direct the waiting caller to hold via a recording 
Forward the waiting caller to another location (e.g., voice mailbox or telephone 
answering service) 

Full utilization of Call Waiting Deluxe requires specialized CPE not provided by the 
Company. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the necessary CPE. The 
end-user must have Caller ID Basic or Deluxe for display of calling party identification 
information for waiting calls. The end-user must have a Call Forwarding don't 
Answer feature active in order to forward a waiting call to another location. 

(N) Call Waiting - Deluxe with Conferencing: Provides all of the functionality of Call 
Waiting Deluxe. Also permits the end-user to conference a waiting call with an existing 
call (first party) and, if desired, subsequently drop either leg of the conferenced call. 

(0) Caller ID - Basic: Permits the end-user to view a Directory Number of the calling party 
on incoming telephone calls. Information is displayed on a specialized CPE not 
provided by the Company. The feature also provides the date and time of each 
incoming call. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the necessary CPE. 
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5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(P) Caller ID - Deluxe: Permits the end-user to view a Directory Name and Directory 
Number of the calling party on incoming telephone calls. Information is displayed on a 
specialized CPE not provided by the Company. The feature also provides the date and 
time of each incoming call. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the 
necessary CPE. In some situations, the calling party's city and state may be displayed 
rather than a Directory Name, depending on available call data. 

(Q) Anonymous Call Rejection: Permits the end-user to automatically reject incoming calls 
when the call originates from a telephone number which has blocked delivery of its 
calling number (see Calling Number Delivery Blocking). When active, calls from 
private numbers will be routed to a special announcement then terminated. The feature 
may be turned on or off by the end-user by dialing the appropriate feature control code. 
Anonymous Call Rejection is offered as a stand-alone feature or as an add-on to Caller 
ID Deluxe. 

(R) Call Block: Allows the end-user to automatically block incoming calls from up to six 
end-user pre-selected telephone numbers programmed into the feature's screening list. 
Callers whose numbers have been blocked will hear a recorded message stating that 
their call has been blocked. The end-user controls when the feature is active, and can 
add or remove calling numbers from the feature's screening list. 

(S) Call Rehum Allows the Customer to return a call to the last incoming call whether 
answered or not. Upon activation, it will redial the number automatically and continue . 

to check the number every 45 seconds for up to 30 minutes if the number is busy. The 
Customer is alerted with a distinctive ringing pattern when the busy number is free. 
When the Customer answers the ring, the call is then completed. The calling party's 
number will not be delivered or announced to the call recipient under any 
circumstances. 
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- O R K  =VICES nESCRTPTTONS (CClNTTNTJW3) 

5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(T) Call Selector: Allows a Customer to assign a maximum of 15 telephone numbers to a 
special list. The Customer will hear a distinctive ring when calls are received from 
telephone numbers on that list. 

(U) Call Tracing: Allows the tracing of nuisance calls to a specified telephone number 
suspected of originating from a given local office. The tracing is activated upon 
entering the specified dial code. The originating telephone number, outgoing trunk 
number or terminating number, and the time and date are generated for every call to 
the specified telephone number can then be identified. 

(V) Calling Number Delivery Blocking: Prevents the delivery, display and announcement 
of the end-user's Directory Number and Directory Name on all calls dialed from an 
exchange service equipped with this option. When active, the end-user's telephone 
name and number will not appear on the called party's Caller ID CPE or be disclosed in 
another way. The feature is available on a per call or per line basis. With per call 
Calling Number Delivery Blocking, it is necessary for the end-user to dial an activation 
code prior to placing the call. With the per line version of the feature, all calls are 
placed with the end-user's number blocked. Per line end-users must dial an activation 
code prior to utilization. 

(W) Message Waiting Indication: Provides the end-user with an audible (stutter dial tone) 
or visual (lamp or other CPE display) indication that messages are waiting to be 
retrieved. Message Waiting Indication can only be activated/deactivated by a voice 
mailbox or other voice messaging service provided by the Company or third party. It 
is the responsibility of the Customer to subscribe to a compatible voice messaging 
service. Visual Message Waiting Indication requires specialized CPE not provided by 
the Company. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the necessary CPE. 
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5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(X) Multiple Directory Number Distinctive Ringing: This feature allows an end user to 
determine the source of an incoming call from a distinctive ring. The end user may 
have up to two additional numbers assigned to a single line (i.e. Distinctive Ringing - 
First Number and Distinctive Ringing - Second Number). The designated primary 
number will receive a normal ringing pattern; other numbers will receive distinctive 
ringing patterns. The pattern is based on the telephone number that the calling party 
dials. 

(Y) Preferred Call Forwarding: Permits the end-user to automatically forward to another 
number calls received from up to six end-user pre-selected telephone numbers 
programmed into the features screening list. The end-user controls when the feature is 
active, the forward-to-number and can add or remove calling numbers from the 
feature's screening list. 

(Z) Repeat Dialing: Permits the end-user to have calls automatically redialed when the first 
attempt reaches a busy number. The line is checked every 45 seconds for up to 30 
minutes and alerts the Customer with a distinctive ringing pattern when the busy 
number and the Customer's line are free. The Customer can continue to make and 
receive calls while the feature is activated. The following types of calls cannot be 
reached using Repeat Dialing: 

Calls to 800 Service numbers 
Calls to 900 Service numbers 
Calls preceded by an interexchange carrier access code 
International Direct Distance Dialed calls 
Calls to Directory Assistance 
Calls to 911 
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5.11 Optional Calling Features, (continued) 

5.11.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued) 

(AN Speed Calling: Permits the Customer to place calls to other telephone numbers by 
dialing a one or two digit code rather than the complete telephone number. The 
feature is available as either an eight (8) code list or a thirty (30) code list. Code lists 
may include local and/or toll telephone numbers. The Customer has the ability to 
add or remove telephone numbers and codes to/from the speed calling list without 
assistance from the Company. 

(AB) Three Way Calling: Permits the end-user to add a third party to an established 
connection. When the third party answers, a two-way conversation can be held 
before adding the original party for a three-way conference. The end-user initiating 
the conference controls the call and may disconnect the third party to reestablish the 
original connection or establish a connection to a different third party. The feature 
may be used on both outgoing and incoming. 
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SECTTON 5.n - NETWORK SERVTCES DESCRTPTTONS (CONTTNTJEm 

5.12 Listing Services 

For each Customer of Company-provided Exchange Service(s), the Company shall arrange for the 
listing of the Customer's main billing telephone number in the directory(ies) published by the 
dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the area at no additional charge. At a Customer's option, the 
Company will arrange for additional listings for an additional charge. 

5.12.1 Non-Published Service 

This optional service provides for suppression of printed and recorded directory listings. A 
Customer's name and number do not appear in printed directories or Directory Assistance 
Bureau records. 

5.12.2 Non-Listed Service 

This optional service provides for suppression of printed directory listings only. Parties 
may still obtain the Customer's number by calling the Directory Assistance Bureau. 

5.13 Directory Assistance 

Provides for identification of telephone directory numbers, via an operator or automated platform. 
Customers are provided with a maximum of 2 listings per each call to Directory Assistance. 
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SECTTON 5.0 - NETWORK SERVICES DESCRTPTTONS fCONTTNTDJ2) 

5.14 Reserved for Future Use 

5.15 Reserved for Future Use 

5.16 Miscellaneous Services 

5.16.1 Main Number Retention 

Main Number Retention is an optional feature by which a Customer, who was formally a 
customer of another certified local exchange carrier at the same premises location, may 
retain its main telephone numbers and main fax numbers for use with the Company- 
provided Exchange Services. Main Number Retention service is only available in areas 
where the Company maintains some form of number retention arrangement with the 
Customer's former local exchange carrier. 

5.16.2 Pay Per Call Blocking/Unblocking 

This service provides the option of blocking, or subsequent unblocking, all 900 and 976 calls 
on a per line basis. The Company will provide for per-line blocking where the Company's 
switching facilities permit. 

5.16.3 Vanity Number Service 

This service provides for the reservation of special or unique telephone number and fax 
number for use with the Company-provided exchange services. 

5.16.4 Presubscription Services 

This service provides for the Presubscription of local exchange lines provided by the 
Company to the intraLATA and interLATA long distance carrier(s) selected by the 
Customer. 
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6.1 Reserved for Future Use 
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SECTTON 7.0 - T.OCAT. EXCH4bEE SERVTCES PRTCE T.TST 

7.1 General 

Services provided in this tariff section are available on a Resale Service basis. Local Resale Services 
are provided through the use of resold switching and transport facilities obtained from Other 
Telephone Companies. 

The rates, terms and conditions set forth in the section are applicable where the Company provides 
specified local exchange services to Customers through resale of local exchange services. 

All rates set forth in this Section are subject to change and may be changed by the Company 
pursuant to notice requirements established by the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission. 
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SECTTON 7.0 - T.OCAT. EXCHANGE SERVTCES PRTCE T.TST; (cONTTNTTF! 

7.2 Standard Residence Local Exchange Service 

Standard Residence Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with a single, analog, voice- 
grade telephonic communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. 
Standard Residence Local Exchange Service lines are provided for the connection of Customer- 
provided wiring, telephones, facsimile machines or other station equipment. An optional per line 
Hunting feature is available for multi-line Customers, which routes a call to the next idle line in a 
prearranged group when the called line is busy. 

Local exchange service lines and trunks are provided on a single party (individual) basis only. No 
multi-party lines are provided. Service is available on a flat rate, measured rate or message rate 
basis depending on the service plan selected by the Customer. Not all service plans will be available 
in all areas. 

Usage charges if applicable are billed in arrears. Usage charges may apply for calls placed from the 
Customer's line. No usage charges will apply to calls received by the Customer. Non-recurring 
charges for installation or rearrangement of service are billed on the next month's bill immediately 
following work performed by the Company. 
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7.2 Standard Residence Local Exchange Service (Continued) 

7.2.1 Monthly Recurring Charges 

The following charges apply to Standard Residence Local Exchange Service lines per 
month. Rates and charges include Touch-tone Service for each line. The rates and charges 
below apply to service provided on a month-to-month basis. 

TO BE DETERMINED 
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7.2 Standard Residence Local Exchange Service (Continued) 

7.2.2 Other Monthly Recurring Charges 

(A) Hunting (a.k.a. Rotary or Grouping) 

The following charges apply to Standard Residence Local Exchange lines equipped 
with Hunting. Rates vary based on Rate Group. 

To Be Determined 

7.2.3 Usage Sensitive Charges and Allowances 

(A) Flat Rate Service 

No measured or message charges apply to calls placed or received from Flat Rate 
service lines. Customers receive unlimited calling within their local calling area. 
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Standard Residence Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.2.3 Usage Sensitive Charges and Allowances, (Continued) 

(B) Message Service 

Customers subscribing to Message Service will receive a monthly usage allowance 
of 30 outgoing calls. This allowance is applied to local calls placed from the 
Customer's line. Local usage in excess of the allowance will be billed in arrears. 
Local usage is billed on a per call basis. 

Per Local Call TBD 

(1) Calls to Expanded Service Areas 

The following per minute rates apply to calls to points in the Expanded 
Service Areas as defined in the General Subscriber Service Tariff, Section 
A3, presently on file with the SD. PUC. 

TO BE DETERMINED 
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Issued by: 

Effective: 
A. John Leach, President 

Covista, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 

Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 



COVISTA, INC. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

South Dakota Tariff Number 2 
Original Page 68 

SECTTON 7.0 - T,OCAT. E X C H A m , R V l C E S  PRTCE T.TST ICONTT- 

Standard Residence Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.2.4 Non-Recurring Charges 

Non-recurring charges apply to each line installed for the Customer. Non-recurring charges 
are in addition to applicable service order charges contained in Section 4 of this tariff. All 
such charges will appear on the next bill following installation of the service. 

Non-recurring charges for installation of Residential lines are: 

First Line 
Each Additional Line(1) 

TBD 
TBD 

NOTES: 
(1) Additional Line installation charges apply only when 2 or more lines are installed 

at the same time and at the same Customer Premises. 
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Standard Business Local Exchange Service 

Standard Business Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with a single, analog, voice-grade 
telephonic communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. 
Standard Business Local Exchange Service lines are provided for the connection of Customer- 
provided wiring, telephones, facsimile machines or other station equipment. An optional per line 
Hunting feature is available for multi-line Customers which routes a call to the next idle line in a 
prearranged group when the called line is busy. 

Local exchange service lines and trunks are provided on a single party (individual) basis only. No 
multi-party lines are provided. Service is available on a flat rate, measured rate or message rate 
basis depending on the service plan selected by the Customer. Not all service plans will be available 
in all areas. 

Usage charges, if applicable are billed in arrears. Usage charges may apply for calls placed from the 
Customer's line. No usage charges will apply to calls received by the Customer. Non-recurring 
charges for installation or rearrangement of service are billed on the next month's bill immediately 
following work performed by the Company. 
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7.3 Standard Business Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.3.1 Monthly Recurring Charges 

The following charges apply to Standard Business Local Exchange Service lines per month. 
Rates and charges include Touchtone Service for each line. The rates and charges below 
apply to service provided on a month-to-month basis. 

TO BE DETERMINED 
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7.3 Standard Business Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.3.2 Other Monthly Recurring Charges 

(A) Hunting (alkla Rotary or Grouping) 

The following charges apply to Standard Business Local Exchange lines equipped 
with Hunting. Rates vary based on Rate Group. 

TO BE DETERMINED 
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7.3 Standard Business Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.3.3 Usage Sensitive Charges and Allowances 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

Flat Rate Service 

No measured or message charges apply to calls placed or received from Flat Rate 
service lines. Customers receive unlimited calling within their local calling area. 

Message Service 

Customers subscribing to Message Service will receive a monthly usage allowance of 
75 outgoing calls. This allowance is applied to local calls placed from the Customer's 
line. Local usage in excess of the allowance will be billed in arrears. Local usage is 
billed on a per call basis. 

Per Local Call TBD 

(1) Calls to Expanded Service Areas 

The following per minute rates apply to calls to points in the Expanded 
Service Areas as defined in the Qwest's General Subscriber Service Tariff 
presently on file with the SD PUC. 

TO BE DETERMINED 
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7.3 Standard Business Local Exchange Service, (Continued) 

7.3.4 Non-Recurring Charges 

Non-recurring charges apply to each line installed for the Customer. Non-recurring charges 
are in addition to applicable service order charges contained in Section 4 of this tariff. AU 
such charges will appear on the next bill following installation of the service. 

Non-recurring charges for installation of Residential lines are: 

First Line 
Each Additional Line(1) 

NOTES: 
(1) Additional Line installation charges apply only when 2 or more lines are installed 

at the same time and at the same Customer Premises. 
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7.5 Residence and Business PBX Trunk Service 

PBX Trunk service provides a Customer FMI a single, voice-grade telephonic communications 
channel which can be used to place one call at a time. Trunks are provided for connection of 
Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) or other station equipment to the public 
switched telecommunications network. 

PBX Trunks are available to Business and Residence Customers as Inward, Outward or Two-way 
combination trunks where services and facilities permit. 

Each PBX Trunk is provided with Touchtone signaling at no additional charge. An optional per 
trunk Hunting feature is available for Customers which routes a call to the next idle trunk in a 
prearranged group (see Sections 7.2 and 7.3). 

PBX Trunks may also be equipped with Direct Inward Dialing (DID) capability and DID number 
blocks for additional charges (see Section 7.6). 

7.5.1 Flat Rate Service 

To Be Determined 

7.5.2 Message Rate Service 

To Be Determined 
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7.6 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service 

Direct Inward Dialing ("DID") permits calls incoming to a PBX system or other Customer Premises 
Equipment to be routed to a specific station without the assistance of an attendant. DID calls are 
route directly to the station associated with the called number. DID service as offered by the 
Company provides the necessary trunks, telephone numbers, and out-pulsing of digits to enable 
DID service at a Customer's location. DID service requires special PBX software and hardware not 
provided by the Company. Such hardware and software is the responsibility of the Customer. 

The following charges apply to Customers subscribing to DID service provided by the Company. 
These charges are in addition to recurring and non-recurring charges for PBX T& as shown in 
Section 7.5 of this tariff. The Customer will be charged for the number of DID numbers utilized out 
of the available 20 numbers. 

Establish Trunk Group and Provide 
lSt Block of 20 DID Numbers 

Each Additional Block of 20 DID Numbers 

DTD Trunk Termination: 
Per Inward Only Trunk 
Per Combination Trunk with Call Transfer 

Dual Tone Multifrequency Pulsing Option, Per Trunk 

Automatic Intercept Service, Per Number Referred 

Installation Monthly - - 
TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 
TBD TBD 

N/A TBD 

TBD N/ A 
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7.7 Reserved For Future Use 

7.8 Optional Calling Features 

The features in this section are made available on an individual basis or as part of multiple feature 
packages. AU features are provided subject to availability. Certain features may not be available 
with all classes of service. Transmission levels for calls forwarded or calls placed or received using 
optional calling features may not be acceptable for all some uses in some cases. 

7.8.1 Features Offered on a Usage Sensitive Basis 

The following features are available to all local exchange Business and Residence line 
Customers where facilities and services permit. Customers may utilize each feature by 
dialing the appropriate access code. The Customer will be billed the Per Feature Activation 
Charge shown in the following table each time a feature is used by the Customer. 
Customers may subscribe to these features on a monthly basis at their option to obtain 
unlimited use of these features for a fixed monthly charge. 

Optional Calling Features 
Three-Way Calling 
Call Return 
Repeat Dialing 
Calling Number Delivery Blocking, Per Call 

Residence Business 
TBD TBD 
TBD TBD 
TBD TBD 
TBD TBD 

Denial of per call activation for Three-Way Calling, Call Return and Repeat Dialing from 
any line or trunk is available to Customers upon request at no additional charge. 
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7.8 Optional Calling Features, (Continued) 

7.8.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis 

The following optional calling features are offered to Customers on a monthly basis. 
Customers are allowed unlimited use of each feature. No usage sensitive charges apply. 
Multiline Customers must order the appropriate number of features based on the number 
of lines which will have access to the feature. 

Optional Calling Feature Residence Business 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

Flexible Call Forwarding 
Flexible Call Forwarding 
with Audio Calling Name 
Flexible Call Forwarding Plus 
Flexible Call Forwarding Plus 
with Audio Calling Name 

Call Forwarding Variable 
Call Forwarding Variable 
with Remote Access 

Call Forwarding Don't Answer - Basic 
Call Forwarding Don't Answer 
w/Ring Control 
Call FO-rwarding Don't Answer 

Call Forwarding Busy Line - Basic 
Call Forwarding Busy Line 

Call Waiting - Basic 
Call Waiting - Deluxe 
Call Waiting - Deluxe with Conferencing 

Effective: 
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7.8 Optional Calling Features, (Continued) 

7.8.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis 

Optional Calling Feature (cont'd) Residence Business 

Caller ID - Basic 
Caller ID - Deluxe 
Caller ID - Deluxe 
W /Anonvmous Call Reiection 

Anonymous Call Rejection 
Call Block 
Call Return 
Call Selector 
Call Tracing 
Calling Number Delivery Blocking 
(per line equipped) 
Message Waiting Indication - Audible 
Message Waiting Indication - Audible 
and Visual 
Multiple Directory Number Distinctive 
Ringing - First DN 
Multiple Directory Number Distinctive 
Ringing - Second DN 
Preferred Call Forwarding 
Repeat Dialing 
Speed Calling (30 codes) 
Speed Calling (8 codes) 
Three Way Calling 
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8.1 Directory Listings 

8.1.1 General 

The following rules apply to standard listings in light face type in the white pages 
(alphabetical section) of the telephone directory and to the Directory Assistance records of 
the Company. 

Only information necessary to idenhfy the Customer is included in these listings. The 
Company use abbreviations in listings. The Company may reject a residence listing, which 
is judged to be advertising. It may also reject a listing it judges to be objectionable. A name 
made up by adding a term such as Company, Shop, Agency, Works, etc. to the name of a 
commodity or service willing to be accepted as a listing unless the subscriber is legally 
doing business under that name. 

A name may be repeated in the white pages only when a different address or telephone 
number is used. 
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8.1 Directory Listings, (Continued) 

8.1.2 Composition of Listings 

(A) NRmPs 

The following names may be included in business service listings: 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

The name of subscriber or joint user. 
The name of each business enterprise which the subscriber or joint user 
conducts. 
The name by which the business of a subscriber or joint user is known to the 
public. Only one such name representing the same general line of business 
will be accepted. 
The name of any person associated with the subscriber or joint user in the 
same business. 
The name of any person, firm or organization which subscriber or joint user is 
authorized to represent, or the name of an authorized representative of the 
subscriber or joint user. 
Alternative spelling of an individual name or alternative arrangement of a 
business name, provided the listing in the judgment of the Company, is not 
for advertising purposes. The name of a publication issued periodically by 
the subscriber or joint user. 
The name of an inactive business organization in a cross-reference listing 
when authorized by such business or organization. 
The name of a member of subscriber's domestic establishment when business 
service is furnished in the subscriber's residence. 
The name of a corporation which is the parent or a subsidiary of the 
subscriber. 

(10) The name of a resident of a hotel, apartment house, boarding house or club 
which is furnished PBX service, may be included in a residence type listing 
with the telephone number of the PBX service. 

(11) The name of the subscriber to a sharing arrangement. 

Effective: 
A. John Leach, President 

Covista, Inc. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 

Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 



COVISTA, INC. 
721 Broad Street, 2nd Floor 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

South Dakota Tariff Number 2 
Original Page 81 

8.1 Directory Listings, (Continued) 

8.1.2 Composition of Listings, (Continued) 

The purpose of a business designation is to identdy the listed party and not to 
advertise the business. No designation of the nature of the business is included if 
this is sufficiently indicated by the name. Where a listed party is engaged in more 
than one general line of business, one additional business designation may be 
included in the listing when necessary to identrfy the listed party. When a listed 
party has two or more listed telephone number or two or more business addresses, 
designations indicating the branches of the organization may be included where 
necessary to assist the public in calling. 

A designation may include a title to indicate a listed party's official position, but not 
the name of the firm or corporation with which the individual is connected. 
Individual names or titles are not shown following the name of a firm or 
corporation. A term such as "renting agent" may be included in a listing indented 
under the name of a building, provided the agent maintains a renting office in such 
a building. 

A designation is not ordinarily provided in a residence type listing except for 
residential service as permitted under the terms of this tariff. A professional 
designation is permitted on residence service in the case of a physician, surgeon, 
dentist, osteopath, chiropodist, podiatrist, optometrist, chiropractor, 
physiotherapist, Christian Science practitioner, veterinary surgeon, registered nurse 
or licensed practical nurse, provided that the same name and designation is also 
listed on business service of that subscriber or another subscriber in the same or 
different directory. 

The listing of service in the residence of a clergyman may include the designation 
I /  parsonage," "rectory," "parish house," or "manse," and any such listing may be 

indented under a listing in the name of the church. Where residence service is 
furnished in a church study, the listing may include the designation "study." 
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8.1 Directory Listings, (Continued) 

8.1.2 Composition of Listings, (Continued) 

Each residence or non-profit listing may, but does not have to, include the house 
number and street name of the residence where the telephone service is provided. 
Other information, such as a building name or a locality designation, may be 
included to help idenbfy the Customer. 

(D) Telephone Number 

Each listing may include only one telephone number, except in an alternate 
telephone number listing where each number listed is considered a line for rate 
purposes. 

A listing may include only the telephone number of the first line of a PBX system or 
incoming service group, except that a trunk not included in the incoming service 
group of a PBX system, or the first trunk of a separate incoming service group of a 
PBX system may be listed to meet special conditions where a corporation and its 
subsidiaries use the same PBX system. 
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8.1 Directory Listings, (Continued) 

8.1.3 Types of Listings 

(A) Standard Listing 

A standard listing includes a name, designation, address and telephone number of 
the Customer. It appears in the White Pages of the telephone directory and in the 
Company's Directory Assistance records. The designation in the listing will be 
provided according to the rules in paragraph 5.13.2.2 above. 

(B) Indented Listing 

An indented listing appears under a standard listing and may include only a 
designation, address and telephone number. An indented listing is allowed only 
when a Customer is entitled to two or more listings of the same name with different 
addresses or different telephone numbers. For example: 

Smith, John MD 
Office 125 Portland 555-4180 
Residence 9 Glenway 555-8345 

Such listing may be furnished as an indented listing or as a sub-caption. The 
telephone number in such a listing may be that of another service furnished the 
same subscriber or one of the subscriber's PBX trunks not included in the incoming 
service group, or the service furnished a different subscriber. 

Issued: 
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8.1 Directory Listings, (Continued) 

8.1.3 Types of Listings, (Continued) 

(C) Alternate Telephone Number Listing and Night Listing 

Any listed party who has made the necessary arrangements for receiving telephone 
calls during his or her absence may have an alternate telephone number listing or a 
night listing, such as the following. 

If no answer call (telephone number) 
Night calls (telephone number) 
Night calls after -PM (telephone number) 
Nights, Sundays and holidays (telephone number) 
5PM to 9AM weekdays, Saturday until 9AM, Monday and holidays 
(telephone number) 

Such listing may be furnished as an indented listing or as a sub-caption. The 
telephone number in such a listing may be that of another service furnished the 
same subscriber or one of the subscriber's PBX trunks not included in the incoming 
service group, or the service furnished a different subscriber. 

(D) Duplicate Listing 

Any listing may be duplicated in a different directory or under a separate 
geographical heading in the same directory. Such listing may be duplicated in 
indented form. 

(E) Reference Listing 

A subscriber having exchange services listed under different geographical headings 
may have an indented listing in reference form in lieu of a duplicate listing. 

(F) Cross Reference Listing 

A cross reference listing may be furnished in the same alphabetical group with the 
related listing when required for identification of the listed party and not 
designated for advertising purposes. 
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Directory Listings, (Cont'd.) 

Free Listings 

The following listings are provided at no additional charge to the Customer: one listing for each 
individual line service, auxiliary line or PBX system. 

Rates for Additional Listings - Business Customers 

The following rates and charges apply to additional listings requested by the Customer over and 
above those free listings provided for in Section 8.1.4. 

Il - Each Listing I TBD TBD I 

Type of Listing 

Reference/Cross Reference: 

Residential Charge 

Alternate Telephone Number/Night Listing: 

Business Charge 

- First Line 

Foreign Listing TBD TBD 1 

TBD - Night, Sundays & Holidays 

Additional Listing 

I Dual Name Liking - Non Recurring TBD TBD 

TBD 

I I 
TBD 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

TBD 

I 1 

TBD 

Effective: 

TBD 
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8.2 Non-Published Service 

8.2.1 General 

Non-published service means that the Customer's telephone number is not listed in the 
directory, not does it appear in the Company's Directory Assistance Records. 

8.2.2 Regulations 

This service is subject to the rules and regulations for E911 service, where applicable. 

The Company will complete calls to a non-published number only when the caller dials 
direct or gives the operator number. No exceptions will be made, even if the caller says it 
is an emergency. 

When the Company agrees to keep a number unlisted, it does so without any obligation. 
Except for cases of negligence or w i M  misconduct, the Company is not liable for any 
damages that might arise from publishing a non-published number in the directory or 
disclosing it to some. 

8.2.3 Rates and Charges 

There is a monthly charge for each non-published service. This charge does not apply is 
the Customer has other listed service at the same location; if the Customer lives in a hotel, 
boarding house or club with listed service; or if the service is installed for a temporary 
period. 

Non-published service charge, per month TBD 
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8.3 Non-Listed Service 

8.3.1 General 

Non-listed service means that the Customer's telephone number is not listed in the 
directory, but does it appear in the Company's Directory Assistance Records. 

8.3.2 Regulations 

This service is subject to the rules and regulations for E911 service, where applicable. 

The Company will complete calls to a non-listed number. 

When the Company agrees to keep a number unlisted, it does so without any obligation. 
Except for cases of negligence or willful misconduct, the Company is not liable for any 
damages that might arise from publishing a non-listed number in the directory or 
disclosing it to some. 

8.3.3 Rates and Charges 

There is a monthly charge for each non-listed service. This charge applies if the Customer 
has other listed service at the same location; if the Customer lives in a hotel, boarding 
house or club with listed service; or in the service is installed for a temporary period. 

Non-listed service charge, per month: TBD 
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8.4 Directory Assistance Services 

8.4.1 Directory Assistance 

A Directory Assistance charge applies per local directory assistance call. The Customer 
may make two (2) requests for a telephone number per call. The Directory Assistance 
Charge applies regardless of whether the Directory Assistance operator is able to supply 
the requested number. No charge applies for the first call per month per residence line. 

Each Local Directory Assistance Call TBD 
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SEPTTnN 9.0 - RESERVED FOR FIJTTELE TTSF, 

9.1 Reserved For Future Use 
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10.1 Reserved For Future Use 
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11.1 Carrier Presubscription 

11.1.1 General 

Carrier Presubscription is a procedure whereby a Customer designates to the Company 
the carrier which the Customer wishes to be the carrier of choice for intraLATA and 
interLATA toll calls, Such calls are automatically directed to the designated carrier, 
without the need to use carrier access codes or additional dialing to direct the call to the 
designated carrier. Presubscription does not prevent a Customer who has presubscribed 
to an IntraLATA or InterLATA toll carrier from using carrier access codes or additional 
dialing to direct calls to an alternative long distance carrier on a per call basis. 

11.1.2 Presubscription Options - Customers may select the same carrier or separate carriers for 
intraLATA and interLATA long distance. The following options for long distance 
Presubscription are available: 

Option A: 

Option B: 

Option C: 

Option D: 

Option E: 

Option F: 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

Customer select the Company as the presubscribed carrier for 
IntraLATA and InterLATA toll calls subject to presubscription. 

Customer may select the Company as the presubscribed carrier for 
IntraLATA calls subject to presubscription and some other carrier as the 
presubscribed carrier for interLATA toll calls subject to presubscription. 

Customer may select a carrier other than the Company for intraLATA 
toll calls subject to presubscription and the Company for interLATA toll 
calls subject to presubscription. 

Customer may select the carrier other than the Company for both 
intraLATA and interLATA toll calls subject to presubscription. 

Customer may select two different carriers, neither being the Company 
for intraLATA and interLATA toll calls. One carrier to be the Customers' 
primary intraLATA interexchange carrier. The other carrier to be the 
Customer's primary interLATA interexchange carrier. 

Customer may select a carrier other than the Company for no 
presubscribed carrier for intraLATA toll calls subject to presubscription 
which will require the Customer to dial a carrier access code to route all 
intraLATA toll calls to the carrier of choice for each call. 
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11.1 Carrier Presubscription, (Continued) 

11.1.3 Rules and Regulations 

Customers of record will retain their primary interexchange carrier(s) until they request that 
their dialing arrangements be changed. 

Customers of record or new Customers may select either Options A, B, C, D, E or F for 
intraLATA Presubscription. 

Customers may change their selected Option and/or presubscribed toll carrier at any time 
subject to charges specified in 11.4.5 below: 

11.1.4 Presubscription Procedures 

A new Customer will be asked to select intraLATA and interLATA toll carriers at the time 
the Customer places an order to establish local exchange service with the Company. The 
Company will process the Customer's order for service. All new Customers initial requests 
for intraLATA toll service presubscription shall be provided free of charge. 

If a new Customer is unable to make selection at the time the new Customer places an order 
to establish local exchange service, the Company will read a random listing of all available 
intraLATA and interLATA carriers to aid the Customer in selection. If selection is still not 
possible, the Company will inform the Customer that he/she will be given 90 calendar days 
in which to inform the Company of his/her choice for primary toll carrier(s) free of charge. 
Until the Customer informs the Company of his/her choice of primary toll carrier, the 
Customer will not have access to long distance services on a presubscribed basis, but rather 
will be required to dial a carrier access code to route all toll calls to the carrier(s) of choice. 
Customers who inform the Company of a choice for toll carrier presubscription within the 
90-day period will not be assessed a service charge for the initial Customer request. 

Customers of record may initiate an intraLATA or interLATA presubscription change at 
any time, subject to the charges specified in 11.4.5 below. If a Customer of record inquires 
of the Company of the carriers available for toll presubscription, the Company will read a 
random listing of all available intraLATA carriers to aid the Customer in selection. 
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11.1 Carrier Presubscription, (Continued) 

11.1.5 Presubscription Charges 

(A) Application of Charges 

After a Customer's initial selection for a presubscribed toll carrier and as detailed in 
Paragraph 11.1.4 above, for any change thereafter, a Presubscription Change 
Charge, as set forth below will apply. Customers who request a change in 
intraLATA and interLATA carriers with the same order will be assessed a single 
charge per line. 

(B) Nonrecurring Charges 

Per business or residence line, trunk, or port 

Issued: 
Issued by: 

Initial Line, or Trunk or Port 
Additional Line, Trunk or Port 

A. John Leach, President 
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12.1 Special Promotions 

The Company may from time to time engage in special promotional trial service offerings of limited 
duration (not to exceed ninety days on a per Customer basis for non-optional, recurring charges) 
designed to attract new subscribers or to increase subscriber awareness of a particular tariff offering. 
Requests for promotional offerings will be presented to the Commission for its review in accordance 
with rules and regulations established by the Commission, and will be included in the Carrier's 
tariff as an addendum to the Carrier's price lists. 

12.2 Discounts 

The Company may, from time to time as reflected in the price list, offer discounts based on monthly 
volume (or, when appropriate, "monthly revenue commitment" and/or "time of day" may also be 
included). 
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South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 

WEEKLY FILINGS 
For the Period of May 8,2003 through May 14,2003 

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo 
within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3705 

TC03-082 In the Matter of the Filing for  Approval of an Amendment t o  an lnterconnection Agreement 
between Qwest Corporation and Midcontinent Communications, Inc. 

On May 9, 2003, the Commission received a filing for approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection 
Agreement between Midcontinent Communications, Inc. and Qwest Corporation. According to the parties, the 
amendment is made in order to add to the agreement the Performance Assurance Plan as approved by the 
Commission and the Performance Indicator Definitions, as set forth in Attachments I and 2 to the amendment. 
The original agreement was approved by the Commission on May 5, 1999, in Docket No. TC99-023. Any party 
wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by filing written comments with the Commission and the 
parties to the agreement no later than May 29, 2003. Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the 
comments no later than twenty days after the service of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 05/09/03 
Initial Comments Due: 05/29/03 

TC03-083 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of an Amendment t o  an lnterconnection Agreement 
between Qwest Corporation and McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, Inc. 

On May 9, 2003, the Commission received a filing for approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection 
Agreement between McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, Inc. and Qwest Corporation. According to the 
parties, the amendment is made in order to add the terms, conditions and rates for Unbundled Loops, as set 
forth in Attachment 1 and Exhibits A and B to the amendment. The original agreement was approved by the 
Commission on July 23, 1999, in Docket No. TC99-057. Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may 
do so by filing written comments with the Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than May 29, 
2003. Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the 
service of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 05/09/03 
Initial Comments Due: 05/29/03 

TC03-084 In the Matter of the Application of X2Comm, Inc. dlbla DC Communications for a Certificate 
of Authority to  Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Services in South Dakota. 

X2Comm, Inc. d/b/a DC Communications has filed an application for a Certificate of Authority to provide 
interexchange telecommunications services in South Dakota. The applicant intends to provide inbound (toll 
free) and outbound long distance services to both residential and business customers. Inbound and outbound 
services will be available as switched and dedicated service. 

Staff Analyst: Bonnie Bjork 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 05/09/03 
Intervention Deadline: 05/30/03 



TC03-085 In the Matter of the Application of Covista, Inc. for a Certificate of Authority to Provide 
Local Exchange Services in South Dakota. 

Covista, Inc. has filed an application for a Certificate of Authority to provide resold and facilities basedlUNE-P 
local exchange services in South Dakota. 

Staff Analyst: Bonnie Bjork 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 0511 2/03 
Intervention Deadline: 05130103 

TC03-086 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of an Amendment to  an lnterconnection Agreement 
between Qwest Corporation and Sprint Communications Company L.P. 

On May 12, 2003, the Commission received a filing for approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection 
Agreement between Sprint Communications Company L.P. and Qwest Corporation. According to the parties, 
the agreement is amended by adding terms and conditions for Collocation Available Inventory, as set forth in 
Attachment 1 and Exhibit A to the amendment. The original agreement was approved by the Commission on 
November 13,2001, in Docket No. TC01-151. Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by 
filing written comments with the Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than June 2, 2003. 
Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the service 
of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0511 2103 
Initial Comments Due: 06/02/03 

TC03-087 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of a Boundary Change between West River 
Telecommunications Cooperative and Qwest Corporation. 

West River Telecommunications Cooperative and Qwest Communications have filed a joint petition for 
Commission approval of an exchange boundary change between West River's McLaughlin Exchange and 
Qwest's Timber Lake Exchange. Two customers have requested the boundary change in order to be served by 
West River. 

Staff Analyst: Michele Farris 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 0511 4103 
lntervention Deadline: 05130103 

You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or via internet e-mail. 
You may subscribe or unsubscribe to the PUC mailing lists at http:llwww.state.sd.uslpuc 



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING 
COVISTA, INC. FOR A CERTIFICATE OF ) CERTIFICATE OF 
AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE LOCAL EXCHANGE ) AUTHORITY 
SERVICES IN SOUTH DAKOTA 1 TC03-085 

On May 12, 2003, the Public Utilities Commission (Commission) received an 
application for a certificate of authority from Covista, Inc. (Covista). 

Covista proposes to offer resold and facilities-based UNE-P local service. A 
proposed tariff was filed by Covista. 

On May 15, 2003, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the filing and 
the intervention deadline of May 30, 2003, to interested individuals and entities. No 
petitions to intervene or comments were filed and at its regularly scheduled June 17, 2003, 
meeting, the Commission considered Covista's request for a certificate of authority. 
Commission Staff recommended granting a certificate of authority, subject to rural 
safeguards, and subject to the condition that Covista not offer a prepaid calling card or 
require or accept deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission. 
Commission Staff further recommended a waiver of ARSD 20: 10:32:03(13). 

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL 
Chapter 49-31! specifically 49-31 -69 and ARSD 20:10:32:03. The Commission finds that 
Covista has met the legal requirements established for the granting of a certificate of 
authority. Covista has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31 -71, demonstrated sufficient 
technical, financial and managerial capabilities to offer telecommunications services in 
South Dakota. Further, the Commission finds that there is good cause to waive 
subparagraph (1 3) of ARSD 20:10:32:03. 

The Commission approves Covista's application for a certificate of authority, subject 
to rural safeguards, and subject to the condition that Covista not offer a prepaid calling 
card or require or accept deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the 
Commission. The certificate of authority for Covista shall authorize it to offer local 
exchange services in South Dakota, except in those areas served by a rural telephone 
company. In the future, should Covista choose to provide local exchange services 
statewide, with respect to rural telephone companies, Covista will have to come before the 
Commission in another proceeding before being able to provide local service in that rural 
service area pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 5 j  253(f) which allows the Commission to require a 
company that seeks to provide service in a rural service area to meet the requirements in 
47 U.S.C. 5 j  214(e)(l) for designation as an eligible telecommunications carrier. In 
addition, the granting of statewide certification will not affect the exemptions, suspensions, 
and modifications for rural telephone companies found in 47 U.S.C. 5 j  251(f). It is therefore 



ORDERED, that Covista's application for a certificate of authority to provide local 
exchange services is granted, effective July 9, 2003, subject to the condition that Covista 
not offer a prepaid calling card or require or accept deposits or advance payments without 
prior approval of the Commission; and it is 

FURTHER ORDERED, that Covista shall file informational copies of tariff changes 
with the Commission as the changes occur; and it is 

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission shall authorize Covista to offer its local 
exchange services in South Dakota, except in those areas served by a rural telephone 
company; and it is 

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission waives subparagraph (1 3) of ARSD 
20: 1 0:32:03. 

-d Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this &b day of June, 2003. 

1) CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this 
document has been sewed today upon all parties 
of record in this docket, as listed on the docket 
sewice list, by facsimile or by first class mail, in 
properly addressed envelopes, with charges 

Date: f i  
11 (OFFICIAL SEAL) 

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION: 

i k w , / & k 7  
ROBERT K. ~ ~ ~ ~ r ~ h a i r m a n  
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G R>/ ANSON, Commissioner 




